o~ ".
~’iall| PEOTONE
CUSD 2070 z

BOARD OF EDUCATION
AGENDA
AND
BOARD PACKET

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MONDAY, AUGUST 16, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.
PEOTONE HIGH SCHOOL - MEDIA CENTER



V.

VI.

B R

AGENDA
BOARD OF EDUCATION - REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MONDAY, AUGUST 16, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. - PEOTONE HIGH SCHOOL - MEDIA CENTER

CALL TO ORDER:
PLEDGE T FLAG:
ROLL CALL:

CONSENT AGENDA:

Regular Board Meeting Minutes of July 19,2021 ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiinenns
Closed Executive Session Minutes of July 19, 2021.............. T
Treasurers’ Report (July 2021) ... e
Imprest Fund (June 2021) ...
General Fund Bills (August 2021).........oooiiiii i e
Activity Fund (July 2021) ...

ROLL CALL VOTE:
OPPORTUNITY FOR VISITORS TO SPEAK:

mmoom»

FOR ACTION:

Report No. 9: Approval of the Tentative FY22 Budget to be
Puton Display.........ccooiii e

Report No. 10: Approval of the Destruction of Closed Executive Session
Recordings from January 2016 through June 2016..........

Report No. 11: Approval of a Coed Soccer Team at
Peotone Junior High School............ T T

Report No. 12: Approval of a Choose to Include Program
Coordinator at Peotone High School and
Peotone Junior High School.................

11
12
23
26
39

43

43

43

43



Report No. 13: Approval of Personnel - Certified Staff - Employment -
PJHS - Health Teacher, Athletic Director, Assistant Baseball Coach,
PHS - Assistant Basketball Coach; PES- First Grade Teachers,
Change in Status - PHS Student Council Sponsor, Freshman Sponsor,
Fellowship of Christian Athletes Sponsor, Track and Field Assistant
Coaches, PHS - Head Bowling Coach, PES - Reading/Math
Paraprofessional to PES 3 Grade Teacher, PES 3™ Grade Teacher
to PIC 5" Grade Special Education Teacher, Resignation- PJHS Health
Teacher, PHS - Head Boys’ Basketball Coach, PJHS - Assistant Baseball
Coach PES -1st Grade Teacher, 2" Grade Airplanes and Drones Sponsor,
PIC - 5™ Grade Special Education Teacher, PES - 15t Grade Teacher,
Classified Staff - Employment - PJHS Assistant Baseball Coach
Change in Status -Transportation - Bus Driver to Substitute Bus Driver,
Resignation - PES - S| Paraprofessional, Termination - PJHS -
Night Custodian..............ooo i e 83

VIl. FOR DISCUSSION:
FY22 Budget Presentation
First Reading of PRESS 107
First Reading of Board Policy 4:140

VIli. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS:

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION:
For the purpose of discussing the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline,
performance, or dismissal of specific employees or legal counsel; collective negotiating
matters; student disciplinary cases and other matters relating to individual students;
pending, probable, or imminent litigation; security procedures, school building safety and
security, and the use of personnel and equipment to respond to an actual, a threatened,
or a reasonable potential danger to the safety of employees, students, staff, the public
or public property. THERE MAY BE OR MAY NOT BE ANY ACTION FOLLOWING THE
CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION.

X. OTHER:
Xl. ADJOURNMENT:

The next scheduled regular board meeting is
Monday, September 20, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.
Peotone High School — Media Center



PEOTONE
CUSD 207U

BOARD OF EDUCATION-REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
OF MONDAY, JULY 19, 2021
PEOTONE HIGH SCHOOL - MEDIA CENTER

CALL TO ORDER:

At 6:00 p.m., President Tara Robinson called the regular board meeting to order
and requested all who are present to please stand and recite the Pledge of
Allegiance. A roll call was taken and the following board members answered
aye (5): Mrs. Tara Robinson, Mr. Roger Bettenhausen, Mrs. Jodi Becker,

Mr. Richard Uthe, Mr. Tim Stoub and no nays. Mrs. Jennifer Moe and

Mrs. Dawn Love were absent for the regular board meeting of July 19, 2021.

CONSENT AGENDA:

President Robinson asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda of the
July 19, 2021 regular board meeting. Mr. Uthe made a motion to approve the
Consent Agenda and Mr. Bettenhausen seconded the motion to approve, and a
roll call vote was taken and the following board members answered aye (4):

Mr. Bettenhausen, Mrs. Becker, Mr. Uthe, Mrs. Robinson, and (1) nay

Mr. Stoub. Mrs. Moe and Mrs. Love were absent for the regular board meeting
of July 19, 2021.

OPPORTUNITY FOR VISITORS TO SPEAK:

Mike Arnold, Head Custodian for the District, addressed the Board with a
statement to the accusations made by Julie Busich, at the June 215t regular
board meeting. Mr. Arnold stated that he has been supervising and managing
staff for a forty years span. | have been with the District for nine years and eight
of those years, | have been the head custodian. In all my years of managing
staff, | have never given an individual, an increase in pay, a promotion or hired
anyone out of favoritism. | always based my decisions on job performance,
attendance, work ethic, attitude, being a hard worker, good personality and
people friendly. | would like the Board to know that prior to making any
recommendations or decisions on the daytime custodian opening, | did first
consider all of my second shift employees. And you can be assured that all my
decisions that | make is with the utmost respect for the Board, the District and the
community in mind, and | will stand by all of my decisions that | make.

Steve Stein, Superintendent, responded that | heard from Mr. Arnold and that
he was interested in making a statement tonight, and | felt it was important that |
make one as well. After hearing the allegations made by Julie Busich at the June
21t board meeting, | promptly began an investigation. After talking to eleven full-
time custodians and one teacher, and Mr. Arnold himself, it became clear that
some staff heard and spread rumors that Mr. Arnold and a female co-worker
were having an intimate relationship. It was also clear that none of those staff

1



were having an intimate relationship. It was also clear that none of those staff
members could provide any firsthand knowledge regarding an alleged intimate
relationship between them. It is true, that Mr. Arnold and a female co-worker had
a friendship outside of work, in which they would go grocery shopping, do
yardwork and watch tv together. And they now understand that this can no
longer take place. Furthermore, | have reviewed the decisions that Mr. Arnold
has made in regards to personnel and | have found no wrongdoing on

Mr. Arnold’s part.

Christy Miller, of Peotone, IL, addressed the Board, asking if the District is
offering remote learning the same way as last year. Mr. Stein responded that
we are not offering it in the same way as it happened last year. | thought,

Mrs. Miller that Mrs. Loy had reached out to you about this. Mrs. Miller said that
she had not received any paperwork from Mrs. Loy, so she was not clear about
what to do. Mr. Stein suggested to Mrs. Miller, that we meet with Mrs. Loy to
discuss this - either on a conference call or in person. Mrs. Miller also stated
that students should be required to wear masks in school for the2021-2021
school year.

Several parents signed in and addressed the Board regarding the Resolution
To Make Masks Optional for 2021-2022 school year which is on the agenda for
approval tonight. Parents want to have the right to choose to send their child or
children to school with or without a mask. They asked the Board to please
consider and approve the Resolution tonight. Another parent addressed the
Board with her concerns of students that might be bullied because of looking
different because some students will be wearing masks and other students will
not be wearing masks. We need to teach kids that wearing a mask even if you
choose to, but don’'t have to, is okay.

FOR ACTION:

REPORT NO. 1:

FOR ACTION: APPROVAL OF KEEPING THE CLOSED
EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES CLOSED FROM
JANUARY 2021 to JUNE 2021.

President Robinson asked for a motion to approve Keeping the Closed
Executive Session Meeting Minutes Closed from January 2021 to

June 2021. Mr. Uthe made a motion to approve Report Action No. 1 and

Mr. Bettenhausen seconded the motion, and a roll call vote was taken and the
following board members answered aye (5): Mrs. Robinson, Mr. Uthe,

Mr. Bettenhausen, Mrs. Becker, and Mr. Stoub. Mrs. Moe and Mrs. Love were
absent for the regular board meeting of July 19, 2021.



REPORT NO. 2:
FOR ACTION: APPROVAL OF A RENAISSANCE CLUB
AT PEOTONE HIGH SCHOOL.

President Robinson asked for a motion to approve a Renaissance Club

at Peotone High School. Mr. Uthe made a motion to approve Report Action
No. 2 and Mr. Bettenhausen seconded the motion, and a roll call vote was
taken and the following board members answered aye (5): Mr. Bettenhausen,
Mrs. Becker, Mr. Uthe, Mrs. Robinson, Mr. Stoub and no nays. Mrs. Moe and
Mrs. Love were absent for the regular board meeting of July 19, 2021.

REPORT NO. 3:
FOR ACTION: APPROVAL OF A FELLOWSHIP OF CHRISTIAN
ATHLETES CLUB AT PEOTONE HGIH SCHOOL.

President Robinson asked for a motion to approve a Fellowship of
Christian Athletes Club at Peotone High School. Mr. Bettenhausen
made a motion to approve Report Action No. 3 and Mr. Uthe seconded

the motion, and a roll call vote was taken and the following board members
answered aye (5). Mr. Bettenhausen, Mrs. Becker, Mr. Uthe, Mrs. Robinson,
Mr. Stoub and no nays. Mrs. Moe and Mrs. Love were absent for

the regular board meeting of July 19, 2021.

REPORT NO. 4:

FOR ACTION: APPROVAL OF THE JOB DESCRIPTION OF THE
TRANSITION COORDINATOR/SPECIAL EDUCATION
DEPARTMENT TEAM LEADER.

President Robinson asked for a motion to approve the Job Description of the
Transition Coordinator/Special Education Department Team Leader.

Mr. Bettenhausen made a motion to approve Report Action No. 4 and Mr. Uthe
seconded the motion and a roll call vote was taken and the following

board members answered aye (5): Mr. Bettenhausen, Mrs. Becker, Mr. Uthe,
Mrs. Robinson and Mr. Stoub. Mrs. Moe and Mrs. Love were absent for

the regular board meeting of July 19, 2021.

REPORT NO. 5:
FOR ACTION: APPROVAL OF THE SECOND READING AND
ADOPTION OF BOARD POLICY 7:20.

President Robinson asked for a motion to approve the Second Reading

and Adoption of Board Policy 7:20. Mr. Bettenhausen made a motion

to approve Report No. 5 and Mr. Uthe seconded the motion and the following
board members answered aye; (5) Mr. Bettenhausen, Mrs. Becker, Mr. Uthe,
Mrs. Robinson and Mr. Stoub. Mrs. Moe and Mrs. Love were absent for

the regular board meeting of July 19, 2021.



REPORT NO. 6:
FOR ACTION: APPROVAL OF OPENING THREE
NEW ACTIVITY FUND ACCOUNTS.

President Robinson asked for a motion to approve Opening Three

New Activity Fund Accounts, which are: the Class of 2025 - Treasurer is TBD,
will be whomever becomes Freshman Class Sponsor; PJHS Girls Softball -
Treasurer is Kim Pagliarulo, PJHS Softball Head Coach; Renaissance Club -
Treasurer is TBD, will be whoever the Renaissance Club Sponsor becomes.

Mr. Bettenhausen made a motion to approve Report No. 6 and Mr. Uthe
seconded the motion and the following board members answered aye; (5)

Mr. Bettenhausen, Mrs. Becker, Mr. Uthe, Mrs. Robinson, Mr. Stoub and

no nays. Mrs. Moe and Mrs. Love were absent for the regular board

meeting of July 19, 2021.

President Robinson wanted the record to state that it is not alarming to me that
we do not have a full board here tonight. Mrs. Moe and Mrs. Love are both on
vacation as any of us who has been on the board for any length of time, can
attest - as well, | am sure all of you can - sometimes vacations and things come
up. You have to have a majority of the board still willing to carry on the business
of the District. | do not want my two board members maligned because they are
not here - it is a very normal thing to have happen - especially in the summer
time. It will not impede our vote, it never does. The business of the Board
continues every month.

Mr. Steve Stein, Superintendent, reported to the Board, that it is my
recommendation to approve and adopt the resolution of making masks optional
for the 2021-2022 school year. But | just wanted to add a note that the CDC and
IDPH are not giving us any wiggle room on wearing masks on busses. Masks
will have to be worn on busses.

Mr. Stoub stated that the recommendation is coming and | respect that and |
respect the number of hours involved in researching this - and | am listening to
the recommendation and with all that being said - we are taking on the
responsibility. President Robinson responded to Mr. Stoub, - | know you are new
to the Board, but this Board takes on the responsibility for every single action.
Every day we sit here, we take on responsibility. And | can't state it enough, just
because a board member have a prescheduled vacation - does not mean that
they are shucking their responsibilities, things happen.



REPORT NO. 7:

FOR ACTION: APPROVAL AND ADOPTION OF THE RESOLUTION
TO MAKE MASKS OPTIONAL FOR THE
2021-2022 SCHOOL YEAR.

President Robinson asked for a motion to approve and adopt the Resolution

to Make Masks Optional for the 2021-2022 School Year.

Mr. Uthe made a motion to approve Report No. 7 and Mr. Bettenhausen
seconded the motion and the following board members answered aye; (4)

Mr. Bettenhausen, Mrs. Becker, Mr. Uthe, Mrs. Robinson, and (1) nay, Mr. Stoub.
Mrs. Moe and Mrs. Love were absent for the regular board meeting of July 19,
2021.

REPORT NO. 8:

FOR ACTION: ADDENDUM TO PERSONNEL
(Additions are in red bold and underline:
(*Contingent upon receipt and evaluation and
employment documentation required by the District
and the lllinois State Board of Education*).

President Robinson asked for a motion to approve the Addendum to
Personnel. Mr. Uthe made a motion to approve Report No. 8 and

Mr. Bettenhausen seconded the motion and the following board members
answered aye; (5) Mr. Bettenhausen, Mrs. Becker, Mr. Uthe, Mrs. Robinson,
Mr. Stoub and no nays. Mrs. Moe and Mrs. Love were absent for the
regular board meeting of July 19, 2021.

CERTIFIED STAFF
EMPLOYMENT:
e Hannah Sloma - CSC Preschool Teacher (effective date of 08.16.2021).
e Tim Nagra - PES - Long Term Substitute Teacher (effective date of
09.07.2021).

CHANGE IN STATUS:
e Steve Strough - PHS/PJHS - Varsity Softball Assistant Coach to
Varsity Softball Head Coach (effective date of 07.01.2021).
e Hannah Sloma - PJHS - Cheerleading Coach - (effective date of
10.01.2021).

RESIGNATION:

* Nicole Majca - PHS Spanish Teacher (effective date of 06.27.2021)

e Nicole Majca - PHS Freshman Class Sponsor (effective date of
06.27.2021).

e Ariana Meewes - PHS - English Teacher (effective date of 06.24.2021).
Mikinsey Prium - PHS - Special Education Teacher (effective date

of 07.19.2021).
e Nathan Matthies - PJHS - Athletic Director (effective date of 07.14.2021).

5



TERMINATION:
e Keith Cucio - PHS - Assistant Track Coach (effective date of 06.21.2021).

CLASSIFIED STAFF

EMPLOYMENT:
e Kelly Wicker - PES/CSC Preschool - Paraprofessional (effective date of
08.17.2021).
e Monet Peterson - Transportation - 1:1 Bus Aide (effective date of
08.10.2021).

Tara Ipema - PHS - Cafeteria (effective date of 08.16.2021).
Diandre Owens - PJHS - Night Custodian (effective date of 07.28.2021).
Stacy Plastiak - Reading Intervention Paraprofessional (effective date

of 08.17.2021).

ADMINISTRATION REPORTS:

Mr. Steve Stein, Superintendent, reported to the Board that | have received a
couple of FOIAs this month. One from the Carpenters’ Union regarding FY19
Suburban Lock work; Julie Busich regarding custodial hiring, and three from John
Maxadon; Painting at PES, Superintendent Reviews, Booster Club and the
Scoreboard.

Mr. Brandon Owens, Director of Curriculum, reported to the Board that the:
Critical Race Theory/Culturally Responsive Teaching and Leading (CRTL)
The CRTLs have been brought up in discussions at previous board meetings.
Concerns and questions have continued to remain regarding what effect these
learning standards will have on our students’ education. The CRTL Standards
were adopted to support closing the achievement gaps by implementing a
culturally responsive approach; however, these standards are to be adopted and
utilized by teacher preparation programs in lllinois by October of 2025. These
standards are designed for higher-level learning of future teachers in college
educational programs. The CRTL Standards are a not a curriculum and will not
be implemented at the K-12 level.

SB 0818

SB 0818, also known as the Keeping Youth Safe and Healthy Act, passed both
Houses on May 28™". The goal of this bill is to create a personal health and safety
standards for K-5 students and expand sexual health education standards for
grades 6-12. This has been additionally discussed at previous board meetings;
however, at this time, we do not have any new information regarding learning
standards or lessons. Governor Pritzker received this bill on June 25" and has

yet to sign it.



What we do know is that if Governor Pritzker signs the bill into law, ISBE will be
expected to adopt these standards by August 1, 2022, with the expectation that
public and charter schools beginning this health and safety/sexual health
education at the start of the 2023-24 school year. It should also be noted that
schools will have local control in the selection of the curriculum and materials.
Additionally, parents/guardians would have the opportunity to opt out of the
instruction.

Title Grants
I am currently in the process of completing our grant applications to ISBE for Title
I, Title 1l, and Title IV. Each grant application will be submitted prior to its due

date of June 30t

POET/New Teacher Orientation & Institute Days

We are just a few weeks away from our POET/New Teacher Orientation, which is
scheduled to take place on August 10t and 11%". We are looking forward to
welcoming our over 20 new staff members across the district on these days.
Additionally, our Teacher Institute Days are scheduled for August 16" and 17
We have a large number of trainings and opportunities for our staff as they
prepare to begin the 2021-22 school year.

Mrs. Carole Zurales, Principal of Peotone Elementary, reported to the Board
that it has been a busy summer as we prepare for this upcoming school year.
| did a deep data dive into spring Aims web data:

e | did three different data comparisons

«  Winter ‘21 to Spring ‘21 in each grade level. All groups made
growth.

« Spring ‘19 Grade Level to Spring ‘21 Grade Level. Second and
third grade had similar scores in both springs and first grade
scores were lower than spring ‘19 kindergarten and first
graders. These are the grade levels that we knew would be
most impacted and have a plan to respond to learning gaps this

school year.
« Cohort Data for second and third graders scores compared to

when they were kindergarten and first graders. Both groups
made growth over the two years.

» Popsicles with the Principal was this afternoon and it was so wonderful
getting to see students and families!

« The building opened today for staff to start setting up their classrooms.
» | have my Leadership Team meeting on Wednesday to get input and
feedback on planning for this upcoming year.



« We have a math training with a consultant next Thursday that will be
focusing on guided math routines and structures and the math workshop
model.

« Upcoming dates:

« August 16-17- Institute Days
August 16 from 2:00-4:00- Open House for Grades 1-3
August 18-19 - Meet and Greet appointments for Kindergarten
August 18- First Day for Grades 1-3
August 20- First Day for Kindergarten

e e @ ®

Mr. Trevor Moore, Business Manager, CSBO, reported to the Board that

the auditors would be in the district on Wednesday and Thursday of this week to
complete their onsite work. Given the circumstances last year, they have
become very adept to do a lot of work remotely, but they still need to do some on
site checks of district files and paperwork. It is expected they will be back on
their normal timeline of turning around the annual financial report and audit report
this fall.

Mrs. Amy Loy, Director of Special Services, reported to the Board that | have
reviewed the Extended School Year program concluded on July 2" and was held
for those students who qualified for services based upon their IEP. Mrs. Loy
reviewed during these summer months, much attention has been spent
interviewing and on boarding new staff members and that, we are working hard
to fill the remaining positions. We are still looking to hire paraprofessionals for
the upcoming school year so if there are interested parents or individuals to
reach out to her directly. Mrs Loy also shared she had recently completed the
latest round of the Medicaid Administrative Claim for the district.

Mr. Jason Spang, Principal of Peotone High School, reported to the Board
that:
Summer School Update (Apex)

e Our PHS summer school staff have provided feedback about how
successful summer school has gone up to this point. Currently 22
students have successfully completed all their credit recovery
courses after starting with an initial summer school enroliment of 46
students. This includes students who recovered multiple classes, ot
just one. We still have this week to finish up.

PHS Leadership Team
¢ We remain in collaborative discussions as we return to full days.
Some of the areas of focus are proper lunch supervision, blue devil
support rostering, digital hall passes for us to track students, and
morning supervision.




SAT Scores
e Class of 2020 (Tested as Juniors)
e Average score of all test-takers was a cumulative 983 when
* Average score of all test-takers was a cumulative 963 when
combining ERW and Math.

e Class of 2022 (Tested as Juniors)
e Average score of all test-takers was a cumulative 972 when
combining ERW and Math.

Mr. Paul Taueber, Assistant Principal/Athletic Director of Peotone High
School, reported to the Board that | have been transitioning on the job for just
over two weeks meeting as many staff, coaches, and parents as | can.

Mr. Spang and Mr. Owens have been a great help and everyone I've met

has been incredibly welcoming and supportive.

Specific Events:

e Code of Conduct on August 5, 2021 at 6:00 (p.m.). We are
transitioning to two meetings during the year, one in the fall for fall
and winter sports, and one in the spring at a date to be determined.

e (2) Scoreboard Fundraiser on August 13th run by boosters.

e (3) Planning and getting ready for our Freshman Orientation on
August 12th.

Mr. Ruben Suarez, Director of Technology, reported to the Board that

we have finished all the system configurations for the deployment of Multi-Factor
Authentication using Cisco Duo. The next step is the assignment of physical
tokens to the staff that requested them followed by the activation of the service.

Mrs. Terry Wuske, Director of Food Services, reported to the Board, that | will
be attending the ISBE back to school conference this week. ISBE at this point is
strongly encouraging all food departments in the state to select the Seamless
Summer Option when applying for the next school year. This option would allow
us to serve ALL STUDENTS Lunch at NO CHARGE regardless of their income
status for the 2021-2022 school year.

Mr. Dave Osborne, Director of Buildings and Grounds, reported to the Board
that the roofers should be wrapping up at CSC and the High School this week or
early next week, there's been a lot of rain delays that put them behind. The CSC
crew worked Saturday the 17th to try to get caught back up.

Mrs. Jennifer Haag, Director of Transportation, reported to the Board that we
are finishing summer school routes. We are currently transporting three high
school students and one out-of-district route is running and will finish by the end
of July. Cleaning crew are busy getting the buses cleaned. Our Drivers’
meeting is scheduled for Wednesday August 10th. We hope to have letters to
parents sent out by August 10th as well.



OTHER:
EXECUTIVE SESSION:

President Robinson asked the Board if anyone had anything for Executive
Session tonight. Mr. Stoub said yes, but it will only take a few minutes.

At 7:38 p.m., President Robinson asked for motion to adjourn the regular board
meeting to go into closed executive session and stated that there will not be any
action after the closed executive session. Mr. Uthe made a motion and

Mr. Bettenhausen seconded the motion and on a voice call vote, the following
board members answered aye, (5), Mrs. Robinson, Mr. Uthe, Mr. Bettenhausen,
Mrs. Becker, Mr. Stoub and no nays.

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION:

At 7:41 p.m. Mrs. Robinson asked for a motion for the Board to return to open
session of the regular board meeting. Mr. Uthe made a motion and

Mrs. Robinson seconded the motion and a voice call vote was taken, the
following board members answered aye (5): Mrs. Robinson, Mr. Uthe, Mrs.
Becker, Mr. Bettenhausen, and Mr. Stoub and no nays.

ADJOURNMENT:

At 7:42 p.m. President Robinson asked for a motion to adjourn the regular board
meeting. Mrs. Robinson made a motion to adjourn and Mr. Uthe seconded the
motion and on a voice call vote, the following board members answered aye (5),
Mr. Bettenhausen, Mrs. Becker, Mr. Uthe, Mrs. Robinson, Mr. Stoub and no
nays. Mrs. Moe and Mrs. Love were absent for the regular board meeting

of July 19, 2021.

Tara Robinson, President Cathy Cuculich, Reporter

10



District Office

k1| PEOTONE 212 Weas Wilkon Swreet
atone, IL 8
GCUSD 2070 ok Ao et

Fax: 708-258-0994
www.peotoneschools.org

ADMINISTRATION
Mr. Steve Stein To: Board of Education
Superintendent

From: Trevor ]. Moore, Chief School Business Official
Dr. Charles Vitton ,
Assistant Superintendent RE: TREASURER’S MONTHLY REPORT (JULY 2021)

Date:  August 12,2021
Mr. Trevor Moore
Chief School Business Official
Mrs. Amy Loy The attached Treasurer’s monthly report is a summary of the district’s starting fund
=RECs! Eucston balance, monthly receipts, monthly expenses, and ending fund balance for the month of

July 2021. This applies to the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

This report is presented to you for your approval and action at the August 16, 2021
Board of Education Meeting.

/s/
2BhRD BEEDUCATION Trevor |. Moore Tara Robinson
Tara Robinson Chief School Business Official Board President
President Peotone CUSD 207U Peotone CUSD 207U

Richard Uthe
Vice President 7
7

Jennifer Moe
Secretary

Scot A. Carder Jennifer Moe
Treasurer Board Secretary

Roger Bettenhausen Peotone CUSD 207U Peotone CUSD 207U

Trustee

Jodi Becker
Trustee

Dawn Love

Trustee

Tim Stoub
Trustee

12



o

—
L1'Z68'806'ST S S66ELT S [T'SES0B S O06ES8'S09'Y S SB'OE6'E $ ETEDE06T $ 86'SP9'092 S TL¥ITOITL § LC09/69ET S 6GL'EOOOVOT S 10G56/£90 & 120z ‘TE AInr - saduejeq puny
(60'9pT'TLT) ¢ 910 S 96'€SLL $ 0E'18 $ LT $ ETTIYILT § L068€'8T § (E6'%99°89T) $ SO'TSSBIT  $ (86'119'98) ¢ (21987'8/) S 93e(Q 01 JBBA S2INUPUIdX]
(43pun) JaAQ SaNUBAARY $53IX3
92'8€0'080'9T $ 6L°6EZ'V S TTI8L'ZL  $ 09'C°LL'S09Y S 89°086°E $ 06T99'TLT § TE'9SC'TYT $ S9626'V8T'T § TT60TISCT $ LT'STO92LT ¢ ETTHO'STZG ¢ 120Z ‘T Ajnr - saduejeg punyg
L1'Z68'806'ST § S6'6EC'Y S [T'SESDBR S O06'€S8'S09'r § GBOEG'E $ ET'EDE'D6I $ 86'SYI'09Z S ZLWIC'OTT'T S LTO09LB9E'T S GLEODOVIT S T0OGSEZE9S & 120T ‘1€ AInf - seduejeg puny
(60'9v1'TL1)  § 910 S 96'€SL'L S 0£18 S LT $ ETTYYLT S LO'GSE'ST $ (€6999'89T) $ SOTSSBIT ¢ (86119'98) ¢ (¢1987'8L) $ YIuo s2inypuadxl
(1apun} JOAQ SaNUSASY $539X3]
- s - s -8 - s - s - 5 - 5 - s - s - s - S siajsues]
(ze'TEEP9'T) ¢ - S E § = s - $ (oc8sv've) $ (8vget'sT) § (bL'T2s'zos) § - $ (91°€69'881) ¢ (¥R'00S'806) $ SlUBWISINgsIQ
EBTLT'UYT § 910 S 96'€SLL S 0£718 $ LT'0 $ E6'6TT'TF § SSTISLE § TBOSS'EEE  § SOISSBIT ¢ BIT8OZOT  $ CLv1Z0e8 & s3d1303y
97'8£0'080°9T & 6L6£7F S TTTI8LeL S 09°2LL'S09Y ¢ 89°0E6'E $ 06'T99CLT § T6'9SZTbT § S96Z6YRTT § TTE0Z'IST'T $ LTSTOOXL'T $ ETTHYSTLO & 120z ‘1 Ainr - saouejeg puny
ejof >uwumm uo se) Sumyio, muuw_.o._ eyde uswiaimsy uoneyiodsues SIDIAID! 9 SEUAMEN euonen un
| 8 UORUBNBIY 2a1J L ysed Jupjiom loid jexde) - 13e), L 1A135 33 2 suonesado |euoneanpy puny
(06) {08} (oz) (09) (19) (os) (ov) {og) (02} (o1)
1207 ‘1€ AIng
Alewwns [epueury
NL0Z asn? auojoad

Tjo1

1Z0Z/21/8 uo paieda.d



Ti0T

Ajlinley Je ajqeded 1s2191u] {paleWNST 1534231 A|YIUOI, 4 4

%18V LT
%6L15°CL

LS TV6'EE0'9T 8€'0ST'T S 6UT6L°7609T §
«+s LO'E08'SEY'E LE'60Y $ oLg6E'Ser'E S
59'599°016 0S'ST $ ST°0s90T6  $
29'SLL'ST 290 $ 00°G/LL'ST S
OV'€8T'£L75'6 LL'1OY S €9°GLL°9TS6  $
9T'0v6'8 SE0 $ 18°6£68 S
96'6EC'Y 91’0 S 08'6£CY $
3 L s - S
TL'EEE'TLOT 19'9TE $ OT'LI0'TL0T $

(¥dV %¥1°0-50°0) Sluswisany)
(¥dV %81°0-50°0) S3UN0OIY Jueg Bulieaq 153131y

01j0J)0d J0 uoiyusodwo)

[E10L

SPaa20Jd 00T Sa3S puog ysed Sunpopn asoding
%THT 0 18 153J431U)
(snowiep - susodaq o 31e91413413D) +4v1aS|

SP2a20.d 0Z0¢ Sa14as puog yse) Bupjlopn :asodind
%S00 18 153131
(19x1e Asuo) +4v1as!

SIUSWISIAU}
pun4 1saadwy) :asoding

ddV %S0°0 e 1s3J81u|
(E€T04) Yueg 159MmpIN 1514

suoliesadQ pund [esauan :asoding
4dV %S0°0 1e 1sa491u|
(SZT04) dueg 159MPpIA 35414

14

Suipuads xa|4 99Aojdwg :9s0ding
HdV %S00 1e 1sau93u|
(909T.) yueg 1sampiA 15414

pun4 A1a4e5 pue any :asoding
¥dV %S0°0 38 1s2133u)
(9241 4) dueg 1sampiAl 15114

suolleuoq pJeogalods NZ0Z ASND dU010ad :asoding

¥dv Qg1 e 153191u)
(L¥T+) 3SN1L pue yueg AluNWWo) 15414

S9AIaSaY pund |easuan :asoding
HdV %81°0 1€ 153481U]
(06T ) 15N pue sjueg AlUNWLWO? 15414

SJUNO0JJY jueg

|ejol

15aJa3u] |ejoL

leddund [ejo)

1202 ‘TE AInt
SJUBWSOAU) jJo EmEE:m
NZ0Z asn) auojoad

uondiidsaqg

T202/21/8 uo pasedaud



%69'8Y P6'0L6'6ST'L S TTLZEWPSL § 90°86T'WOLYPT S GE'00S'80L S
%000 s S - S - S A1ajes g uonuanald a4 (06) - S
%69°8Y VS TL6'LL S PI'LSTCS S 89871097 S vol (08) T1SSTLL S
%698t (4 744 S 85°609 $ 0£08T‘T S ysed Supiom (02) £8°95 S
%00'0 = S - S - S s103(oud |eude) (09) - S
%698 TE€0€£S9T S vbsozvLT S G/'SES6EE S Alunaag jeos (1s)  26°65£°9T S
%69'8Y €8'95S9MT S PUETYvST S L6'8L6°00€ S juawaunay |edpdIuniy {0S)  E€T°20SVT S o
%69'8t S9'v0E‘EVE S (9'EELT9€ S TE'8E0'SOL S uoneyodsues) (0y) TO'TL6°SE S
%6987 9'(86'T6T'T $ E8VLE'SST'T S 6TT96LvV'T S S90S 1GeQ (08) 69°0S6°LTT ¢
%69'8Y 29'78€L€6 S 8v'70L186 S 01'S80'SZ6'T S 8dueuRUlR R suonesadQ (0Z) 6/°95/°C6 S
%69°'8Y 78'€98'96ZV S €8VTSLeSY $ S9'88EvTR'e $ TV(81'sey  §
%6981 wLvLs S 85509 S 0£08TT S uoneanp3 |epads £8°9G S
%69°8Y LvLs S 85509 S 0£08T'T S asea L89S S
%69°'8Y LEVIL'S6TY S 8IETEQLSY $ S0'820°TZ8'8  $ Jensay L9°EL0'STY S
[euonesnps (0T)
T LZEVYSL  $ SE'00S'80L S
alA 9leq papuaixg uon
P30 01 P30 03 duejeg 0} PaAIDIDY |e10 unowy |ejo pund ] ;m [ERE]
aSejuasiag paalay [ejol 3 v |e10L 1yl sadiaoay

1202 ‘1€ AInt
Ayuno) im - suondajjo) Ans xel 0zoz
NL£0Z asn) 3uoioad

¢iot T20Z/21/8 uo paiedald



%0592 756817 S 9/'667'E S 8T6IYY S 9/'667'E S
%00°0 = S - S : S Aiajes 13 uonuaaald all4 (06) - S
%05°9¢ 2T S GE'GE S 60'8Y S voy (08) sg'se g
%05°9¢ 0T'0 S 970 $ 9¢£0 S yseDd Buppop (04) 920 S
%00°0 < S - S - $ s19lo.d |eude) (09) - S
%0S°9¢ 86°9¢ S v8vL S 7810T S Aunoag [epos (1) v8vL S
%0597 T6'ET S 9£99 S 8706 S Juawaunay [eddiuniy (0S)  9£799 $ ©
%05°9C L6°SS S ST'SST S CTIIe S uoneuodsues) {oy) SZ'SST S
%05°9¢ £C'L6T S YI'LPS S LEVPL S SOIMBS 1930 (0€) VT 4¥S S
%06°9C £€8°7GT S 96'€Ty S 6195 S adsueuajuieln 1 suonesado (0Z) 96°€Th $
%05°92 SL'6TL S 09'966°T S SE9TLT $ 09'966'T $
%0G°9C 0T'0 S 970 S 9€0 S uoriednp3 |epads 920 S
%0S°9¢ 01’0 S 970 S 9£0 S asea 9z'0 S
%0592 99°'6TL S £0966'T S €9'9TLC S Je|n3day L0°'966°T S
|euoneanp3 (0T)
CTA Y4 S 9/°667'€ S
aiA aleq papuaix3 JUOIA
PRI 03 219 03 3aueleg o] DAI9ITY |e)o unowl e}o pund :m diado
98ejuaniag 1 PaAIRdRY |er0L } Vv Ie101L SiYyl sidiaday
T20Z ‘1€ AInr

cjoc

Auno) aaxejuey - suonazjjo) AAaT Xe) 0202

NL0Z asn) auojoad

120¢/21/8 uo paledald



T40T

88'868'E 3
7 S shep Qpg uey Jaiealo
- S ovZ-11¢
- S 0TZ-181
- S 08T-TST
Py 6veT S 0ST-TZT
- $ 0Z1-16
- $ 06-19
v6v6°T S 09-1€
= S 0£-0
Suipueising sAeqg
88'868'E ¢ |ej0] jueln
av 1202/91/9 r'6v6'T $
vzl Tzoe/6t/e r'6v6T S uoleINPI JAALIQ-0LES
LG 9jeq J9yYyono unow g
sheq J0 JoquinN 18Q 13YoNoA ! v aweN weidoid
1202 ‘1€ AInt

J13)jondwo) Aq Suissaaoid Supiemy siayanop
1epdn Suipung ajeis
NZ0Z Asnd auojoad

17

T20T/¢1/8 uo paiedaud



€40 T 98e4

%S6°0T
%L0°0
%C9'T
%S€°/8

%E8L
%100
%VS0
%Yv'1s
%81
%100
%090
%9L°€ET
%CS0
%€£0°0
%620
%9¢E'8
%LE0
%00
%S0°S
%9v°0
%0T°S
%9

%0L°8C

08'v15‘28Y

120Z/21/8 uo pasedauid

08'6v8CS
0L'19¢
0L'128'L
09°'18Y'TZY

08"vTSZ8Y

N N NN

00'8S/‘LE
00°0t
00°009°C
00°/12'8kC
00'0/8'8
00°00¢
0£'968C
0T°'TO¥99
0£'66V'C
o1zt
0008€'T
S/ T9E0Y
05°26v'T
00°St6
STT9EVT
00'0£€2°T
05'665v2
00°SPS'LT

A7 aTIR ¥ Ve R Vs Y R 2 Y Y A I 2 IR Vo I Vo A Vs Y R AR T

a8ejuaniad Sulpueising Junowy

934 jo adA| Aq 1|ds 110day 234 Suipueising

Sulpueising usdaud

934 3sIn0)
qn|2
eyl
uolnensiday

994 39sIno)
anp
19Uy
uoneinsi8ay
994 954n0)
anp
Msy1y
uollesisidasy
934 95Jn0)
qnid
vy
uoneJisi8ay
934 95Jn0)
Rl
uollesiday
934 3s5ino)
uonessiday
uoliellsi8ay
2994 Jo adA)

je101
|e1ol
[elol
[e101

¢0¢-1e0e
€c0e-Teo0c
¢¢oc-1eoc
¢c0t-1eoc
12¢0¢-0¢0¢
12¢0¢-0¢0¢
12¢02-0¢0¢
1¢02-0¢0¢
020¢-610¢
0¢0¢-610C
0¢0¢-610¢
0T0C-610¢C
610¢-810¢
610¢-810¢
610¢-810¢
810¢-£L10¢
810¢-LT0C

Jalpie3 pue £102-910C
ied) [ooyds

18



€ Jo 7 98ed

%1869
%¥e 91
%616
%SS°S
%99S
%v9°€

%E8'L
%100
%¥S0
%V’ 1S
%V8'1
%¥0°0
%09°0
%9L°€T
%CS°0
%€0°0
%620
%9¢'8
%1E0
%020
%50°'S
%91°0
%01°S
%19

%0L'8¢

08’1528y

1202/2T/8 uo paJedaid

00'519'88¢
08°/9€'8/
SLT9E v
S1'86192
05'578'9¢
00°'SPSLT

08'v15'28Y

v U W N NN

008S.'/€
00'0v
00°009°C
00°LTZ'8¥T
00°0/8°8
00002
0£'968°C
0T'TOV'99
0£°66¥'C
0L°TCT
00'08€‘T
SLT9E0V
05°Z6v‘T
00°'St6

ST T9EVT
00°0£2°C
05°'S65'vT
00'SHSLT

WV N WD D DWW W

a8ejusniad  Sulpueising unowy

Jea) Aq yids yoday aa4 Suipueisinpo

BuipueisinQ 1uad3lid

|e101
|elo}
jerol
lelo]
|e101
|e10]

934 8sJno)
qanip
3NBIYIVY
uopelisi8ay
994 9s51n0)
qn|d
MYy
uoliesi8ay
934 954n0)
qnpp
NIy
uoneusigay
934 9s4no)
NBY
uollelisidoy
934 3sJno)
uolleJisiday
uonensiday

994 jo adAL

¢coc-1eoe
120¢-0¢0¢
0¢0¢Z-610C
6T0C-810¢
810¢-L10¢
L10¢-910¢

¢c0z-1¢oc
€C0e-1e0C
¢eoe-t1eoe
[A4V e R4V
170¢-020¢C
1¢0¢-0¢0¢C
120¢-0¢0¢
120¢-0¢20¢
0¢0C-610¢
0¢0¢-6T0¢
0¢0z-610¢
0¢0Z-6T0¢
610¢-8T0C
610¢-810¢
610Z-810¢
810¢-£10¢
810¢-L10¢

I3l)Je3 pue /102-910¢
JedA [ooyas

19



€Jo ¢ a8eq

%86'T
%8 vy
%EBEC
%88'1T
%LE'LT
%590

%98°0
%89'6¢
%EV'ET
%619
%9E°6
%00°0
%LT0
%61°L
%v'E
%S0'C
%E0'E
%62°0
%20
%08°¢
%L1'C
%LY'T
%9C°¢C
%LC0
%0¢°0
%09°T
%0L'T
%EL0
%CC'T
%01°0
%CE0
%€9'T
%C8'T
%LL0
%E0°T
%ET0
%8E'T
%0E'T
%LEOD
%9t°0

%0L°8¢

08'vIS'Z8Y

120¢/21/8 uo pasedalq

08'S/S6
Op'€99°€TT
S9°€00'STT
0S°€TE'LS
0E'v64'€8
ST'HSTE

08°'b15'Z8Y

v U VN 0 NN

00'0€T'Y
05" E€6TEVT
00°'T6L V9
00°SEE'TE
05°59T°S
00'SOE'T
04°00L'vE
04'08t'9T
ov'€£86
05'0€9 7T
0S'LLE'T
08'0501
0/'92S'€T
0£'99%'01
0T's0T'L
08°'1Z6°0T
S9'162'T
00°556
000TLL
SL'€02'8
00°S¥S‘s
00°006°'S
00°58%
00°025'T
00'898°L
00'S8/'8
0000L'
05296t
00°ST9
05'%£99
0s9/2'9
00'99L°T
00vTT'C

R e L L o Ve Y Y T I s g Y Vg ¥ Y Y RV SRV NV RV R V2 JR Vo ARV NV, RV RV IRV Y SRV SRV IR AR Vo VoS L7, 8

adejuadiad Suipueising Junowy

Suipueising 1uadaly

PuUIsIg 0 1o
SHd

SHId

Jld

S3d

A-3id

PIsIg Jo 10
SHd

SHrd

did

S3d

y-a1d

PIISIg J0 10
SHd

SHrd

Jld

sid

¥-31d

PHISIA 40 1IN0
SHd

SHrd

2id

53d

W-31d

PHISIQ J0 IO
SHd

SHrd

did

s3d

N-94d

PIsId 4o N0
SHd

SHrd

Jid

s3d

0181 J0 10
SHd

SHrd

Jid

S3d
uone’oq

jelog
fexo|
|10}
|lero}
|ero1
{e101

2¢0e-120t
220¢2-120¢
¢e0e-120T
¢T0e-1¢0t
2eoez-1e0e
¢e0z-1e0e
1¢02Z-0¢0¢
T202-0¢0¢
T¢02-0¢0¢
120¢-020¢
120¢-0¢0¢
120¢2-020¢
0¢0¢-610¢
0¢0Z-610C
020¢2-6T0¢C
0¢07-6102
0207-610¢C
0207-610C
6107-810¢
610Z-810¢C
610Z-8102
610¢-810¢
610¢-810¢
6102-810¢
810¢-L10¢
8102-L10C
8T0C-LT0¢C
8T0¢-L10¢C
8T02-L10C
JallJe] pue /102-9T70C
J31l4e] pue £T0Z-9T0C
Jaljye] pue /T0Z-9T0¢C
d3lj4ej pue /T10¢-910¢C
491|e3 pue /T0T-9T0C
1ea) jooyas

uonedo Aq yds yoday a4 Suipueising

20



1d¥ d €diq mS\e0UBUI\BASAS\BUOI08A\S 1 \:

000 (61'526'%) 000 61°GZ6'Y sjeusje g sanddng  gop
000 (¥6°02Z8'EYH) 000 ¥6'0Z8'stY SadIAIOG PISEYDING gog
000 (re'101'2) 000 ve'lol'e spyeuag 2afojldw ooz
000 (Le2ri9'Lg) 000 LZr19'ls saueles ool
puny o0 000 000 o0 punj adjnss 1920 0€
000 000 000 000 spsafqo 8Y10 009
pund 600 ®resose) . o000 orteoser pung asueuajuiepy g suonesado 0z
000 (86°'9%9'1) 000 26°9v9'L wowdinbg pazyjendes-uoN gz
000 (00'z6l'€) 000 00Z6L'E s199Iq0 190 009
000 (00'128'2) 000 00'LLE'L Kepno {endes  gos
000 (09'8v0'92) 000 09'840'92 sjesoje @ saddng ooy
000 (Zrv¥6'8L) 000 Y Y68l $20IMIOG paseyaInd oo
000 (19z86'6) 000 19'286'6 sjyeusg ssholdw ooz
000 ($5°205°19) 000 G5'20S'L9 saueles QoL .
puny 000 000 000 000 pung ANAndY Juspnig pajoMIssy Ll N
000 000 000 000 s192190 15U10 009
pung 000 (c6608016) 000 €0698916 pung [euonesnps 0}
000 000 000 000 swjousg uoneulLal  gog
000 000 000 000 juswdinb3 paziendes-uoN gz
000 (9220e'21) 000 9/'20£'Z) s199[q0 J9I0 009
000 000 000 000 Kepno jenden ggg
000 (6e'6EL'LY) 000 BE6EL LY sieuolew 9 sanddng  ggp
000 (06'956'9%) 000 06'956'9p S80IAJaG PASEYING Qo
000 (eozee'eLl) 000 Z9ZeCeL) sweuag sofoldwy  goz
000 (o1'ee1'29) 000 91'8€1'/€9

sallejes o0l

JaguInN
1REpNY NSy AUAIDY (LA

% Tl ﬁ

L0Z# ASNO 3INOLOAd
Wavrsve:€  1202/20/80 -pajulyd
120Z/LE/L 4o se Loday

210 | obeg }9)oed pieog Joj oday dx3




1dY'd”£dig mg\eoueUINGASQS\BUOI0\S 1\:A

LZ02/LE/L o se Loday
ZJo z abey

puny

pungy

puny

pung

pung

pung

pund

—_—

—_—

000 (T6989'1S9'1) 000 16989°159°F
000 560 900 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

000 000 000 000

00'0 000 000 000

000 (0L 8LV ve) 000 0L8lvve
000 (02°82%'v2) 000 04'8.p'¥T

000 Teveersy) 000 SV ECH 61

000 (svezi'sl) 000 8y ezl '6l

000 Willescos) 000 ¥Ilz6208
000 000 00'0 000

000 (00°09) 000 0009

000 000 000 000

15bpng

:|lejol Hoday
pung fjajes pue uonuarald a4
fenno jepden
syausg #dfojdwy
pung juswbpnr pue Ayunww poy
$821AJ8g paseyoungd
pung yse buppop
s199[q0 Jou10
puny sjoafosd rended

s)3lgo s8u10
(vo14d)
pun4 aseaipayy @ funoes erdog

s)yaueg aalojdwg

(34W1) punj juswaigay jediouny
sjyauag askojdwy

pundg uonepodsue.|

yawdinb3 pazijendes-uoN
s13[q0 Joylo

Kepno jenden

06

00§

00z

08

00¢
0L

22

009

09

009

1S

00c
05

00z
ov
00.
009
005
1BGUINN

WINoJdYy ajels

uonduosaq

0 pung uonepodsued)

L02# ASNO INOLO3d
WNdPG¥E€  1202/€0/80 -pelulid

}9)joed pJeogq J0j poday "dx3g



PEOTONE COMMUNITY DISTRICT 207-U
IMPREST FUND
7/29/2021

Balance Brought Forward $ 15,000.00

Disbursements $ 1,141.69
10 Ed Fund $ -
20 Building $
30 Debt Service Fund or Fund Group S -
40 Transportation S
50 I.M.R.F/ Soc. Sec. Fund $

S

80 Tort Immunity and Judgment Fund
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS $ 1,141.69

BALANCE ON HAND $ 15,000.00

23



Page 1 of 1

Paid Accounts Payable (Fund Summary)

Printed: 07/29/2021 2:09:08PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 7/1/2021 to 7/31/2021

Hescription

10 Educational Fund

707 1,141.69

Report Total $1,141.69

Specialized Data Systems, Inc.
D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP7F.RPT

24



Bills Payable Page 1 of 1

Printed: 07/29/2021 1:38:12PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 7/1/2021 to 7/31/2021

Vandol

FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC

PHS SCIENCE GENERAL SUPPLIES 701 112.24  10-1130-410-31-13
$112.24
IASA
INFORMATION SERVICES SOFTWARE 703 275.00 10-2630-470
$275.00
NASRO
SRO DUES AND FEES 702 40.00 10-2546-640
$40.00
OHOTZKE, TASHA
PES IMP OF INST TITLE It PROF DEVELOPME 706 500.00 10-2210-312-11-98
$500.00
PEOTONE POSTMASTER
FISCAL SERVICES COMMUNICATION 707 55.00 10-2520-340
$55.00
UNCLAIMED PROPERTY DIVISION
FOOD SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 704 1245 10-2560-410
BOE SERVICES MISCELLANEOUS OBJECTS 704 50.00 10-2310-690
FOOD SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 704 10.50 10-2560-410
FOOD SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 704 3.15 10-2560410
FOOD SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 704 135 10-2560-410
FOOD SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 704 5.05 10-2560-410
PHS TEXTBOOKS 704 12.00 10-1130-420-31
PHS AGRICULTURE GENERAL SUPPLIES 704 64,95 10-1446-410-31-01
$159.45

Report Total $1,141.69

Specialized Data Systems, Inc. 25
D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP06.RPT



bxay
T

<

4| PEOTONE

[ ate o
by
L

District Office
Peotone, IL 60468
Tel: 708-258-0991
Fax: 208-258-0994

www.peotoneschools.org

ADMINISTRATION
Mr. Steve Stein
Superintendent

Dr. Charles Vitton
Assistant Superintendent

Mr. Trevor Moore
Chief School Business Official

Mrs. Amy Loy
Special Education

BOARD OF EDUCATION
Tara Robinson
President

Richard Uthe
Vice President

Jennifer Moe
Secretary

Roger Bettenhausen
Trustee

Jodi Becker
Trustee

Dawn Love
Trustee

Tim Stoub
Trustee

To: Board of Education

From:

RE: SCHEDULE OF BILLS (AUGUST 2021)

Date:  August 12,2021

Trevor |. Moore, Chief School Business Official

The attached Treasurer’s monthly report is a summary of the district’s schedule of bills

to be paid.

This report is presented to you for your approval and action at the August 16, 2021

Board of Education Meeting.

(10) Educational
(20) Operations & Maintenance
(40) Transportation

(80) Tort Immunity & Judgement

$ 240,502.08
$ 258,076.22
$ 6,654.14

$ 134,613.59

Total Bills Payable

$ 639,846.03

/s/

Trevor J. Moore
Chief School Business Official
Peotone CUSD 207U

26

Tara Robinson
Board President
Peotone CUSD 207U

Jennifer Moe
Board Secretary
Peotone CUSD 207U




Bills Payable Page 1 of 12

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

Vendaol

unt Numba

8 TO 10 MEDIA

PHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG SOFTWARE 10 750.00  10-1500-470-31
$750.00
815 MULCHIT
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SL 10 1,565.00 20-2540-410-11
T $1565.00
AIRGAS USA LLC
PUPIL TRANS SERV RENTALS 10 269.93  40-2550-410
PUPIL TRANS SERV RENTALS 10 5.57  40-2550-325
PUPIL TRANS SERV RENTALS 10 93.00 40-2550-325
PUPIL TRANS SERV RENTALS 10 93.00 40-2550-325
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES RENTALS 10 5.57  20-2540-325-31
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES RENTALS 10 93.00 20-2540-325-31
T $560.07
AMPLIFIED IT LLC
INFORMATION SERVICES SOFTWARE 10 679.20  10-2630-470
T $679.20
ANTHONY ROOFING TECTA AMERIC
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERV CAP QUTLAY BUIl 10 24,375.00  20-2540-530-31
$24,375.00
AQUA ILLINOIS, INC.
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERV WATER/SE 10 23.92  20-2540-370-51
DISTRICT O&M OF PLANT SERVICES WATER 10 23.93  20-2540-370
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES WATER/SEW 10 3113 20-2540-370-11
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES WATER/SEW 10 19.26  20-2540-370-31
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES WATER/SEV 10 31.13  20-2540-370-21
BUS BARN O&M OF PLANT SERVICES WATE! 10 24.94  20-2540-370
$154.31
AREA SALT & CHEMICAL INC
PUPIL TRANS SERV GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 44.94  40-2550-410
$44.94
AT&T
PIC TECHNOLOGY PURCHASED SERVICES 10 101.80  10-2630-340-61
CSC TECHNOLOGY PURCHASED SERVICES 10 50.93  10-2630-340-51
PHS TECHNOLOGY PURCHASED SERVICES 10 101.80  10-2630-340-31
PJHS TECHNOLOGY PURCHASED SERVICES 10 101.80  10-2630-340-21
PES TECHNOLOGY PURCHASED SERVICES 10 101.80  10-2630-340-11
DISTRICT TECHNOLOGY PURCHASED SERV 10 50.93  10-2630-340
TECHNOLOGY PURCHASED SERVICES 10 101.62  10-2630-340
T $610.68
BEAUPRES INC
PUPIL TRANS SERV OTHER PROPERTY SER' 10 200.00  40-2550-329
$200.00
BMO HARRIS COMMERICAL CARD
PES GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 186.00  10-1110-410-11
PES GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 236.49  10-1110-410-11
Specialized Data Systems, Inc. 27

D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swi_AP06.RPT



Bills Payable Page 2 of 12

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207

113.84  10-1110-410-11

PES GENERAL SUPPLIES

PES GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 18.75  10-1110-410-11
PES GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 449.16  10-1110-410-11
PES GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 39.25 10-1110-410-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 554 10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 5.99 10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 13.79  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 28.02 10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 1,307.46  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 11.77  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 1347  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 13.77  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 14.66  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 16.62  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 16.90  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 23.98  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 3245 10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 90.93  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 4.99  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 15.79  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 21.18  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 169.00  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 271.18  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 604.48  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 563 10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 6.09 10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 7.58  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 1341 10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 15.54  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 7,973.96  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 590 10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 11.95  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 17.26  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 29.99  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 2,385.50 10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 715.28  10-1110-420-11
PES TEXTBOOKS 10 203.84  10-1110-420-11
PJHS GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 295.00 10-1120-410-21
PJHS GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 213.08  10-1120-410-21
PJHS GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 433.18  10-1120-410-21
PJHS TEXTBOOKS 10 1,420.00  10-1120-420-21
PJHS NON-CAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT 10 1,628.95  10-1120-700-21
CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 22.34  10-1125-410-51
CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 3240 10-1125-410-51
CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 490.26  10-1125-410-51
CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 565.3¢  10-1125-410-51
CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 29.06  10-1125410-51
CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 127.92  10-1125-410-51

Specialized Data Systems, Inc.

D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP08.RPT 28



Bills Payable

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

[ptio
CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES

CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES

CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES

CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES

CSC PRE-K GENERAL SUPPLIES

PHS ART GENERAL SUPPLIES

PHS ART GENERAL SUPPLIES

PHS SCIENCE GENERAL SUPPLIES

PHS SCIENCE GENERAL SUPPLIES

PHS SCIENCE GENERAL SUPPLIES

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS TEXTBOOKS

PHS NON-CAPITALIZED EQUIPMENT

PIC TEXTBOOKS

SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES

SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES

SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES

PJHS SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES

PHS SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES

PHS SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES

CSC PRE-K SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES
CSC PRE-K SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES
CSC PRE-K SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES
PIC SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES

PJHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG ATH GEN St
PJHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG ATH GEN SL
PJHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG ATH GEN SU
PJHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG ATH GEN SL
PJHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG ATH GEN St
PJHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG ATH GEN St
PJHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG ATH GEN SU
PJHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG ATH GEN St
PHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG ATH GEN SUI
PHS INTERSCHOLASTIC PROG ATH GEN SU!
IMP OF INST TITLE Il PROF DEVELOPMENT
IMP OF INST GENERAL SUPPLIES

PES IMP OF INST GENERAL SUPPLIES

PES IMP OF INST GENERAL SUPPLIES

PES IMP OF INST GENERAL SUPPLIES

159.62
2,644.82
124.92
1,346.06
749.99
1,867.80
23.45
7.95
7.98
21.98
708.48
508.48
8.79
100.00
128.01
179.00
59.93
399.88
(58.50)
963.23
43.96
91.93
84.34
183.14
835.01
346.60
3,699.00
46.02
343.20
268.59
50.80

Page 3 of 12

aunt Number
bl \ )

10-1125-410-51

10-1125-410-51
10-1125-410-51
10-1125-410-51
10-1125-410-51
10-1130-410-31-02
10-1130-410-31-02
10-1130-410-31-13
10-1130-410-31-13
10-1130-410-31-13
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-420-31
10-1130-700-31
10-1160-420-61
10-1200-410
10-1200-410
10-1200-410
10-1200-410-21
10-1200-410-31
10-1200-410-31
10-1200-410-51
10-1200-410-51
10-1200-410-51
10-1200-410-61
10-1500-410-21
10-1500-410-21
10-1500-410-21
10-1500-410-21
10-1500-410-21
10-1500-410-21
10-1500-410-21
10-1500-410-21
10-1500-410-31
10-1500-410-31
10-2210-312-98
10-2210-410
10-2210-410-11
10-2210-410-11
10-2210-410-11

Specialized Data Systems, Inc.
D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP06.RPT

29



Page 4 of 12

Bills Payable

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

i wunt

PES IMP OF INST SIG (TITLE 1) SUPPLIES - 10 - 26.274.62

10-2210-410-11-03

PHS IMP OF INST GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 39.80 10-2210-410-31
PIC IMP OF INST GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 686.40 10-2210-410-61
IMP OF INST DUES AND FEES 10 370.00 10-2210-640
PES BOE SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES PURCH 10 61.93 10-2316-410-11
PES PRINCIPAL SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 16.91  10-2410-410-11
PES PRINCIPAL SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 32.00 10-2410-410-11
PES PRINCIPAL SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 17.45 10-2410-410-11
PES PRINCIPAL SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 530 10-2410410-11
PES PRINCIPAL SERVICES GENERAL SUPPL! 10 24.50 10-2410-410-11
PES PRINCIPAL SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 9.99  10-2410-410-11
PES PRINCIPAL SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 46.23  10-2410-410-11
PHS PRINCIPAL SERVICES GENERAL SUPPL 10 22.90 10-2410-410-31
PJHS PRINCIPAL SERVICES DUES AND FEES 10 649.00  10-2410-640-21
PHS PRINCIPAL SERVICES DUES AND FEES 10 310.25 10-2410-640-31
DIR OF BUSINESS SUPP SERV GENERAL SU 10 21.68 10-2510-410
FISCAL SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 26.56  10-2520410
FISCAL SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 399.99  10-2520-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 40.14  10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 22.99 10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 153.17  10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 62.31  10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 2974 10-2630410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 24.21  10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 142,90 10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 212.93  10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 99.99  10-2630410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 711.62  10-2630410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 165.39  10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 272.74 10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 24.80 10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 7.80 10-2630-410
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 42,81  10-2630-410
PES INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIE 10 819.98  10-2630-410-11
PES INFORMATION SERVICES SOFTWARE 10 8,233.00 10-2630-470-11
0&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 3425 20-2540-410
Q&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 58.76 20-2540-410
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 26.46 20-2540410
0O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 35.87  20-2540-410
Q&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 129.95 20-2540-410
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 23.95 20-2540-410
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPL| 10 35.96 20-2540-410
0&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 18.00 20-2540-410
0O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 14.00 20-2540-410
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SL 10 141.94  20-2540-410-11
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SL 10 27.76  20-2540-410-11
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SL 10 249  20-2540-410-11
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL St 10 253.82  20-2540-410-11

Specialized Data Systems, Inc.

D:ATS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP06.RPT 30



Bills Payable Page 5 of 12

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

Amount State Account Numbar

65.88  20-2540-410-21

tlor

&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL S

PJHS O

PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL § 10 238.99  20-2540-410-21
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL Sl 10 231.47 20-2540-410-31
PHS Q&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SL 10 (231.47) 20-2540-410-31
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL St 10 94.77  20-2540-410-31
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENE 10 23.95 20-2540-410-51
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SU 10 16.99  20-2540-410-61
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SU 10 21.04 20-2540-410-61
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SU 10 25.12  20-2540-410-61
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SU 10 54.38  20-2540-410-61
PIC O8&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SU 10 251.97 20-2540-410-61
PES O&M OF PLANT SERV NON-CAPITALIZE 10 549.00 20-2540-700-11
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SL 10 78.30 20-2540-410-31
PUPIL TRANS SERV GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 18.20 40-2550-410

PUPIL TRANS SERV MISCELLANEOUS OBJE( 10 60.00 40-2550-690

PUPIL TRANS SERV MISCELLANEOUS OBJE( 10 60.00 40-2550-690

$81,391.47
CAMELOT THERAPEUTIC SCHOOLS

PHS K-12 SPECIAL EDUCATION TUITION 10 1,570.72  10-1912-670-31
$1,570.72
CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC
PHS INTERNAL SERVICES RENTAL 10 998.40 10-2570-325-31
PJHS INTERNAL SERVICES RENTAL 10 499.20  10-2570-325-21
PES INTERNAL SERVICES RENTAL 10 998.40  10-2570-325-M1
$2,496.00
CENGAGE LEARNING
PHS TEXTBOOKS 10 1,176.00  10-1130-420-31
$1,176.00
CHENOWETH, KELLY
PES BOE SERVICES REIMBURSEMENT OF D 10 250.00 10-2310-222-11
$250.00
CHROMEBOOKPARTS.COM
028229 INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 144.95 10-2630410
$144.95
COMED
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECTRICITY 10 221.04  20-2540-466-61
BUS BARN 0&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECT 10 74.70  20-2540-466
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECTRICIT 10 269.47  20-2540-466-11
PHS Q&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECTRICIT® 10 4,916.29  20-2540-466-31
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELEC 10 125.68 20-2540-466-51
DISTRICT O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECTF 10 125.69 20-2540-466
PJHS Q&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECTRICI 10 903.89  20-2540-466-21
$6,636.76

CONSOLIDATED FLOORING OF CHIt
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHASI 10 3,805.93  20-2540-390-61

$3,805.93
CONSTELLATION NEW ENERGY GA

Specialized Data Systems, Inc.

D:\ATS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP06.RPT 31



Bills Payable Page 6 of 12

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

Vehdor Nam

atale Account NuUn

PIC O&M OF PLANT SERVICES NATURAL GA! . 10 514.63  20-2540-465-61

CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERVICES NATU 10 370.64  20-2540-465-51
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES NATURAL G4 10 1,660.99  20-2540-465-31
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES NATURAL G 10 1,161.55  20-2540-465-21
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES NATURAL GA 10 593.37  20-2540-465-11
BUS BARN O&M OF PLANT SERVICES NATUF 10 187.82  20-2540-465
DO O&M OF PLANT SERVICES NATURAL GA¢ 10 370.64 20-2540-465

$4,859.64
CONTINUUM PEDIATRIC NURSING

PIC OTHER PROF SERVICES (NURSE) 10 1,650.00  10-2134-319-61
$1,650.00
DEPKE
PHS AGRICULTURE GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 26.10  10-1446-410-31-01
$26.10
FIER, MANDI
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHASI 10 675.00  20-2540-390-61
$675.00
GOLDY LOCKS INC
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 150.00  20-2540-390-31
0O&M OF PLANT SERVICES OTHER PURCHAS 10 94,75  20-2540-390
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PU 10 94.75  20-2540-390-51
$339.50
GORDON FOOD SERVICE INC
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SL 10 429.42  20-2540-410-31
$429.42
HERITAGE FS INC
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GASOLINE/DIESE 10 117.49  20-2540-464
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GASOLINE/DIESE 10 634.51  20-2540-464
PUPIL TRANS SERV GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 916.34  40-2550-410
PUPIL TRANS SERV GASOLINE/DIESEL 10 2,0861.13 40-2550-464

$3,729.47
HIMES, PETRARCA & FESTER, ATTC

BOE SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 60.00 10-2310-318
BOE SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 180.00 10-2310-318
INFORMATION SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 90.00 10-2630-318
BOE SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 210.00 10-2310-318
BOE SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 90.00 10-2310-318
SPEC ED LEGAL SERVICES 10 82.50 10-1200-318
INFORMATION SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 300.00 10-2630-318
FISCAL SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 150.00  10-2520-318
SPEC ED LEGAL SERVICES 10 137.50  10-1200-318
INFORMATION SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 500.00 10-2630-318
BOE SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 330.00 10-2310-318
BOE SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 210.00 10-2310-318
BOE SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 60.00 10-2310-318
BOE SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10 120.00 10-2310-318
SPEC ED LEGAL SERVICES 10 5500 10-1200-318
Specialized Data Systems, Inc. 32

D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP06.RPT



Page 7 of 12

Bills Payable

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

Jescrl o] 1 . b i -

SPEC ED LEGAL SERVICES

10-1200-318

SPEC ED LEGAL SERVICES 10-1200-318
SPEC ED LEGAL SERVICES 10-1200-318
FISCAL SERVICES LEGAL SERVICES 10-2520-318
$3,365.00
HUDSON ENERGY SERVICES LLC
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECTRICITY 10 218.75  20-2540-466-61
BUS BARN O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECT 10 60.88  20-2540-466
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECTRICIT 10 201,60 20-2540-466-11
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECTRICIT® 10 5,203.34  20-2540-466-31
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELEC 10 101.18  20-2540-466-51
DISTRICT O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECTF 10 101.18  20-2540-466
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES ELECTRICN 10 664.84  20-2540-466-21
$6,551.77
HYGIENEERING INC
PIC RISK MAN OTHER PROF SERVICES 10 4,050.00 80-2365-319-61
PIC RISK MAN OTHER PROF SERVICES 10 3,250.59  80-2365-319-61
$7,309.59
ITHAKA
PHS EDUCATIONAL MEDIA SERV GENERAL € 10 1,560.00  10-2220-410-31
PHS EDUCATIONAL MEDIA SERV GENERAL § 10 (78.00) 10-2220-410-31
$1,482.00
J.W. PEPPER & SON INC
PJHS MUSIC GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 146.99  10-1120-410-21-12
$146.99
JOLIET PUBLIC SCHOOLS
PHS SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 23.00 10-1200-410-31
T $23.00
JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD
028187 PHS EDUCATIONAL MEDIA SERV GENERAL £ 10 3,147.10  10-2220-410-31
028188 PJHS EDUCATIONAL MEDIA SERV GENERAL 10 3,501.30  10-2220-410-21
028189 PIC EDUCATIONAL MEDIA SERV GENERAL Si 10 3,223.77  10-2220-410-61
028190 PES EDUCATIONAL MEDIA SERV GENERAL & 10 3,580.17  10-2220-410-11
$13,452.34
JUSTRITE SPIRIT SUPPLIES
PHS GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 203,68  10-1130-410-31
T $293.68
KORELLIS ROOFING, INC.
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERV CAP OUTL 10 54,460.35 20-2540-530-51
0&M OF PLANT SERV CAP OUTLAY BUILDINC 10 54,460.35 20-2540-530
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERV CAP OUTL 10 28,091.70  20-2540-530-51
O&M OF PLANT SERV CAP QUTLAY BUILDING 10 28,091.70  20-2540-530
$165,104.10
LEXIA LEARNING SYSTEMS LLC
028167 INFORMATION SERVICES SOFTWARE 10 9,000.00  10-2630-470
$9,000.00

Specialized Data Systems, Inc.

D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swi_AP06.RPT e



Page 8 of 12

Bills Payable

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

e

JUmb

MARQUEZ PAINTING

0&M OF PLANT SERVICES OTHER PURCHAS 10 550.00  20-2540-390
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PU 10 560.00 20-2540-390-51
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 500.00  20-2540-390-31
$1,600.00
MCGRAW-HILL SCHOOL EDUCATIOI
0273782 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER Il 10 19.61  10-1200-420-86
027378-2 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER If 10 12216 10-1200-420-86
0273782 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER II 10 3174 10-1200-420-86
0273782 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER Ii 10 344.88  10-1200-420-86
027378-2 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER II 10 4110 10-1200420-86
0273782 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER Il 10 54012 10-1200-420-86
0273782 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER Il 10 4241 10-1200-420-86
0273782 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER Il 10 565.35  10-1200-420-86
0273782 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER Il 10 79191  10-1200420-86
0273782 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER I 10 456273 10-1200-420-86
0273782 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER i 10 5800.68 10-1200-420-86
0273782 SPEC ED TEXTBOOKS - ESSER I 10 6,331.68  10-1200-420-86
T $19.194.07
MENARDS - BRADLEY -
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SU 10 17812 20-2540-410-11
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 9848  20-2540410
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 183.08  20-2540410
0&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 27.84  10-1100-211
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 4770 20-2540410
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 122.80  20-2540-410
T $658.12
MIDLAND PAPER
2022210002 CSC PRE-K INTERNAL SERVICES GENERAL ¢ 10 14150  10-2570-410-51
2022210002 DISTRICT INTERNAL SERVICES GENERAL S 10 14150  10-2570410
2022210002 PIC DISTRICT INTERNAL SERVICES GENERA 10 638.84  10-2570-410-61
2022210002 PES DISTRICT INTERNAL SERVICES GENER/ 10 1,40053  10-2570-410-11
2022210002 PJHS DISTRICT INTERNAL SERVICES GENEF 10 1617.35  10-2570-410-21
2022210002 PHS DISTRICT INTERNAL SERVICES GENER, 10 218146  10-2570-410-31
T $6,021.18
MIDWEST INTEGRATED SOLUTIONS
CSC 0&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 17.50  20-2540-390-51
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 35.00  20-2540-390-31
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHA 10 3500  20-2540-390-21
PES O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 35.00  20-2540-390-11
D.0. O8M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 17.50  20-2540-390
$140.00
MIDWEST TRANSIT EQUIPMENT
PUPIL TRANS SERV GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 146412 40-2550410
$1,464.12
MONROE PEST CONTROL CO INC
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHASI 10 48.00  20-2540-390-61

Specialized Data Systems, Inc. 34
D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP06.RPT



Bills Payable Page 9 of 12

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

Vendar Name

PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHA 20-2540-390-21

CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PU 10 48.00 20-2540-390-51
PES O8M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 48.00  20-2540-390-11
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 55.00 20-2540-390-31
$247.00

NAPA AUTO PARTS MANTENO
PUPIL TRANS SERV GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 205.32 40-2550-410
PUPIL TRANS SERV GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 326.98 40-2550-410
PUPIL TRANS SERV GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 9948 40-2550-410

— seatze
NCS PEARSON INC
028230 INFORMATION SERVICES SOFTWARE -AIMS\ 10 2,11250 10-2630-470

$2,112.50
OREILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC

PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL St 10 4.77  20-2540-410-31
PUPIL TRANS SERV GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 76.20 40-2550-410
$80.97
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 3,743.00  20-2540-390-31
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHA 10 14054  20-2540-390-21
$3,883.54
PERFORMANCE CHEMICAL & SUPP
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENE 10 45870  20-2540-410-51
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SL 10 199.33  20-2540-410-31
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 249.82  20-2540-410
DISTRICT O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENER 10 458.70  20-2540-410
$1,366.55
PITNEY BOWES RESERVE ACCOUN
FISCAL SERVICES COMMUNICATION 10 1,000.00 10-2520-340
$1,000.00
PROVEN IT
PIC INTERNAL SERVICES OTHER PROPERTY 10 260.00 10-2570-329-61
CSC INTERNAL SERVICES OTHER PROPERT 10 40.00 10-2570-329-51
PHS INTERNAL SERVICES OTHER PROPERT 10 720.00 10-2570-329-31
PJHS INTERNAL SERVICES OTHER PROPER' 10 480.00  10-2570-329-21
PES INTERNAL SERVICES OTHER PROPERT 10 44000 10-2570-329-11
BUS BARN INTERNAL SERVICES OTHER PR( 10 20.00 10-2570-329
DISTRICT INTERNAL SERVICES OTHER PROI 10 40.00 10-2570-329
T $2,00000
PUSHCOIN INC
BOE SERVICES OTHER PURCHASED SERVIC 10 730.80  10-2310-390
T $730.80
RAILS
EDUCATIONAL MEDIA SERV GENERAL SUPP 10 450.00  10-2220-410
$450.00

RIVAL5 TECHNOLOGIES CORP

Specialized Data Systems, Inc. 35
D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP06.RPT



Bills Payable Page 10 of 12

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

Vand

Amount ~aunt Nunmn

PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES COMMUNICA 10 . 98.86 20-250-340-31

PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES COMMUNIC 10 94.79  20-2540-340-21
PIC O & M TELEPHONE 10 337.91  20-2540-340-61
CSC O & M TELEPHONE 10 211.61  20-2540-340-51
PHS O & M TELEPHONE 10 1,604.64 20-2540-340-31
PJHS O & M TELEPHONE 10 929.25 20-2540-340-21
PES O & M TELEPHONE 10 802.53 20-2540-340-11
BUS BARN O & M TELEPHONE 10 126.72  20-2540-340
DISTRICT OFFICES O & M TELEPHONE 10 211.19  20-2540-340
INFORMATION SERVICES GEN SUPPLIES 10 140.00 10-2630-410
T 9455750
RIVERSIDE WORKFORCE HEALTH
PUPIL TRANS SERV OTHER PURCHASED SE 10 100.00 40-2550-390
PUPIL TRANS SERV OTHER PURCHASED SE 10 95.00 40-2550-390
PUPIL TRANS SERV OTHER PURCHASED SE 10 95.00 40-2550-390
PUPIL TRANS SERV OTHER PURCHASED SE 10 95.00 40-2550-390
~ $385.00

ROY ERIKSON OUTDOOR MAINTEN.
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERV CAP OUTLAY BU 10 11,075.00  20-2540-530-21

$11,075.00
SAFE ENVIRONMENTAL CORPORAT

PIC O&M OF PLANT SERV CAP OUTLAY BUIL 10 3,560.00 20-2540-530-61
$3,560.00
SAVVAS LEARNING COMPANY LLC
028170 PHS TEXTBOOKS 10 160.53  10-1130-420-31
028170 PHS TEXTBOOKS 10 2,15046 10-1130-420-31
$2,300.99
SCHOLASTIC
CHIRICO PJHS TEXTBOOKS 10 269.70  10-1120-420-21
$269.70
SCHUBBE, SHERI C
PIC EDUCATIONAL MEDIA SERV GENERAL S! 10 52.65 10-2220-410-61
PES EDUCATIONAL MEDIA SERV GENERAL € 10 19.54  10-2220-410-11
$72.19
SDI INNOVATIONS
PHS TEXTBOOKS 10 3,420.51 10-1130-420-31
PJHS TEXTBOOKS 10 2,280.34  10-1120-420-21
$5,700.85
SEESAW LEARNING, INC
PES INFORMATION SERVICES SOFTWARE 10 1,925.00 10-2630-470-11
$1,925.00
SELF
RISK MANAGEMENT INSURANCE 10 127,304.00 80-2365-380

$127,304.00

SENTINEL TECHNOLOGIES INC
INFORMATION SERVICES OTHER PURCH SE 10 225.00 10-2630-390

Specialized Data Systems, Inc. 36
D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP06.RPT



Page 11 of 12

Bills Payable

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

Override  Batcl " State Accc

INFORMATION SERVICES OTHER PURCH SE 225,00 10-2630-390
T 345000
SOWIC
PES PMTS FOR SPECIAL ED PROF SERV - IN 10 1,313.99  10-4120-314-11
PHS PMTS FOR SPECIAL ED PROF SERV - IN 10 3,941.97  10-4120-314-31
PIC PMTS FOR SPECIAL ED PROF SERV - IN¢ 10 15,147.77  10-4120-314-61
CSC PRE-K PMTS FOR SPECIAL ED PROF SE 10 10,000.00  10-4120-314-51
PHS PMTS FOR SPECIAL ED PROF SERV - IN 10 30,000.00  10-4120-314-31
PJHS PMTS FOR SPECIAL ED PROF SERV - || 10 10,000.00  10-4120-314-21
PES PMTS FOR SPECIAL ED PROF SERV - IN 10 5,158.00 10-4120-314-11
$75,561.73
SPARTAN AUTO GLASS
PUPIL TRANS SERV OTHER PURCHASED SE 10 250.00 40-2550-390
$250.00
SPECIALIZED DATA SYSTEMS
FISCAL SERVICES SUPPLIES 10 325.00 10-2520-410
$325.00
STALKER SPORTS FLOORS
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 4,300.00 20-2540-390-31
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHA 10 3,200.00 20-2540-390-21
$7,500.00
STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 389.97 10-1200-410
SPEC ED GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 869.97  10-1200-410
$1,259.94
STAR DISPOSAL SERVICE
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERVICES SAN SERV 10 256.71  20-2540-321-61
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERVICES SAN ¢ 10 55.06 20-2540-321-51
DISTRICT O&M OF PLANT SERVICES SANIT: 10 55.06 20-2540-321
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES SANITATIOM 10 485.81  20-2540-321-21
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES SANITATION 10 304.44  20-2540-321-11
BUS BARN PLANT SERVICES SANITATION Si 10 67.37 20-2540-321
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES SANITATION 10 744.92  20-2540-321-31
$1,969.37
STUDIES WEEKLY
028168 PIC TEXTBOOKS 10 815.00 10-1160-420-61
028168 PIC TEXTBOOKS 10 815.00  10-1160-420-61
T $1,63000
THE VEDETTE INC
BOE SERVICES MISCELLANEQUS OBJECTS 10 40.00 10-2310-690
BOE SERVICES MISCELLANEOUS OBJECTS 10 55.00 10-2310-690
$95.00
T-MOBILE
SPEC ED COMMUNICATION 10 8.96 10-1200-340
SPEC ED COMMUNICATION 10 71.14  10-1200-340
$80.10
Specialized Data Systems, Inc. 37

D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP06.RPT



Page 12 of 12

Bills Payable

Printed: 08/12/2021 3:17:50PM
PEOTONE CUSD #207
Expense on Date: 8/1/2021 to 8/31/2021

TRINITY SERVICES

PHS K-12 SPECIAL EDUCATION TUITION 10 2,180.60 10-1912-670-31

$2,190.60
UNIVERSAL LIGHTING OF AMERICA

0&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 188.75  20-2540-410
T $18875
VERIZON
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERVICES COMMUNICA™ 10 2532 20-2540-340-61
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERVICES COMM 10 26.43  20-2540-340-51
PHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES COMMUNICA 10 26.43  20-2540-340-31
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES COMMUNIC 10 2643  20-2540-340-21
PES O&M OF PLANT SERVICES COMMUNICA 10 26.43  20-2540-340-11
BUS BARN PLANT SERVICES COMMUNICATIH 10 26.43  20-2540-340
0&M OF PLANT SERVICES COMMUNICATION 10 58.95 20-2540-340
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES COMMUNICATION 10 58.95 20-2540-340
$275.37
VITAL LAWNCARE AND LANDSCAPI
PIC O&M OF PLANT SERYV OTHER PURCHASI 10 500.00 20-2540-390-61
CSC PRE-K O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PU 10 170.00  20-2540-390-51
PHS 0&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 460.00  20-2540-390-31
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHA 10 1,220.00 20-2540-390-21
PES O&M OF PLANT SERV OTHER PURCHAS 10 740.00  20-2540-390-11
DO O&M OF PLANT SERVICES OTHER PURC 10 170.00  20-2540-390
T $3,260.00
WHITMORE ACE HARDWARE SUPPI
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 24.99  20-2540-410
PJHS O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL § 10 7.18  20-2540-410-21
PUPIL TRANS SERV GENERAL SUPPLIES 10 14.93  40-2550-410
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 1.69 20-2540-410
Q&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 48.27 20-2540-410
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 2.78  20-2540-410
O&M OF PLANT SERVICES GENERAL SUPPLI 10 417  20-2540-410
$104.01
WILL COUNTY TREASURER
PROPERTY TAXES 18-13-28-200-014-0000 10 297.42  20-2540-690
T $207.42
WILL COUNTY
BOE SERVICES MISCELLANEOUS OBJECTS 10 819.25  10-2310-690
PUPIL TRANS SERV PROF DEVELOPMENT 10 10.00  40-2550-312
T $82925

Report Total $639,846.03

Specialized Data Systems, Inc.

D:\TS\Peotone\SDSv8\Finance\Swf_AP06.RPT 38



1d¥'d 2dig M\ AINIOW\gAS S\BUo09d\S 1 \:d

80°201'% oL'8v2'y (20'111) 000 10°L¥) 000 20V vh TWONNOD LNIANLS SH b1
oL oLt 000 000 000 000 000 BN HSINVAS SHd %1
z6'961°L 267961°} 000 000 000 000 000 TIVEL40S STHID SH]  Sh
69°0.9' 69'161'S (00°1.25) 000 00425 000 00125 WV31 TIVEAITIOA STHIO SHa L
(05°09) (05°09) 000 000 000 000 000 €202 40 SSVID SHd  £vl
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 WNINOLIONY SHd 2V}
9z'l6 9z'16 000 000 000 000 000 WV31 96 STHID SHd  LbL
£6'€22'L €662’} 000 000 000 000 000 SYIAVITYIIHO SHd OFL
ECEVL'Y EEEVL'Y 000 000 000 000 000 MOVHLSHd 6E}
20'822"} L02ee’L (00'+5) 000 005 000 00'+5 WVYOO0Nd 3ALLNIONI NOIAVHIA SHrd 8¢l
8LY18 BLYLB 000 000 000 000 000 JTIVSTY HOIL VINLSNANI LEL
g1208°€ S1L208°€ 000 000 000 000 000 OILFIHIV TVHINIO SHd  9€L
0S'LL¥'2 052122 00002 00002 000 00007 000 dWVD BIWWNS TTVELNSYE SAOS SHd  SE
1505 15%05 000 000 000 000 00’0 WVIL 1IvE13NSVE SAOE SHd  vEL
20254 2028k 000 000 000 000 000 T1va3sve SAOE SHd  €EL
0998 09°98 000 000 000 000 000 ONITMOSE SHd  ZEL m,u
86°502 86'502 000 000 000 000 000 $310aN9 LS38 SHd  1E1
09°0€L'y 09°08L'y 000 000 000 000 000 VSN STUNS SHd  0€l
99'68 9968 000 000 000 00'0 000 SLMOdS GIAIHNN SIIWATO TVIOAdS SHd  6ZL
96°EEE’E 96'EEEE 000 000 000 000 000 AVENNVILNI Old 821
24'69L'} 21'691'} 000 000 000 000 000 4109 SHd  ZZL
58'Z60'} S8'260°L 000 000 000 000 000 TIVEL3INSVE SAOE SHrd 921
19°290'2) 18°292'z) (00°002) 000 00002 000 00002 Y34 SHd ¥Z)
¥i'204 yL 201 000 000 000 000 000 M1 JUNLIND TYNOLLYNYILNI SHd €21
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 020Z 40 SSV12 SHd  0Z1
6L'GLE 8LGLE 000 000 000 000 000 600Z 40 SSVIO SHd 611
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 §20Z 40 SSV1D SHd S1L
00°0+9 0009 00°0 000 000 000 000 ¥20Z 40 SSVID SHd ¥l

aouejeg aoue(eg afueyq anuaAay asuadxy anusaay asuadxg

weuny Bunjeig aouejeg puny  sjeq o) Jea, ajeq o] 1ea,s s Uluow S yiuow uondussag

IaquINp JUN020Y
YLl $Z0Z 40 SSV1I SHd
N-20Z usia Aoy suojosd
Nd6¥:L¥'E  1202/21/80 :Palulid
L20Z/LE/L O} LZ0Z/L/L ‘ebuey sjeq

p10 | oBeg KuQ aAnoy) poday asuejeg pung AjAnoy




1d¥'d 2dig IMS\VAIAIOWIBAS S\BU0I09d\S 1\

€€'961 £€°961 000 000 000 000 000 aNvE Oild 081
SY'8I9'Y Sy'819'y 000 000 000 000 000 MOOENVIA SHrd 811
YE'¥65'e ¥€'¥6S'C 000 000 000 000 000 TUINNOD LNIANLS SHrd  ZLL
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 N0 IONVSSIVNIY S/
62'991 62'991 000 000 000 000 000 SNYOHD SHrd PLL
0€'989'L 0£'989'L 000 000 000 000 000 aNvE SHrd €21
BE¥L 8EPL 000 000 000 000 000 S¥IAVITNIIHO SHrd L1
vL9LL'Y v2IoLL'y 000 000 000 000 000 LINNODOV SAILIAILOY SHId 01
66°108 66'108 000 000 000 000 000 SNOISSIONOD JILTTHLY SHrd 69}
{(wooy

005/} 00'S.L 000 000 000 000 000 LHOI3M) TVINOWIW ¥INLAVOWAVE 3NV g0}
68°L6 68°16 000 000 000 000 000 IMOS JLLSVIOHIS SHd 991
Lad 14 LA 000 000 000 000 000 SUNINNS ONIIVIN SONIINS Oid 491
90°0€€ 90°0€€ 000 000 000 000 000 SNVIJSIHL SHd €91
9.6 9L vEY 0009 00'09 000 0009 000 AMLNNOD SSOND SHId 91
8E'9EL BE9EL 000 000 000 000 000 YNVYA OId 191
levre'eL Po9¥S'vL (z¥°20e'2) 000 1Y'20e'T 000 YAXA1owA SLYV ONINYOJNId 09} M
86'V66'C 86'¥66'C 000 000 000 000 000 NN dOd SHd 651
80°165'S 8v'8LL's (ov'221) 00°000'L ovlel'L 00'000'L ov'2ZL'L TWVEL00d4 SHd 851
[1:3:]8 [£:3: ] 000 000 000 000 000 TOOHISTUd 98D IS)
61'2€0'L 6t'2€0'L 000 000 000 000 000 ALFID0S YONOH TVNOILYN 951
$0'G.S LTAN (00°052) 000 007052 000 0005 YIOHO MOHS SHd ¢Sl
¥1°982 ¥.'982 000 000 000 000 000 YIOHD SHd  ¥51
96'LEV'L 96'LEY'L 000 000 000 000 000 ONVE SHd €51
12510'8 11°6L0'8 000 000 000 000 000 YOOBYVIA SHd Z5L
L2%01'2 LZvov'e 000 000 000 000 000 NIWNILI3T 1S
EL'6E2'L €L'6£2'L 000 000 000 000 000 WV3IL1 3ONVA SHd  0S)
0o0'le 00’12 000 000 000 000 000 TIVELINSVE STHID SHrd  6vi
00'0 000 000 000 000

000 000 TIVE3ISYE SHId  8pi

asuejeg aosuejeg aBuey) anuanay asuadxy EL{ETY-$Y] asuadx3z

LNy buumg asuejeg puny ajeq o} ieax ajeq o1 Jeay s, uow s uow uondussag 1BQUINN WNO3SY

81 17v83SVE SHrd

N-20Z 1181 AAnoy auojoad
Wd6¥:L¥'€ 120Z/Z1/80 -peuld
L20z/Le/L 01 LZ0Z/L/L ebuey ajeq

10 7 90eg AuQ aAndYy) Hoday asuejeg pung AjAnoy




Ld¥'d ™ 2dig MS\AIAow\gAS gS\aucioad\S 1\:d

000 000 000 000 000 000 000 HO33dS SHd  00%
9126 9126 000 000 000 000 000 dINVI ATWANS EX9 STHIOD SHd  00€
(44474 [74%4 000 000 000 000 000 AVN8IT S3d 612
00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000 WY1 YWVYHG ONV HOJ3AdS SHd 812
66'2€0'6 66'2€0'6 000 000 000 000 000 ¥IDI0S SA0F SHd  LiT
08°19v'y 08'tov'y 000 000 000 000 000 AMVNEIT SHd Sle
10622 L06LL 000 000 000 000 000 STvd SHfd €1z
9z iev'e 9z'lev'e 00°0 000 000 000 000 dNVD ¥IWANS Y3000S 712
€6°62L €6'62L 000 000 000 000 000 SHINS WAD 3d SHId LLZ
59012 59012 000 000 000 000 000 YOLIOUd ¥ dV SHd 012
L0°LvS'E L0°298'€ 000 000 000 000 000 VSN STIMS SHrd 602
6€'c8 6E'2Z8 000 000 000 000 000 AYVHEIT Old 80Z
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 YIIHO B4 SHd 202
$6°102 $6°102 000 000 000 000 000 ANTO HLYW SHd 502
65°GLE 65°GlLE 000 000 000 00°0 000 QVvli SHd €0z
6¥'G/6'L 6¥'626°} 000 000 000 000 000 44V1S SHd 661 M_
JAA4L Ly y\G 000 000 000 000 000 NOLLYANNO4 NOWLYONa3a 261
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 TIVELIOS STUIO SHId 961
v¥26e'9 82'09Z'9 9l'ee 91°¢e 000 8L'ge 000 LS3INIINI 61
15°625'8 166258 000 000 000 000 000 QNN TVYINO (3sn LON 0Q) €61
LE2¥6'L LEeP6'L 000 000 000 00°0 000 220T 40 SSVIO SHd  Z61
€1621 [3%-7A1 000 000 000 000 000 1202 40 SSV1D SHd 161
Stel SvelL 000 000 000 00°0 000 aNnd ALTNOVH Oid 681
z6'9l2'e 26912 000 000 000 000 000 Oid 88l
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 ONITLSIAM SHrd 981
67'0.2 602 000 000 000 000 000 3NIHSNNS §3d  s8)
ov0eL’L ob'0eL'L 000 000 000 000 000 S3d zZsi
¢1°05S 21'05G 000 000 00°0 00°0 000 3ANTONI OL 3SO0HD 181

aJuejeq aouejeq sbueyn ELDETETY asuadxy anuaaay esuadxgy

Juaing Buiueis aouefeg punj  sjeQ o) Jesp aleq o) rea, s Wuow $_uopy uondusseg JequINY Junosoy

184 3ANTONI OL 3SOOHD

N-.0z uisig AuAoy suojosd
Wd6v:Li:€  1202/Z1/80 :pajuud
1202/1E/2 0} 1202/1/L :obuey sjeq

p 1o ¢ abeg Alup aAndYy) Hoday asuejeg pung AAnoy




1d¥'d™ 2diq MS\AIABWIBASASIBUOI0a\S 1\:d

N
<
“I6¢SLcly  SL9555LL  (8L€08E) :|ejo) poday

S8'E29 g8'eeo 000 000 000 00°0 000 1¥V SHrPd 116
86'ELE'L 86°ElLe L 000 000 000 000 000 HSVYQ T1A3A SHd 606
SE'092'C §£'092'2 000 00°0 000 000 000 YIIO0S STMID SHd 206
£6°2G1 €6°251 00°0 000 000 000 00°0 AOVYL SHrd €06
GZ'089'¢ §2'089'c 000 000 00°0 000 000 ALIAILOV AV1d SHId 206
61986 61°v86 000 000 000 000 000 an71d 3DNIIOS SHd 106
£6'956'L £6'968'L 000 000 000 000 000 N0 MOOIVIA Jid 006
21666 ZL'666 000 000 000 000 000 SNOISS3ONOD STIINS SHIrd/SHd 002
18°292's 18°292's 000 000 000 000 000 AYVHEIT SHId 009
85'8LL 8S'8LL 000 00°0 000 00°0 000 SO113THLV SHIrd

3suejeg aosuejeg aBuey) ELIVETY)Y] asuadxgy anusnay asuadx3y

waung Buwueys asuejeg puny 21eQ 0) JRIL 81e(] 0] Jea, s quow s _yiuow uonduasaq

I9GINN JUNDISY

005 SOIL3THLV SHId
N-20Z 11sIa Anaioy suojoad
Wd6Y:L1:€ 1202/21/380 -pajuld
120Z/1L€/2 01 1.202/1/L :abuey ajeQ

O Aluo aAnoYy) woday asuejeg pung AiAnoy




FOR ACTION:

REPORT NO. 9:

FOR ACTION: APPROVAL OF THE TENTATIVE FY22 BUDGET
TO BE PUT ON DISPLAY.

The Board will need a motion to approve the Tentative FY22 Budget to be put on
Display for thirty (30) days as is required prior to the public hearing and final adoption
of the FY22 Budget which will be at the September 20, 2021 regular board meeting.

MOTION REQUIRED: ROLL CALL VOTE.
REPORT NO. 10:

FOR ACTION: APPROVAL OF THE DESTRUCTION OF CLOSED EXECUTIVE
RECORDINGS FROM JANUARY 2016 THROUGH JUNE 2016.

The Board will need a motion to approve the Destruction of the Closed Executive
Session Recordings from January 2016 through June 2016.

MOTION REQUIRED: ROLL CALL VOTE.
REPORT NO. 11:

FORACTION:  APPROVAL OF A COED SOCCER TEAM AT
PEOTONE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL.

The Board will need a motion to approve a Coed Soccer Team at Peotone Junior
High School. The coaching stipend amount is $2,473.17.

MOTION REQUIRED: ROLL CALL VOTE.

REPORT NO. 12:

FOR ACTION: APPROVAL OF A CHOOSE TO INCLUDE PROGRAM
COORDINATOR AT PEOTONE HIGH SCHOOL AND
PEOTONE JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL.

The Board will need a motion to approve a Choose to Include Program Coordinator
at Peotone High School and Peotone Junior High School. The Program
Coordinator stipend amount will be $2,473.17 for the high school and $2,473.17 for the

junior high.
MOTION REQUIRED: ROLL CALL VOTE.

43



i mﬁ;

Approval of the FY22 Tentative Budget
to be put on Display

44



ILLINOIS STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

X |School District School Business Services Division
Joint Agreement
Accounting Basis: SCHOOL DISTRICT/JOINT AGREEMENT BUDGET FORM *
Cash July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022
Accrual Unbalanced budget, however, a deficit
reduction plan is not required at this
time.
Date of Amended Budget: 09/20/22
(MM/DD/YY)
District Name: Peotone CUSD 207-U
District RCOT No: 56099207U26

If your FY21 AFR states that you need to do a deficit reduction plan and your FY22 budget is balanced please state the measures you took
to have your budget become balanced. (Bckgrnd-Assumpt 25-26)

Budget of Peotone CUSD 207-U , County of Will and Kankakee ,
State of llinois, for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022

WHEREAS the Board of Education of Peotone CUSD 207-U ,
County of Wil ana Kankakee + State of lllinois, caused to be prepared in tentative form a budget, and the Secretary

of this Board has made the same conveniently available to public inspection for at least thirty days prior to final action thereon;
AND WHEREAS a public hearing was held as to such budget on the 20 _ dayof September , 20 22 .,

notice of said hearing was given at least thirty days prior thereto as required by law, and ail other legal requirements have been complied with;
NOW, THEREFORE, Be it resolved by the Board of Education of said district as follows:

Section 1: That the fiscal year of this school district be and the same hereby is fixed and declared to be

beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022

Section 2: That the following budget containing an estimate of amounts available in each Fund, separately, and expenditures from each be
and the same is hereby adopted as the budget of this school district for said fiscal year.

ADOPTION OF BUDGET
The budget shall be approved and signed below by members of the School Board. Adopted this 20
day of September , 20 22 by a roll call vote of Yeas, and Nays, to wit:

** MEMBERS VOTING YEA: ** MIEMBERS VOTING NAY:

* Based on the 23 lllinois Administrative Code-Part 100 and inconformity with Section 17-1 of the School Code.

** Type in the members whe voted "YEA" nor "NAY". Actual school board member signatures are not required for electronic submission.

(1) A certified copy of this document must be filed with the county clerk within 30 days of adoption as required
by Section 18-50 of the Property Tax Code (35 ILCS 200/18-50).

(2) Districts are required to submit the adopted/amended budget electronically to ISBE within 30 days of adoption or by October 30,
whichever comes first. Budgets are submitted to School Finance Report (SFR): hitps://sec.isbe.net/attachmgr/default.aspx
Please type the member signatures before submitting to ISBE. We do not accept PDF copies.

S — e — =

ISBE SD50-36/JA50-39 SE 05/21 45
Peotone CUSD 207-U
5609920726 Page 1 56-099-207u-26_B22 Peotone CUSD 207u




Lzoz/iel/s

N0z dSNO duo10ad zza 92-NL0Z-660-95186PNg ZZAI\H

lo 0 0 0 0 0 0 000'000'T 000'00E'T e L

|0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [F] 0662 A1aymasia PRYISSEID 0N 532Un05 J3U10 | Gy
o . 0 0 0 0 0 0 006L - ) spa20sd ueoT 38S| | i
—_— ) 008L pung si3afoid PN 03 BYSURIL | B
— — 007 SpUO@ 3NUBASY UO 159J91u] ARg 01 pund 231035 1930 03 dysueiL | Zp

[ 009¢ SpUOg aNUBA3Y UO 12Idlid Ad 01 PUN4 BIAI3S gag a1 dgsuell | Ly

- 0 0052 S92 1ENHET UO 1591914 ( AR 01 pUNJ 2IIAISS 193g o1 Jagsuesl | o
[i] 00vL - saseaq |ealde) uo irdisuid wa& [o}] Hﬂ:mw 19aq o1.3)s5ueL] GE

0 = 0 = o —— — = o - “To 0 0 N e T ﬂw.m.m.«ww.xi 10y UBNIEsUFAWET 10 3jes I.wml
0 ) 0 . 0 0 0 ) 0 0ETL - P|OS SPUOE UO 153.131U] paniany e

0 0 0 0 [}] 0 0 0 ozeL B ) B p|oS spuog Lo wniward | g

0 0 0 0 0 a o 0 otzs p PIPS SPucg uo fedidiid | Gg

o ) (00z2) saNos 40 31vs| vE
o= = =i 1 ) PUN3 221351930 | £¢
OLTL | o) spasdoig o I Pug pUOg A13)BS 73 ADId 3214 PR1BJAWINIIY S593XT JO JJsuBL)
0 09TL PUNJ WO 01 5p3320.g 152133u] 73 XeL A13)e5 '3 A2.d 3114 SS3IXT JO JBJSuBL] ce
o 0STL puni NBO 01 n:‘ﬂﬂ.w.w.__.wma ﬁsn_mu wouysapsue | |g
— —— - - - _ - —_—— e e . - . - - — —— - _——— - — -

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (1] 1[4 93 R sasay) wonkw_mzﬂ._. 0t
Ty L Q 0 0 QETL N spund Buowny Jajsuel] &2
To. =, — .rou - == m = W ..m. L = 0 0 e 0 0 0zTL umw_wuc_ pung ysed Bupiom jnjsuel) | g7

0 0 ] 0 0 0 000°000°T 000'00€"T otz B  PUn3 Ysed Buriom s jo wawsreay | /7

0 OTTL _u,:i yseD Bupsiom 3yl 1UBWYS|0gY 9z
~ sannd mrw_ﬁs 0ES 833SNVEL ININVINNIE| G7 |
= = Fiee o = E SANN3 40 S35n/538N0OS Y310 €2

3 ‘seg’Bzr  |zeow |2 |teest  [wewpenr  |essuz  [wwoErrn  |zsrereT [T —- = = Sasmipuatva/muawdsingsd [ 77 |

P (1apun) 19A0 SInUBAIY/SIdIaIaY 13a1y0 JO 55993

0 isrsEx 0 £9€'829 Z5H'Z28'T LBLLEY'T Z6V'RETE PT'9L6T ) samipusdia/swawasingsia ol | |7
0 0 [] 0 0 0 0 000'000'S 08TY , Stuatihed Jieyag uo, Joy saInipuadra/sILaWasINGs|g 0¢

] L8L'9EE 0 £8£'829 shzzs’T (BT LEYT T6Y'EBTE YHT AL PT = § FHMUPIROX/SUILISNGSI 59N0 18101 | 6]

0 viz'e 0 0 0 60609 000°005 brEObE

0 0 0 0 BLESEY'T [} 0
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 SOE'EPE

- 0 0 0 0 0007
. (1] ELS'BEE 0 206’601 TSVTIe'T I6Y'88LT YIr'8ES'E
[ i . 81'81Z Tan TLOTvr's
.%..E a_>_s< it so..._s. SI8NLIGNIEXI/SINIWISINESI| O |

T zeveoy ZEQ'Y 3 viLote ZISTEST SY1'SZS T 0BK'ELTT £56'6VT 8T i T
0 0 0 0 ) 0 0 D00'000'S 966E [ Suawiked Jeuag ug, o sanuasay /aidiaday oL

4 28159 ZEO'Y 2 viL'o18 ZLS'TEST Shiazet 08b'ELT'E LSEBVTET i | SenuBAIYfRdisaY PAG [EI0L 6

o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SLE'066

0 0 0 0 0 000050t 0 0 165'6£8°T

0 0 0 0
2 |eevsey oy T vT'0t8 ZLSTBY [T 08VELT T T66'6LE DT
{spung Auapay Juspnis 1Roynm) SINNIATE/SLAIEIY
OvEy [elz |ecdsosw | teeE e16%y  [oes'v8zT  [eorisct  [swomt  |wests | ) . (spund Aumnov[ ¢ |

uapmis u:o__u_g_ TZ0Z ‘T AInf IDNVIVE aNnd GZ_ZZ_Umm Q3iLviLsa

Aunzas o z
Aajes e0s /luswamay ERTEIEMITLT Ajuo s1aquinN ajoyp 133u3 :uondudsag
1B UonuaAald a4 oL yse)y Sunpiop spafoiq [eyde) |edpiunpy uoneyodsuesy 3IALIS 1930 2 suonesadp Jeuoneinp3y H 1y
{06) (08) (0z) {09) {05) {ov) (0€) {0z) {or) 'SqD1 /T-TT A¥3153 pUD OT-5 APYIST UD 0IDP Bl 1
1 A r | H D) E] 3 ad o] 9 ki
Z abegd AJYWINS 139ang Z abed



Lcoziel/e

[o 0 0 0 0 00070501 0 0 T65°6/8T 56

| 0 0 0 0 6
|

T.. = BEGS oy 0 |z ~ [viiots wsiey  |oer'sest  [osvELE 1665701 6

| {spunJ Auanaty JUSpmIS Yaim 5320005 [iy) SINNIAIE/51413038| C6

OvE'R = ﬁ.mh. T |siL's09v TE6E | 6Iebiw | 0E6'bBZT “leoztsTT [ stemeT 8617689 - {spung Ayanow awapms Suipnpui| 1.6

| 5333008 () TZ0Z ‘T AINF IINVIVE GNN4 DNINNIDIE GILYINILLGT [830),
06
d=a 2 I R s i “adal A £55'9LT 2202 ‘0£ 3un( IINYIVE ONNJ ONIANI A3LVILSI Ananay Juapmis| 68
| : 0 h ) = T o

NZ0Z ASNO 2uolosd 728~ 92-n/02-660-95u2bpna ZZA-\H

£55'9LT

saimpuadx3/sauswasingsiq
193113 (13pUn} 19AQ SINUIAY/S)dIAdBY 33341Q JO 539X

88

[spung Annnaw 1w2pms 104) SINNIATE/SLAIZIIN
- . T puny|
TZ0Z 'L AINT IONYIVE ONNS ONINNIDIE 03LVINILST Auanay Juapms

AYVNINNS 139ang

50860€C 05066 €09'TT9'T #SE'68L9 {spuny
AuARDY JU3pnIs INOUIM) 2Z0Z ‘OE UNf IINVTVE ONNY DNIANI JILVINILLSI |
0 0 {00000¢ 7} 0 0 0 0 000'000°T 000'00E'T = © puniJosasn/s3ainos 12O [eI0L 08
0 i T 000'00£°T 0 0 0 0 o 0 )  SPundjosasnemoEwL |6/
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0668 213UMas|3 PaYISSe) 10N 5351 30 | 8/
[+ 0 (1] 0 1] 0 0168 SUBO7 3GS| UO (B Ei.mmm. 1 pung mu,.>._mm 193Q 01 J3jsuel] A
i |,~ 0 ) ) o suaalold maEn 10) Atg 01 paBpald sialsuBl| 2duUejeg pund 9/
o 0 QES8 51030014 |P1IdR] 10) Aed 0 paBpajg Sanuaray B0 ﬂ
1 [1] 0 0z88 5193[014 |11 JO) Arg 01 PIBP3|d SIUSWASINGUIdY/SIUEID .ﬂ.
__ 1] 0 0188 $123l044 [B11dR) J0) ARd OF PBIIBJSURI] S9XE] M
| (1] 0 ovL8 SpUOg 2NUAASY U0 153121u| Aed 0] pa8pald 5I9)suUeL) adue|eg pung zl
| | 0 0 0E/8 SpUOE SnUSASY UG 1531911 Aeg 01 PaBPa|d SINUIAY JRIO 1)
_ | 0 1] 0TLe 5puUOg ANUAADY L0 152431U1 Aed 01 paBpald S1UBWRsSINGUIFY /STRID M
0 4] 0148 SpUOg SNUBAIY UD 15343)U| Aeg 01 paBpa|d SaXB _.Imp
] 0 0 ov9g8 SpuCg aNuaA3y UO |Bd1DUILd Aed 01 PIBP3|d SJaJSuBl] asueleg pun4 89
0 0 0£98 SPUOg ANUDATY UO [BdIDULd ABd 01 Padpald saNUsA3Y JaYI0 /9
0 0 0798 SPpUOY 3NUBA3Y UO |2QIdUNY AB4 01 PREPR3|d SIUBWSSINGUBY/SIUBID 99
0 0 0198 spuog anuanay uo [edpulld Aed 0] padpald saxe, Go
| (1] === 1] 0 ors8 S3Sea7 [2110BD U0 152121U) ARd 01 paBpald Siajsuel| douUejeg puny a
| [¢] 1] 0 0£S8 sasea |el1de) uo 15a131u) Aed 01 pa8pald sanuanay J1au1Q 1 mlm
0 0 0 0Ess 595837 fe11de]) U0 153191U| Aeg 0) padpaid s1uAWRsINGWIRY/SILE)D | Zg
o] 0 0 0158 525837 |e1de] uo 153J3)uU| Aed 01 PaBpald saxe] d
0 ) 0 ovys $95897 |BYIUE]) UO [BdIIUL4 ARd 01 paBpa|d SIajsuel] adue|eg pund 09
| 0 [1] 0 0Eb8 $85837 |B1(ABD UO |edidulld ARd 01 padp3|d SanuUaAay 13410 65
0 0 0 [s7474:1 535897 [BII0ED UO |ediauUlld Aeg 0] paBpald SIUaWIsINGWIRY/S1uelD 86
| m lm | |.c| 0 0THR mw.m.mﬁ |e1tde) uo (ediduig Aed 0 padpald SaXB] H
i ) _ - ) DUNY 331AI3S 1030 01 SPaaI0Id | pue ﬂ
| | 018 & puog A)aJes g ADId 2114 PAIBINWNIIY SS3IXT JO J3ySUBL|
i —— ——————
1 PuUNyg INRO ©0) Spaad0ld _153J31U| B XB) )uwu_wm @ A21d 3114 §53IX3 JO Jajsuel
L s L 0918 £ T
1 L= === 0 x T W e F ST P e (O W AT 1, PR ¢ B pund W80 01 pung s199f04¢ _wmm.ulEo___ amsueiy | G
| o 0 0 0 0 0 0 [sjas:] g ePulossuen [ g
IE ¥ 0 0 0 0€T8 - = “spuny Suoury »ysuell | gg
| 0 | 0z18 === 1591910y puna ysed Buyon Jo sajsuel) LG
| 000°00E"C o118 o PUN3 USED Buriom ay1 Jo JUaWSIeqY 10 UBWYS|OqY 05
{0018) SANN4 YIHLO SNOIEYA OL H3SNVEL| 61
. VA4
Aunaag = - = _ﬂ
Aajes 121205 /Juswamay dusuAUIBK Ajuo syaquinp ajoym 1a1u3 :uonduisag
B USRI Bl Hoy ysed Sunjom sp3foid jende) jedniunyy uoneyodsuely 21n13S 1927 g suonesadQ Jeuonesnpy # VY
(06) fog) {0z) {09) {0s) (ov) (0€) (02) {o1) "$QP) £1-T1 X153 DUD OT-G A5§153 U 0IDp buiaita ubag | | |
1 X r _ H 9 3 3 a 2 g v
£ abed

¢ abeyq



LeozieL/e

n20Z ASNO 8ui0sd zzd 92-N.L0Z-660-95u80pPNg ZzA\H

SY9'6b0 €2 [0 (BL9EE 0 £8E 8¢9 TSh'ees’T (BT L6V C T6v88T € vvT 9Lr bT al samypusdxImel  oe)
|c | 0 ._ 0 3 0 1] 008 siyauag uoneuwiwsz) || €]
ovbos — o 0 OE e - 0 3 00S'vT or6'TT 0oL s wawdinb3 pazieuder-von. [0S |

6v5'IS8'E . o v9v'e 0 o 0508 18T'16Y'T 007'505 895'8E8 009 —= 3 Il o 239190500 |BEE
000°SET'T 0 0 0 000°0¢ 000°S0T'T 000°0T oS = _ Amng |ended BT
28s'l6s1 0 000°T [¢] 000°0%C =3 000¥St T8L7T0L 007 — = siepeie g sayddng [/

806'£ZL'T 0 E€TEVIE 0 | 6Lv'8ES 1] 059°08Y 9SP'v8ET 00€ = — sajues paseydind (G2
05EOFT'E o e 0 £8€'829 8Y'vE £06'STL 8[1BSET 00¢ B syoueg 2Aoidws  [GZL
9T0°80£'0T 0 000'€ 0 T¥b'186 SET'E09 OrbE09T'6 001 = — —= saleles [¥Z)
awep vR[qo|EC)
i L = — = = P-_._:QD@ D I T T B NN_\
Aajes [eRos fluswainay DIUEUUIRIN #
valqo Ag [e10L | B UOIUIAIIY anq Mo| ysed Sunjiopp sy3foid |ende) Jediuny uoneyodsues) 21038 1920 ® suonesadQ Jeuoneanpy 1Y uvondiasag
(06) (08} foe) (09) (os} (op) (13} (0z) (o) icl
133[q0 10[eW Aq) spuny AJIARDY JUSPMIS INOYIM SIHNLIANTAXT 30 AUVININNS
SO8'60ET 0sT'LeS 0S0°¥66 8906421 £09'T19°T T16'596'9 {spuny gLl
JUDPMIE YHM 532208 [1¥) ZZOZ ‘D€ 2UNT IINYTVE ONNS INIANT 1153
0 0 (000'00E7) 0 0 0o 0 000°000'T 000'00'T puny 30 sasnfsanos 1O (RI0L
0o 0 000’0082 0 0 0 ] o 0 S  Pundposssnemofeel (g
o o o 0 e o ] 000°000°T
! S| TN WSS | I el g iy Lt et
(4 Tleee'gEt oy |z Tteezer  [ioee'oszl  |esszz | Jlzioernt) [lsrercn) saumipuade3 /umuasIngsig I
__13a [apun) sang sanuanay/adiasoy 1911 jo 5539%3
o [ c809Ee 0 £8E'579 Zsy'Z28’T (BTLEYT T6V'8BLE VPTISS 61 Rmpu: PUSINGHT 0L [50]
o S Jo 0 0 4] 0 0 000'000's 08T . S1UBWARY J|BYSE UQ, 40 S2UNNPUIMXI/SIUSWISINgGSI] 201
0 N VTTE TS 0 £8€'829 T5YTERT LBTLEY'E w6v'88TE | pyTISSbI g | mipustjasews G NG L | 701 |
0 S i 0 0 0 60609 000005 VPEGPE
Joie 0 [ 0 0 BLEIENT 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 o SOE'8ER
— D [ = 0 0 0 000'T
: 0 £15'8Z¢E 0 Z06'60Y ZSH728°T T6V'8RLT POr'aes’E
| 0 | T8FBIC il = DoNe S0 et am i SRS TIUTS'6 ~ LT _ INOUSARESN 10 | |
| (spund Auanoy Juapnis yum saamos ) STUNLIGNIAXI/SINIWasynssia|00 )
T Z81's9r ZE0'Y z ¥IZoI8 TLSTEST IVT'SESZ 0BV'ELLT LS6'PZEBT g ~ mnoweg/ndesyEel | gg
0o 0 0 0 0 0 0 000°000°S 866 # , SWaWAeG 12U3g UD, 1O SanuANZY/SI0PI0Y 86
i 781°59p TE0°p [4 vIL0IR TLSTEST 9pT'575'T OBV'ELTE LSE'PTEET = ~, Sanuasay/ndipieyg 1ang R0y 76
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SLE'DBE = I 6
hnaag 4
A1djeg 21305 /juswainay duUBUdIUIRIA AjuQ ssaquiny ajoyn 1a3u3 uonduasag
8 UOIIUBASI 34 Mojp yse) Suppiom syp3foid [ende) [eduniy uoneyodsuesy 321G 1930 g suopjesadg |Jeuoneanpy B0y
(0s) (08) {o2) {o9) (0s) (ov) {og) (02) {o1) 50} [3-TT A¥3163 DUD T-g A3§Is3 U0 DI0p BUEIGE UibaR |
1 A r | H [3) E) 3 a o) 8 v
 abegq AHVWWNS 139ang ¥ abed



e 91107 SO8'60€'7 EE6E 057'L65 050'766 890'6£7°T €09°TI9'T 116'596'9 (spun4| /¢
Aunnay Ju3pms yum) , 220z ‘0€ Sunf ANVH NO IINYTVE HSY) DNIAN3 [e30)
D e f18/'9te | 000100EZ 0 BEEE S'TT8T (87164 T6v'8sTE | pveussaT = M...&..mﬁﬁm_._.m__mo‘..mf.m.méu..u.__s Swaussinguqvera 0L | 9F
0 =50 e Fo— 0 0 0 0o ~ Jo 0 ey i IngsI0 10 (6101 st
0 L8L'9EE 000°00€°C 0 £8€'879 T5'Te8T L8T'L6YT 61882°E v 1SS 7T m—t (55N PN0 B ﬂmw.m_wmw:mm_o vang |ero1 e
ZEY €96°2€S | 508'609% 6 £€9'527'T 7059187 | SSE9LL'E | S600006% | SSTZISTC == aqeyeny junowy e301 | ¢¢ |
[z (e |ceov z ¥1L0T8 2LSTEST ] 9vT's2572 08VELTE | £S6'2971 sy oo g sevmos om0 diesoy pasa el | 26 |
o| —_— . — T s = o 0 0 0 0 0 = un_muwx_m__.o_muoh 1€
G /TS9Y | ze0w z Y1018 TLSTEST T'STS'T 0SY'ELTE 1S6'079'7T gsounog _e__“ownau.z.xﬂ& e .blﬂ
ovey | 18Lec | £L4'S09F TE6E 6T6'VIY TosevseT 60TTSTT ST9'97LT 86T'268'9 ) {spung Aumnay| 67
U3pMS YUM) , T202 ‘T AINf ANYH NO IINVTVE HSYD DNINNIDAS [e10L

£55'9LT

NNON ‘o€ aunf AQNVYH NO 3INVIVE HSYD ONION3 spuny Anandy

000'SZ

Jx4

mwm: JBYI0 7 SIURISINGSIJ 13N jBIOL

LSSTST

000'sL

g

£SS9LT

— 9¢ |
__9iasyeny Wnowy (£3} [
532006 1910 3 S1diI9Y Panq [eI0] e
€c

, T20Z ‘T AINf ANVYH NO 3ONVYIVE HSYD DONINNIDIE spund Auanoy

941107 S0B'60E'Z 052’265 05066 890'6L7'T £09'TT9'T $SE'68L'9 (spung| L2
Aunnay Juapmis anoyum) |, T20T .om unf ANVH NO 3INVIVE HSYD DNIONI

0 181'9€¢E 000002 0 £8£'879 7507781 18T L6V'T 6V'887'E YPT9Lt YT —— SWAWSINGSIA 190 B mmal..mﬁo ‘nwowasmgsia wang |0l | Og

0 0 ] ) o 0 0 7 0 0 = = = QUAWASINGSIQ 1IN0 [eI0L 6L

0 0 . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 pros T mlqe 0B B0 [ QL

0 0 . ] 0 0 0 0 ce - ajgedeg nueLEA) pue satoN m

0 0 -1 0 0 0 0 0 0 Ty = fsuroy jo usuiheday] sjaehed susoT pungsul | gy,

__ 0 e ] _Imul | 0 0 s i {3pUn4 Jau0 o1 SHEGY] B1qeAI2DaY SURCT pPUNUAIU| Gl

P o e Rl - n e S S SRR U S ; == S o= ~ SININISHNESI ¥3H1O0| ¥
0 iscoee [ 00000€ 2 0 £8£'829 ZeveesT | Lseleve zevesze e aLb ey e = , S9SN 1900 B WWRSIGHA BING P01 | ¢ | |

X "~ |€96€s | s08609v | eee¢€ £895CC T 2059187 SSE9LLE 600067 8655971 S = eay Junowy el |z

z ~ [est'soy [ e0v 4 VTL'0T8 7LSTEST | 9pTsese 08V'E/T'E /S6'6Y5 7T —_— .Ne&mx _xm,_:om S.x_.s 1910 S1di@2ay a1 jer0L Ll
o Jo o 0 0 0o i [ 0 0 bl el sy om0 0L | 0 |
|O| - - ||m T | O| O O O o O c 66T N 51355y wanmy L&LUO ﬂ

.m —_— .o — |l|||.__. syt 0 0 B 0 0 - 0 e .w_mm>mm SJURLIBAA n:mlw.vz 8

) | | 0 oLy e ] 0 . ¥ o 0 §s44 {sueoq jo ucmE>mam5 31qeAIS03Y SUBDT pUnyIalu| ]

0 _ 0 _ [+] ) 0 0 o 0 0 j373 B [5pUnd Jay10 Woly sureT| alaeArd sueo punyaiul 9

[ = s ST 3 T __________ SLADNUHIONG
z 781’58y z ¥IL'0T8 ZLSTES'T GFI'SZ6 T OB¥'ELT'E L56'695 7T a Esa 5__5 7 am_w.&"_ PangEoL | 4 |

ovey 87 £41'509°% T€6'E 6IE VLY 0£6'¥8LT 607157’ S19'974'1 Tv9'SILY — {spund Ayanay] €

WapNIS INOYNM) , TZ0Z ‘T AINT ANVH NO IINVTVE HSYD ONINNIDIE
laajes uoj yse) Supom s399l04d jende) _m_u0m>wﬂ.__._wv“mt_uwm uopepodsues | 3IIMIBS 3G SouBUSIUEN |euoneanpy #0oY AJuQ s1aquinp ajoymn Ja3u3 :uondudsag g
13 UOIIUDARI 14 : ) * ) ST ) : ) 3 suonesado ) o
(06) (08) (02) (09) {o0s) (ot} (o€) (02) (o1) m
A r | H 9 i | 3 d o] d \4

G abey

SNOILOVSNYYL HSVO 40 AMVWWNS

G abey



L2oz/EL/8

N20Z ASNO 8U0I03d Zz8™ 92-N20Z-660-95186pNa ZZA4\H

0 vbT {31835 U1} S121151Q 12YI0 WOJJ 5334 uoneLodsuRl| LUONRINP] [edads 96
0 Tt {21815 L1} s3UIRg 0 SpNG WO S50 4 Uonelodsuely uoneINp] |eDads GG
0 PEVT |Hw.um~m 10 100)) $EN0S I: _mEO Eoc s3a4 woneuodsuel| 319 G
O EEPT AWHMHW r_: $221nog meuo EOL% 5334 CO_HNtOQmENL._v 31 mm
O ZEVT AWHNum r_: muu_uum_D Lwcuo woy wNWu ED.umuhOQwr_mh._. 31D Nm
00S'E TEVT Amumum up} mEm_mn_ 10 m._a:m WwoJyy s34 uonepodsuel) 319 1G
0 pZvT (a1e15 40 300) 59241105 1310 WOy 5324 Uonerodsuel] [00ydS 1awwNng 0S
O ECHT AWMMHW r__v $a321N0g ;m_.to wouy mme CO_HNH._DQmEML._r _OOZUM Jauwumg mw
O T Awumum r_: S10U181Q 12410 Wwoly s34 CO_umtOer_mL._. _OOr_um Jawumng wq
0 Tt _,..,..._Em c_._ U 10 spdng Woag s924 co:mtoamcm_._. |00Y3S sBLWIWNG i
0 9THT (21835 Jo :._9 SIAIN0S 12u10 wouy 533y uonejodsues) sensay G
0 STHT Amumum ‘__w Sanl i um_:u_t:u au Eoc $334 uoleuodsuel] Jenday mv
0 ETPT {21835 :: 5324N0§ EEO Eoc $924 uonenrodsues) Jeinday
__ 0 ZIvT D Amumum :: ﬂu_:m_n_ 350 Eo_w me“_ :Q_Mmbmn_xm\mmwﬁ_,ms_fmm_\z.
_ 0 T (21835 U} s1uasEy SO a,_n:a Eo_: wmmu_ :o:mtoam:m_.m_ﬂwxl
|
| S—
000'St ~ vonIng w0y (112
_ 0 YSET  (sm®5400n0) 59105 J3Y410 WO LORINL INPY | 6
| 0 €SET - {31225 U]} 592105 JAUIQ WOy UoBINL WNPY | ¢
| 0 TSET Aw_mum :; su_:m_a 1PY10 Eo.c uoning 3npy /€
; 0 TSET . [mems c: swuased Jo s|idng wouy uoning unpy | gg
0 PPET (2115 Jo InQ) $324n05 Lmﬁo wouy uomng uopeanpg jeiads [ gg
| 0 £Vl {2115 U|) S321N0S ._mfo woly uoniny co_umu:uu 1enads | ¢
“ 0 ZreT “areas i) 1211510 J3YI0 Emu.m 1 uoneanp3 jeads | o
| 0 THET {21835 u)) sauaseq o sidng Eot \j UORN L UOAEINPS feRads | Zo
0 PEET (21835 JO InQ) mwu._:Om JBY10 W0l uoing 310 XS
0 £EET (21835 UY) mquOm 15U30 Wol LoNnL 31D | OE
0 Z€ET — {a1e35 :: SPUISIC I3 0 Wod UL 31D | Bz
0 TEET ~ [=1es u)) spusieg Jo spdng wosj uonin 31 | gz
} 0 bZET {31835 Jo 1nQ] 592405 JSYIQ WO} UOHINY [00YIS J2WILINS 12
i 0 €TET {31235 Ui} s301n0s 13y10 ) oy uopiny jooyds Jswwns gz
0 Z7ET {21815 1) S10UIsIQ J3YI0 WOy uoNINg [00YIS ‘..mﬂmﬂ._m Gz
0 TZET {21215 Ul) s3UBIRg 0 Sficing WOl UoMN L |00YDS ABWILING ¥e
0 YTET = 1 ?.__Bm 10N0} 5334105 19410 WOy UoIHN) Jejnday €z
0 €TET o {31215 ul) s32n08 JaYIQ Woly oIn] Jejnaay 7z
0 AT T [mesu) muu_:w._m J3Y30 Wiy UoRINL Jejnday | |z
000'St {21815 uj) swaled 10 sjidng Woy uoniny Jejngay
0 0 “Jo 0 000°05T 0 0 0 968644 ) saxel jo non vl swawked 0L | g
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0671 ﬁmN_Emu_ W agIsag)) soxe] Jo nal Ul siuawAed sBsuyio [/
0 0 0 0 000°0ST 0 0 0 968'6LL 0£21 o SOXel Wwawddeday Ausadosd jeussiad aielodion oL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (o} ozet r.caE:« Auisnoy (2207 woyy siuawheg Gl
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [i1x43  xe| aBajiAllg sWOH S)IGON
0 55158k 2121 0 £19'099 99T LLY 8BLVEST 205'586'T EEEISO'6 U110 Aq paIAD) Saxe] alojen py T0L ZL
0 0 — 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0611 o (azway) g 3qusaq) sama xeL ;BYI0 | ||
4 0 0LTT R Aaa mwu.&:..g J00yd5 JBWWNS | g
0 0 0 09TT Ana7 sasoding uonaNIISu0) _mcozmuﬂwi 16 |
LAY 1 61058 I Rl | e kA 0STT o B mw_.\.,muqm_e aledlpaN pUB YIS | @
0 0 0 0 STET ovtT Ana sasoding uonEsNp3 (B17ads 7
| 0 81Z'T 0£TT = - —— ._»._._.@.._ sasoding Busea | g
0 ssT'sop 81zT To ——  |swore  [evuw  Jecvesr Z05S86'T [68V06 - P ”wmm,w._ sasoding peieudeag | G
14
(000T) S32¥NOS W01 WOY4 SINNIATH/SLAIFITY €
- - 1 RKnsag i ) O . ) . D i
Ayajes Jepnos /uswainay 3dueuajuley # AJuQ s1equiny ajoym 123u3 :uondussag
1R UOIIUIABIG 315 uo) yse) Supjopm s139foud |endery |ediunpy uoneyodsuely 3dNAI9S 192 1 suonesado |euonyeanp3 Iy
(06) (08) (4] (09) {0s) {ov) (3] (02) tot) [T1 ]
A r | H [9) El E| a 9] g \4
9 abed

SINNIATY/SLIIFOIY AILVINILST

g abed



XAV A ]

N0z ASNJ 8u0i0ad ZZ8 92-".0Z-660-96186pNa ZZANH

0 0 0 0 0 00s 0 005'/81 000°0TT $INOS JEI07 WOLJ INUIAIY 19YI0 [EI0L OLL
005 0 000°0E 00055 6661 —— (21w21) 5 aguasag) sanuaAsY 18301 DO B0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000’9 £66T ) S || _»m_Eﬁ_ ] an_._“a..wau 5324 [€3012010 (@01
NPT S -8 PRI T, e vy | 0 7661 ) ) suu_o.a._m:o:mug jo9es /0L
0 0 0 0 0 0 661 533U3s10 J3LR0 wiodj wuawked (g
0 0 €861 SP3330.d xe] uangHnIag Ajaed jooydg GOl
0 o Q S ) ..ol - 0 o'||l. .lo!tl. o 0 o | 0 —— | ogeT “S1913U0) SIOPUSA woly spa300id ()|
i | - i 5 005, 0461 |.“ |I| _ seajuoneanp3 sonua (g0
oll = rO|| —_— .q 0 — 0 e — |c e 0 0 0 096T S19012510) 4(L Woly amu...o_m m@nﬁm Jo sjuawAey _NQF
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00S°'T 0S6T o .n_.__.z.ac..n.m Sieap solid jo purysy  [LQ]
0 0 0 oreT 512111813 J3Y1Q PIPIACIJ SIANAIIS 00l
e —— = — I - E—— 0 0 — 000°0ST 0 0€6T o SIUBWILIBA0D A3UN0T 10 (BN WOl s34 19eduw) 66
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0000 0z6T 592UN05 1eAld WOy suoneuoq a pue suoanguiue) | 9F
0052 0 0161 I sleway | 26
_ = _ - - I
000052 SIoogIxa} [e30] G6
0 0681 {szwa1) g aquasad) 80 6
0 BLBT .mN_Emu_ E] :ummofmﬁo sales mm
0 £281 = $¥00G1X3] UoeINpP3 Ju 11U0S/4NpPY - S3ES Z26
0 [44:18 - SY00qIX3] |OOYIS JBUMING - 53[BS L6
0 1281 - o .|mv.mo£x.m._._|m_3mmm -saes | 0B
0 581 .  (eaudseo) b SiEusY | 6g
0 EI8T $100G1X3 1 UONEINPI BUINLIUOI/YNPY - S|E1UDY 28
| 0 r48:14 [ elelsj b ET _oo;um hmEE:m - s|eluay 18
| 00005 118t o © syo0qixa 3oy - sjeluay ag
I s o
_ SL9'VLT (664 spung >u_>_uu<|u:uu:uw yamj awosut A u( 100Y3S/30u35Iq |RI0L H
: 0 51966 {6641 spuny Ky 3umpmis nouim) swodul Ky foouss/oma 6l | £g
000°sL 66/T sanuanay pund kanay wapng 29
0 0 06LT (d21Wway 3 3qu2500) ANUTAIY KHATIY (9045351 JBYI0 19
0 0 OELT h - $3jeS 21015 x_.o..'c.a 08
0 0066 0zLt . I TR
0 0 6TLT . = _.mfo - SUOISSILPY 8/
0 SL¢ TTLT = B 23|Y1y - suoissiwpy [ 7/
9/
05Z'Ty N SmsEspodieL | gy
00S 069T (a3 aquasaq) mu_Zwm pood 20 | )
0sL 0791 N - " synpy o1 safes [
0 19T {azway ! Stumun- 1310 - 5jieingd 01 sajes [73
000°0F €191 o == mtlmu el v - sjiing oy soes ||/
0 ZT9T ummt_mm_m_ spdng 01 sajes 0L
0 TIST o i - youn - spdngd o1 saes | gg
z T 1877 z 6 90y 8¢ 8Ly LEBT st swsunsany) uo Fuwe ol | /g
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0ZsT wcmEﬁm\,c_ 10 8BS U0 5507 10 UrED) 09
4 [4 pi8'z Fd 6 90t aSE 744 LEBT 01ST - SIUDWISIAU) UO J53131U) G9
¥9
00S°E - = rodsued] €9
0 PSHT AEEW J0INO) $324M05 JAYIO WLy 5334 uoneuodsues | ynpy 29
0 £SPT . (21€35 U} s224M0% B30 Wo)y 5334 uopevodsues L ynpy | 1Q | 19
0 [543 toims ik 531510 19410 Woyy mmm.mucmmmmw.mcm#::n« 09
0 TSHT ﬁu_ﬂm ..___ ﬂ:w_mm " q___nsa woJ} s934 coﬁﬁanncu.c. ynpy 65
0 v (=E15 y0 100)) mwu_;cm ;mEO wouy mmw“_ cn:mﬂanm:mﬁ cozmu:uu jemads gg
~ = e ] ST AL 0 s = k3270 ﬁw.ﬂm E_ mmu:_om 13410 woly mwmw ca:qv_on_w:a._._ :o:mu:uu jenads 16
Rindag = - 7
JSETLIS |BNOS /1uswainey sjueuUIRIA # Alup siaquiny 3oy 131u3 ruondursaq
'3 UOnUaA3Ld a4 1oy yse) Sunpropp s19fouid [eyde) lediuniy uonieynodsues) 9IS 1930 1§ suonesado |euonesnpy 0oy
(06) (08) (02) (09) (0s) (ov) (og) (02) (o1) i
A r | H ©) 4 El a ) g v
/ obeyq

SINNIATY/SLdITOTY AILVINILST

/ 9bed




Lcociel/s

NL0Z ASND dUoload 2za™ 92-n/0Z-660-95186pNa ZZANH

i 1] 0T9¢ _. s1uero a8uey) - judwasnsdu) Buiuiesi qwm—.
0 000050T | 0 0 e  vommwodsumimol  |)g|
0 0 0 o 665€ (#2ia) 13 aquIsaq) 1810 - uopeLIOdsuRLL aG|
0 000'sLE 0 3] o1sE - - uonteanp3 (e29ds - vonELiodsuel |GG |
0 000's£39 0 [i] 00S€ 1euoneIOA pue sENERY - LoRELOTS UL |pG 1
NOILYIHO4SNYEL|ES |
0 4] 0 0 0 ] 0 0 4] 661E ) : {s21W33| R 2qu3saq) JPUI0 - co:mm:mgn‘\ m.
0 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0 0 oTvE - (@231 woy) uoneano3 ey |16},
0 00001 0LEE o voneonp3saAld  [OGL
0 0 0 GOfE T - m.>.|~m.:|_£ ummzmm_m 10025
00S 09€€ T isepeasg g ybun oo svers
0 0 o ~ uopeanpg T T
0 0 OLEE .._9.:.u:uw _u_..u e Jeuonisues) - mumum:\sco :o_umus_uu renduiig 01—.
0 0 SOEE 36L PUE (dL - BIEISUMOQ - UOREDNP3 (EnBUIE |G|
NOILYINa3 vnonia |kl
0 0 | oos’s i “—— UoREINR3 [E21UaL pus 123183 [Tio] _mlﬂ.
0 0 1] 662¢ AmN_EE_ ® 2Qi3F) 9410 - 1D vl
0 0 0 0£ZE suoneziueigy Emn:um El)] F.T—.
0 0 0 [8)444 wnaioe.d JoyaNasyr - 319 OFlL
0 o 005’6 SETE - . :czmu:_um sy -3 [gEL
0 0 0 szze - ~ emam-ID gl
0 0 0 [}1443 {10} wawanosdw) wesdosd bepuodas- 315 [/E]
0 0 0 0oze - 9219 Upa) - uoneanp3 eyl - 31 log1 ]
| (319) NOILYINGI T¥IINHIIL ONY B33uyD|GEL
_, 0 | 0 — [ooosez e vonenp3 lessds ol g
_. 0 0 1] 66TE [EZWEME] anr._uﬂo_ 18410 - cozmu:_um letaads ooy
| 0 0 SYTE Eo:um J2WWNS - UonedINp3 |i3ads FA
_ 0 o001 OETE .. |M i HnpAIpL M ..I_m - uonesnp3 jenads 151
0 oon'os s[4 43 ..,.:o._zoc_ = ndeurydiQ - uoneINpI jERadS OEL
_ 0 0 0 0TTE . . _w::olﬂwM gmﬂnm |mifadic
. _ 0 0 <SOTE i $92IAIDS vm dg .m::__._vuv. :m_u_ 5 LE a:_n::u_ :o_umu:um_ ey
0 000'szZ - 21entig - UONEIND3 IS
1 — - i o 0 o ~ o 165695 . W_.lt.—m-.nl_ulﬂw pausann [e10] 71
0 0 0 Y o g g 0 = (32133 8 2q11959Q) S22JN0S 3RIS WOIS PIY-UI-SIURJGD PRIILISAIUN 13410 ecl
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0E0E B T sjuRID 1DUISIg YIMoID Fseg
0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 o (LZ0E-E00F SIWNO33y) saANUdL| ohE2ILE DAY
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 165'695°T " (ST 8-8T UOH395) e|NWioy Buipun paseg 2oUapIng
Hoocm- S3JHNOS I1VLS WOYHH muDZu>u¢\w._L_u0mx
0 0 0 0 ) [ g T Dung semouy 01 19mag 910 mn
woy mw::m>m~_\muu.mUu~_ ysnoay] - Sa_m j1er01
0 8] (1] 0 00€C (ezIwa1 7 ua:ummn__ m::m.>wz ;m:o:._._, So_u_ FEg) _E..—F
0 0 o 0 00z 533105 _m_w_umu Eot m:cm>mx :m:oE._, Mmold  |GLL
0 0 0 0 00T 5931N0S 31815 EEW 3anuaray ydnouyL-moly [ |
i3 N T F (0002) 111510 ¥IHIONY OL LI11SIfE | | |
_ 3NO INOYS SINNIATY/SLAITITY HONOUHL-MOH
T66'b5H0T (66T spung AuANdY JUBPMS IM) SI2INOS [BI0Y WD SANUIARY/SIdIAIY |e1o) el
z ~ |wrsey [zow z vIL018 STy SPT'SZST 0BYELTZ T66'6LE0T door D I
SPUNJ AJIANDY JUSPNIS INOYILM) 532IN0S 180T WO SANUBARY/S1d1939Y [R10)
Tpnaag - =
A13jes |e1os /luswainay dueudURN # AuQ syaquiny 3|0y J23u3 uondudsag
3 uonuaAalg ally Moj yse) Sunpopn spsfoyd jeyde) Jedduniy uoneyodsues) 3310136 1990 3 suonesadg Jeuojjeanpy 10y
(0s) (08) (0z) (09) (0s) fov) (0€) (oz) (o1) s
A r | H 9 £ 3 ad o} g A4
g abeyq

SANNIATY/S1dIFO3Y QILVINILST

g abey



Leozrel/s

N.0Z dSND 8uoload Z28 92-n/02-660-961186png ZZA4\VH

_ = o 0 (1298 B — —_enEn
‘ 0 0 0 0 66EY - _ [suw=y 5 99u3%30) 120 - 1 3P
0 )] 0 0 ovey uoteanp3 JuetBiA - | 3L
| 0 0 0 000°sT SOEY T aeaug ﬂn—k.:ui.mﬂ.. wEau:_ MO - | BRI
_ 0 0 0 LTLTL 00EY - B BWO2U) MOT - | AL
| 1 3L
_ 0 000°55¢ e — = : ~ M35pooy [e3oy
0 0 66Ch = AwN_EE_ 3 ag|rsag) _mfo B21AI3G pood
0 ovey S3MERTIA pue Unid ysaly
.o| ] 0 9zTy o n WweiB0lg pood a1en ynpy pue pIud
0 000°052 sy :_m_mo._n____...__E_uﬁ F0IAIIS poo4 IFWIUNG
0 0 014474 ) o o wesfoig 15e)ea1g |[ooyIs
0 0 S1ZY o o |..“._”=m__uﬂo. AN ey
0 000°S otey :_2”2“_ yaun |00YdS [euolEN
0 o 00z :o_mcmaxu dn-11e15 158)yE2)g
3DINH3S 004
0 0 0 0 s S e " ASpILIe0)
0 0 0 0 661 - [azway un:uﬂ..g 1BUI0 - A UL
0 0 0 0 L0TY o i _Im_ﬂ.w.\,zmz_c_.mm_ eanp3 [eany - A UL
0 0 0 0 oty - 90054 v3S - A m
0 0 0 0 00TY e1UN0Y pue __;.:_n.sam SABL
AFUIL{58L
0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 ~ woojeapay woy Apsaing Pan1239y PIy-ul-SWweID pABINSIY [TI0L e
0 o 0 0 0 0  (pnwan g aquzsag) 281
060t 1A09) |BJ3P34 WO A123I1( PAI3IRY Ply-U|-SILEID) P3IDISAY JBY10
0 0 0 0 0 090v -  3nNoww [1g)
0 0 0 0S0t F_e.._umaE__ :ocu::m:ou 0RL
| 0 1EIS pEay
0 o ) il 0 0 Q g 0 “To —-— 0 u>ow pa3 woy >_uum=o vwzmﬁwx u_< up-siueiy wwﬂmuluwﬂ.... \esor o
o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 wawaw 97|
600t | 2q1259Q) 0D [R42P3S U1 WOy A123.I] PAAIAISY PIY-U-SIUBID P1aLIISaIUn JSUIQ
0 0o 0 0 0 0 0 0 T00% = " piy 1eduf (e1apag
(715
Acoci S3I2UNOS 1vHIA3IS WOYS mu:Zmaz\m._.n_wUNz mNF
0 0 0 0 000'0S0°T 0 0 165'6/8T DOOE .k = mmu._:n.m 31116 WOy SANUIASY/5Id1a39Y |eI0) A
0 0 0 0 000'050'T 0 0 000'9TE P i Piy-uj-Iuels paplasay g0l 121
0 0 0 0 0 ] 0 000'T 666€ (sz1way) uw 2q11253(]) wmm:Sm mu.mum WOl SNUIAIY PAIILISAY _wm.uo 01
0 0 0 GZ6E ) - s3123f01g mu:m:E:_mS_ E:u,qule::_ loows |59y
0 0 0Z6€ o :o:u::m_._ou\u:E:mE - siuswanosduw) aumanaselyul  [ogy
0 0 SZ8E o <afpug SEE:m mmﬂt%ﬂamu.mlc_.c._mm,_ papuan3 |/ g|
0 0 STSE )  sj00us a11eY) 181G 091
0 0 0 0 0 B 0 0 08LE 55392n5 10y AdjouIaL - - Afojousay  [gg|
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SLLE ) 1UBID 3}20|g JUusUIaAoIdul _m:o:mu:vﬂm.__—.g_qm 100435 [pg|
0 0 0 0 £9L€ ) 1ueln xuo_m mmu_iwm _u:o:mu_.__um oedyy mwr
0 0 [4] 0 g9/¢ ) 1uRID yI0|g :o:mu:_um [I3ERED) cmmu_cu 291
0 0 0 0 SOLE - wesn v_uo_m - uoo:u_Eu >__mu L9l
0 0 0 S69¢ uoneanp3 _mco:ammm\ﬁm:_muz wenil 09
= gt 0 0 0 0 099€ . Aoese1r] aynuals y
—— === —= = TTiGoE i e At = = e s
Kiages |e120s /juawamnay asueuajuley # AluQ s1aquin 3joyp J23u3 uondinsaq
B UOIIU3ASIY 2414 uoy yse) Supjiopy spafoud |eyde) ledpunpy uoneyodsues) MBS 120 g suopesado |euoneanp3 Iy
(o8] (o8) fos) (09) 0s) (ov) (0€) (02) (or) m
il r | H 9 E] 3 a o) 9 Y
6 9bedq

SINNIAIN/SLAIZOIY AILYWILST

6 abed



LcozieLi8

NnZ0Z GSNO 8u0l0ad Zgg 92-N.0Z-660-95usbpPNg ZZAL\H

O O O O [0]331 2 E|nw1o4 MEWEQD_M\,NQ |EUOISSD)0.d - JaMOYUINI - || oML Qmm
0 0 0 0 T4 ua.Jppyd mwm_.wE|OI|~E cc;musunm\,.w::_v_u_\,_ 6GZ
0 o 0 6067 uonsinbay .uu.muncﬂl ysngu3 - (1 apiL _mmm
0 0 0 So6 FUARMS JURIRWL| B SI9UJedT ysiiBuT Jo) UOIINASY] « [ 3L VAT4
0 0 0 0 206% ) 1ueln :m_mcqulul.oolﬁmw_n. -do| mﬁ o1y |acz
0 106¢ - © wessosy dojaioraoey |GGZ
[ ——|| Iy ———— 0 0 0 0 0 0 - . i ~ sweifoig Sninwns e0] [
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 088Y wesB024 PUNJ Gof p3 - SPUNJ VHYY 13UI0 |GG E
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6Ly ~ x-sumaviyv w0 |26z
0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 8(8v ~ Xi-spunyvuuvisyio |16z
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18y B ~IA-Spun3v¥wv BW0  |0GZ
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9/8t o o K A -SPuny vy BLI0 B
0 0 | 0 0 0 0 0 0 S8y ) pooupiud AUt vewy  |gpE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [z o  A-SPUndvNY W0 |1hZ
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L8y -  n-spunivhvepo [ovz]
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 zL8Y I - SPUNJ vyuY 30 [GRZ
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 T8y T TTw-sunaveev w0 g
0 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0 0/8% co_umN _nmum SadNALRS EwEEw>oG Jaylo - U_< 31B1S |EIBUID - YYYY ﬂ.v_N
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6987 - EmEmﬂEE_mm 152031y puog eduAWY piing |73
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 898% w_ceu Xel puog EdXUAWY PINg ||z
0 0 0 0 0 4] 0 0 £98% o ~ supai) puog co:u::mcou 100435 PaLIfeny 0k
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 998 B =PRI XeL pUOG AWapEay SU0Z PAIEND  [GEZ
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 598t T sweln; amadwos prv1edw  [gez
0 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0 98t © sueig enwiog pry 1aedi] 162
L. L 4] 0 £9R¢% i 2oUBRSISSY —EEE-.:.WW .COWu_nhu:—/_lv._r_U - (&( me
e —— __ = ¥ = by O O = O O 98 e UOIEINPJ SS3|2WOH O1UaA |...0_._r=¥u___.r—|«mw_.<ﬁ
0 (9] 0 0 0 0 0 0 T98Y aAadWo) - AF0IOU3aL - all L - SNV BEE
0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 038y ) enwiog - Aojouy3aL - QIBAIL- VUNY  |EEZ
0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 0 0 58y ) UAROIYL-MOL - 8 Led - VA1 V¥YY 767
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 958 100Y251q - § ed - V301 - VY | L€
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 558 I {95001 Uoi1395) WalaneIdUs] 100UIS - | 3PIL - VERY 0z ]
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 yS8y T 1img) Jumwanosdw (00U - | 3IL - WY | 627 |
o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 £58Y a1eAlg uanbulaq - | BN - YHHY 82z
o = - 5 o 0 0 0 zs8y o  otenug ‘panafEan - |RL- VHEY  |/ZZ
i T 0 0 0 0 158t o  swonwymot-1aIL-v¥wY [9ZZ
0 o o Jo 0 o 0 0 0S8y uoNEzIelS UONEDNP3 - PIY B1EIS (IAUID - VUEY  |GZZ
_ 0 0 o18% ) o |i o - |:o_mmu:um HNPY - (B3PS |p7 7
_ 0 0 ~ o - ~ supwad-ap ol lezz
| 0 0 0 66LY 7118 99U3%30) B0 310 |Z2g
0 0 0 0LLy - . ) 314 D31 3N BML-SULRG - 300 (44
| SNDIY3d - 315(022
0 0 0 TE6'60C uoReINp3 [£123ds 1e19pa3 [BI0L |57
0 0 0 0 669 (2211231 73 211355 12UIQ - VIQH - UOREINP3 (EE3ITS [213p23 (G| 7
0 0 0 0 [1]3:)4 o e nﬂu_..ﬁn_ v3QI - uoneanp3 (e13ads [esapay LLZ
0 0 0 00S8'T SZ9Y T ~ pieog '3 WoOY yad| - UoREINp3 [EDAGS [elapay alz
0 0 0 TEV'30T 0z9t ) |.| uinoiy) \sﬂﬁlo_ - uopesnpy [eads [eJapag clz
0 0 0 0 S09Y * Aunpansig |0oysald - | uoneanp3 ei3ads [exspay || 7
0 0 0 0 009t —— |.¢u_..o_=.:. -Mo|4 _cozumm._n_ :o:mu_._uu _m..&Qw |eJapay m ¥4
zo:«usnm Tv13dS - TW¥3a3d NFN
0 0 0 000°0T i L T
0 0 0 0 5344 (anu 11 R 2UISAG]IBUI0 - Al 3] 0LZ
0 0 0 0 bt T ) ~ Ameasiz-ae 602

0 0 0 00001 [[42 JUEIH JUBWYILIUF OlWIBPEdY 7 11OHHNS IUDPNIS - A SL
A TILL|L0Z
. i o D [ — “Kyundag SSNSS ) - Tz

Aajes |enos /Juswainay 23uUeUBUIRW # AjuQ sisquinp sjoypn 1321u3 uondidsaqg
2 UONUIAAN 314 uoj) yse) Sunpom spaloid jendey Jedpuniy uoneyodsuesj 9IS 1990 R suonesadg jeuonyesnp3 Py
(06) (08) (oz) (09) {os) ov) foe) (02) (o1) [T |
A r | H 9 E 3 ad o) 2] \4
01 2beyq

SANNIAIY/SLdIIOFYN AILVINILST

0l obed



Leoz/eLi8

N20Z ASNJ 8uolead zzd 9z-N20Z-660-95188pNng ZZA4\H

wn
T}
LS6VTEET (e6LT 1.2
spung Auanay suapnis yum) SINNIATY/SLAIZDIY 1DINHIG TYLO0L
2 feeresr ey z Y1018 TLSTEST 9I'SIST 08Y'ELTT LS6'6VTEL = BT = ~ (6t oLz
SPUNJ Ayanoy uspms Inoyum) SINNIAIN/SLAIZITY 193410 V101
0 0 0 0 0 i 0 0 SLE'066 000V | S3DUNOS TYHIGI3 WOYA SINNIATY/SIJIIIIY TVIOL  |RoZ
[0 o 0 0 0 0 0 SLE066 - 1 = 3l ams |ogy
3 fUY| "IM09) |elapad WOLY PIAIRIBY PIY-UI-SIUEID P3YIISY Je10)
0 0 0 0 0 000°0SE _ o ) o Pawans |79z
3q11353Q) 21EIS YENOIY] LUBWUIIN0D [BI5P3J WO PAAISIDY SIUBID Palalilsay 1BY10
0 0 0 00005 z66v T We1B01g 22/A125-104-223 - SpUN3 BUIGIEN PIIPON  |GQZ
0 0 0 0 1667 Y3ea3nQ SANEASIUIWPY - SpUny FUIYINE pledIpay a7
0 0 0 0 861 SANIANDY PB1L|DY PUP SIUSWSSISSY 31835 10) JUBID oz
0 0 0 0 86t ) o &cm_.u u.:memwmm< RS el
0 0 0 0 096 s stoouds 3 LeYy [813p2) |07
0 0 0 1708t zeey ) Awiend 3yseal - oL [} 97
T R — T Rumes - : - ] z
Aayes |eros Juswainay aJueuaumep # AuQ s1squinp sjoym 193 :uondussag
13 UOIIUBABIG Bt uoy yse) Sunjiom spaload jendey fediuniy uoneyodsuesy IIAIBS 3G 13 suonesadp jeuonesnp3 My
(06) {0s) (0z) {09) {0s) {ov) {og) (02) (o1) m
A r | H D) E| 3 a o) g \4
1| abed

SANNINIY/S1dIFOTY ILVIILST

L1 ebey




LeoeEL/g

N/0Z ASND auol08d 228 92-NL0Z-660-95wsbPNg ZZA4\H

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 06tC (A2131] 78 3Q12953@) UONRNSIUILIPY 100YIS - SaaIALRS LGddng Jay1Q G
TSE'8ED 0 0 S6€'7 0 Yov'T 005 18T'STT T18'%1s otve = seansas edmund ooy [ g
0o0vz uonENsIIPY |0oPS - Seojatas Joddng | 9G
788'€8E 0 ] 0 £08'9T 0 68S'ET 159'%9 TI0'EL vT8'sTe 00EZ ; uonensiujpy [e13u2D - s3MBS Uoddns [E0L | GG
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0LET sea1BS ANUNWIW| 1o) 4%
- 09€7 T
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 OEET SBIIAIDS UONEIISILILIPY BBLY [F1aads (3]
T12LTT 0 0 66¢'T 0 S70T 00S'T SSS'vY 7E8'89T [1[414 mmu_awm.co_um.um_:_sg 3AnMIX3 Z5
149991 0 T 0 805°ST 0 95721 1ST'€9 9587 766'9t 1334 S S331A135 UONEINP3 10 pIROg 1G
00E2 :c_am‘_.um_:_EE‘ _ﬂwzww - 5331096 poddng Qs
8TH'79€ To “Toost £0T°Z 0 8/5°0V SEVS 058°9% 655°91¢ 00ze E HE3S [EUORANIISU] - SIINNISS 0GRS 2101 6F
4143 0 o 0 0 0 71’6 0 0 0ezz funsa] g wawssassy oF
8986 |0 o 0 0 STL0T 8Y'€ 7% S6E65 oeze - S9AI3S eIpaN [=uoRENPE |/
(sv1ssz = |0 10051 €017 0 £98'6T 656'TV 6L5TE vOT'LST otz - S3IAI2S oI ASUI 40 I BwARDATu op
0022 HEIS JEUOIIINIISY) - S3IAU3G Lioddng (494
[ 0£5°092T o= —  Jo 62T 0 7S60¢ | 6v9Th 66L"TT 158'YS6 ootz = ~ ndng - 5301135 Woddns |e30) s
990°E 0 o 0 0 [ rrs'se 0 0 0617 © [a2way 3 squosaq) sidng - seiasas Hoddns 1510 tF
9T9'vEL 0 0 0 0 0 0 5809 166281 stz o ~saa1nas ABojorpny g ABojoLaeg yasads v
v88T1Z 0 B 0 <3 0 0 0 6£0'EY 915'891T 0v1z D) E— S301AI3S (23130(0YIAsq Iy
9€/TET 0 0 0S¢ 0 060'TT £SE'9 89L9€ SLT'8LT 0ETZ l!...| ) 59210135 YIYESH [\
10267 0 0 00L 0 OPET 25L'6 L8V'vY 8TVELT o0z1z o SIINIBS BIUEPING 68
TTS'LTE 0 0 0 0 0 0 078°0L 10L°9%C [13%4 S2IIAIDS FIOM |BIIOS B 3IUBPUINY mm...
00tz udng - sadjnias veddng. | /€ |
g 9¢
TL0°L156 0 00S'T pOL VS 0 T8T'VEE 509°10C SYO'V9LT TE0'€£99 | ooor (666T SPUN3 ANANOY W3PMS YIM) HTUONINNSY] (BI0L Wﬂ
TLO0TrY'6 0 005°T YOL'L9Y 0 8TVEE 609702 SYOVILT TE0'EL99 ooot (6661 spun3 AaRay JUSPRIS NOLRIM) | UORIANSU (B101 v
000'SL 00052 666T T ~ saimypuadd puny Aanoy uspmis | oo
0 0 76T uoniny 31ealld swelgold p3 1do/saneusayy siuend| Ze
0 0] TZ6T uonuIn| a1eAud sweigoid jendui vm
0 0 0z6T - uoniny ajeatd mIEm_moi PURS | OE
O O 6T6T uoln] aieAld mEmgwn:n_ |o0yas LwEEJS mN
0 O 8161 uorn| 91eAlld wEmhmohm di1sB|0YIssalu| WN
0 0 L16T nj a1eAlld sweigord 319 12
O O o161 uoning aleald mEm_mohl uoneinp3y m:_z _u_._GU\::U( @N
0 0 ST61T uonin a1ealzd y-a14 sweldold [eauawalddns/jepaway G2
0 0 +T6T UDIn L MpALd 7 T-4 SUeBolg Imuswsding jRipauay [74
0 0 €161 uonin ¥-a1d swelgold uoneanpy |eraads %4
£TE'SSh ECE'SSY ZT6T uoniny aealld z1-3 swesdolq uoneinpd (e1nads 7
| 74:%3 T8’ 1161  uoming meauy sweiBoig 77+ Jenday 1z
0 4] 0T6T uoning 1eAlld - swelidoud y-ald 0z
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 006T swei8o1d [euondQ 7R SAIBUIRYY JUBNI| Bl
rlo. 0 0 Q 0 0 0 0 0 008T - ) ) - sweio.g jendui al
888°0T 0 0 {8 0 84/ 0 v70'1T 6106 004T swei80.4d uoyeInpy s Janug Ll
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0591 == sweigold payio a1
| 60v'9v 0 0 00t 0 [442 0 v8E'S £0L°0% 0091 - sweidord jooyss swwns | G1
€9S'ETY 0 00S'T 047’9 0 046'SE €286 £19'5¢ 19%'SPT 00sT o awedoigonsejousianyl vl
£20'90€ 0 0 0 0 05S0°TT 0 SPT'69 2E8'sTT 00vT - B swerfoigay | gl
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00€T swerdoid uolleanp3 Suinunuod/Anpy Zl
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S/7T -39 Sweidold |PIusWa|ddns pue |Elpaway 11
85°£91 0 0 0 0 x4 06€'€T L6LTE 0LETTT 05T 2T swesSoid [udwa|ddns pue [eipaway ol
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 szet )-21d sweidosg uoeanp3 jepads 6
vL4950'T 0 0 0 0 v20'8C 58524 T9v"20V Y0L'ESS'T 0071 {0zt - 0021 suonound) sweilosd uoneonp3 jEeads 9
T0S'SZT 0 0 0 0 606 e VET'CE YT szt - sweiFold ¥-a1d 7
0 0 SITT 5100435 JTUE) 0 J0wAR UOINL 9
8LT'9ER’S 0 0 00T'Z 0 Tz0'6tC [SL'TT L8%'T8T'T CI8'IBE'Y 0011 o sweiso1q sejnday G
¥ ; v
(a3) aNN4 TYNOILYINGS - 0T €
[ l%ﬂﬂ T Eﬂ—mllll - .llrw_ﬂ_hlﬂ.nlwa & | = mMU.thm'II.. Al R I.;.I«.» i . . . ) - o~
1801 uoneua | pazijenide)-uoN sw3la0 13430 Renno jeudes 1 saljddns paseydingd Sy3usg a3kojdusy SIUBIES pung AluQ s1aqunp sjoym J8u3 iuonduasag ¢
(006) (008) (00z) (009) (00s) (oov) (00¢) (002) {oot) (]|
A r | H ) E| 3 a o) 4d v
2\ abeyd

SIUNLIANIIXI/SINIWISUNGSIQ ILVYNILST

Z| obeg



Leozier/s

N20z JSND 3UCI09d 228 92-NL0Z-660-95486PNg ZZA\H

SIUNLIANAMX3/SLNINISHUNGSIA Q3 LVINILST

€| obeyd

YYEIYE YYE'IYE I SLL
0 0 0005 — ~ owesipamor |y

0 . 0028  199g wiag-8uoq uo 159J31U) - INIBS 1G2q €Ll
0 ) 001S = > 1990 Wiay-iols _.k.-wmm._wﬁ_._ - F3AIIS 1050 [E10L ZLL
0 0sTS (2zitua)) %9 aG143s3q) 1920 F:m._. to:m uo 353193U| _w_._uo i
0 48 Amumuc_tmu .._o._.m.n_.un.__c_ piy Wumum oLl
0 0EIS mmuoz paedisiiuy xe) _nwm >.twn_n:_ _mcomgwn_ u_m__on:ou m_u_.
0 0z18 — ) o Imm@.,..m_.u {801
0 ! OTIS SIUBLIBAR LI u-u_.naq th NO—\
001S unwn_ [TE) h.to:m uo 152423Y] - I21AI36 198G 901

L2l R 18 GOl
COE'st8 o S9E'gbE 000V S i SNUA IA0D 2 351d 19YIO E.ww:mE»nm., 0] 0L
0 0 0 00ty Awumum j01nQ) mu_:3 moo g um_o LByp o1 m:._wE>mm t0l
10||||"H_ 0 0 005y (31€15 uj) S134sUBL)-SINUN 10D 1B 1510 IO 0 SIudWARY |BI0Y Z01
0 0 0 06EY «wN‘Emt ® mntummg S13JSUeL} - SIUM INOY 21LIS-U OF STUBWARY 13130 LOL
ro| Bl %) 08t IETHILITI wEEuo_n_ 1By 1 _E sjuawAeq 001
0 - (4] OLEY siajsuel] - E?_w_u__.__ mmu__au \LE:EEau _E ﬂ_._mc;mm mm
1] | [4] [1)4372 - ﬂwtcm_._. L- mhc m“mo_huuhulge siuawAed wm
0 — 1 o 0EEY Slajsuel] - «EEma_.._ (1] mE:EEouE:u( 104 syuawAeq 16
[ [ 0ZEY  siajsuel - nEwmwlm...a uolleanpy {e133ds oy syuaurAeg 96
1] | 1] OTEV S si3jsuel] - wEEwo_n_ Jgjnday Joy ﬂ:mE>mn_ g6
0o | ) 00Ty {33835 U) vonIn - S3IUN 110D 72 3510 19YIO 0F SuBWAE feI0L 6
Y | 4] o6zt «mw:tmt 5 mmtuwmQ\ SUM 1A0D) 31PIS-U]| 0} SIUBWARY J3LI0 €6
4] 4] 08ty UOIN] - SWeIB01d 13410 Jo} sjuawAeg 26
(1] (1] [ Va4 4 :c:_:._. mEEmEm 283(]0) Alunwiwo) 1o} spuswied 16
(1] 0 ovey :o_u_:._. mEEwo& 31D Joj sjuswAhed 06
0 (] OFZY uolyin] - swesdold UoNeINP3 SUINURUO)/YNPY 10} SusWAEd 69
0 1] [oT4472 uomn] - sweis§oid uoneonp3 [e12ads Jo) syuswAeg 29
0 0 (%474 uolun] - swesBold Je|N3ayY J0} siu3WARY yA:]
SOE'RrE ] SOERYS (13 ~ [meis-ul) u.::dslwlaia 10 03 swAUARd (210 98
0 0 0 0611 auﬁ__E..E 8 aqus30) E:S 100D 21€35-U] 01 S1UBMWIARY IBYIOM~ G8
0 0 0 oLty 4 dafiod Runwuic) 1o} e Ty
BYE'06 0 BYE06 oviv - swesFold 310 J0) ..nﬂm:.in._ £6
0 0 ] OEIH sweifoid uoneanpy i 1Ny 10y d 78
910'8SE 0 910'8ss 0Tty swesgosq uoieanp3 jFads 10y suswiAeq 18
0 0 0 0TIy sweiBoid Je|nday 1o} suaiuheg 08
00Tt "~ [21835-u]) suup 3809 3810 130 03 SIUBLIARY 6.
8.
0007 0o o 0 0 0007 0 0 0 HET = L
rO'8E]’E 0 ovv'oz 00572 00001 009°¢9¢ TBYVEE EETHES 60€'L8Y'T 000z | S smwasuoddnserel | gg
0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0 | 0062 (aziway » .wa.:umm.& sa01A296 Hoddng say30 Gl
0v8'009 o 0v6'8T 0 0000T 166'90C £€85°S8 097'vE 990°5tT 0052 - Ienu23 - 53310135 Lioddos €101 [
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0992 saoInI9s Furssaoosg meq [
000 0 0 0 0 0 000T 0 0 0¥z - ) ) RS ZL
| Ov8'365 0 ~ [ ove'sT 0 00001 166'907 £85°E8 09 %E 990'ShT 0£9¢ ) S331135 UOREULIOMU| 1L
o 0 0 G 0 0 0 0 0 0792 SIIIAIAS LONEN(BAT 7§ d a _._Enmmu.w Auuueig [\

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0192 s9310195 Lioddng _mb:wu J0 uoiaNg Im@l
0092 1eAU) - s331nues poddng 89

| £€7'265 o jo 9167 0 97078 1978 708 86T'0VE 005z = ssauisng - saoinias podans 6301 79
€56 04 0 o i} 0 000'2T £56'€S 0 0 05t ) 5301035 [2UI| 99
187°007 0 0 9L 0 687'EY €087 959'€7 [SL°0ET 0952 - ~ soamssspooy c9
0 0 0 0] 0 0 0 0 0 0SSZ $321A135 Uonepodsuesy Jidng $9
0 0 o] [¢] 0 0 0 0 0 oSz S92IAIBS UL 0 BIUBLBIUIRIN 1§ UOnEIdD €0
69E0LT 0 0 095 0 LE9'ET SOEYE BLV'TT 6ZE'GE 0752 . o S9N (B Z0
OE8'0ST 0 0 085 0 00T orl'E B68'0E TIT'0TT 015z — F29(A125 1INDANS SsauIsng 4o uowIaNg 19
1 o0esz N ssauIsng - $321u3s Woddng 09

15e'eeg 0 0 S6ET 0 vor't 005’y 181611 TIBVIS oovz = :o:m:m_:_sg 100y - 53310135 Loddng |10 65
s)jausg wawdinby sjeuen saoines # - —_— >

1e0L uoneuwIa] pazyended-uoN sw3lq0 s3y10 Aenno jexde) 3 saddng paseyaund Sijauag aahojdusz SaLRpes Puny AjuQ sisquinn 3oy 123u3 :uondidsag
(006) (008) {ooz) (009) (00s) (oov) (00€) (002) {oot) 1]
A r | H 3 E| E | ad o) g \4
€1 abey




Leoz/eLis

N0z ASNQ 8Uclosd zzd 92-N.0Z2-660-95486pNg ZZA4\H

0 0 ot1s _ - N SwueLep vopedioguy Xe | 191
aots 192Q W3] -1oYS UO 1531331 - BIIAIAS 1gaqg a9l
S9l
0 0 ooov |  (swesunswupaen d 110 3O 03 sjuswked 1210) vl
0 06Tt ?»_E._ﬁ_ ® 2q149533) ﬂ_:D u>ou Emum uj oy ﬂcmc;mm 13y10 £al
0 oz - nEn._uEn :o_Eu:_uw [er3ads Joj syuawieqd Zol
0 11327 - o - mEEuEn_ 1enay Joy syuswiheq 191
i B (e1E35-0j) S11UN 0D B 1510 13 0) Suauked [09F
651
e ) .mn: NN ING3S 1830 - 0€[8GL |
= —— = e = — - B FTTH
fzio'sri’s) | saimipuadx3/s1uswasingsig 1anQ sanuanay/s1diaaay Jo (Axuayiyag) ssaax3 051
wovegzeE |0 | oo0Swr 002505 000°'S0T'T 000%Sy | 059'08% £06°SZT SET'E09 S IMIpUSEa/SIURIFSINGSIA e eI
000'00S 000005
0 0 0005 st 395 IgaQ (BI0L £Gl
G = 0 0025 1q9Q W3- u:o._ Uo IsaIaju) - ANAIRS 1g2Q ¢Sl
0 _d 0 0015 i 3930 WBL-UOYS UD IS2I3U] - SANIAS weg el LGL
0 0 0s1S faiusan .wuazuﬂﬁ 193¢ WIB-1I0YS U 1S3123U] JBYI0 NG
0 | 0 ov1s 59321113 LDNEdNTY Py A181S 6%
0 _ 1] 0t£TS - »B_..Z vu—ma_u:_..q Xe| _awxln_o..a _m:mmwn_..nmﬂenvou BFl
0 _ 0 0z1s SPI10N vopedizuy.xe|
0 _ 0 ) ) T siueuep uopedinuyg xe]
1430 W3 1-10YS UO 3153430 - 32IAISS 1920
[0 0 0 ooor UuA IAOD 3B 3510 J9YIQ 03 SUBWAEY {E10] bl
0 0 00ty Eulﬂm 4OIN0) SUUN 10D 7 3510 1BYI0 01 SIUBUARY vl
0 0 0 ooty — .mgmm ul) SHun 10D B 3510 1BYI0 03 SuBWARY 1B30) Ll
0 0 0 061t Eu:tm: ® ma:u«mg 3.:3 1A0D 3IR1S-U| 0} ﬂ:wE>ma BYI0 ol
o 0 0 oriy ) o weuFodd 315 104 swwawhAeHO mm l
0 1] [¢] 0zZiv .I ) «Emuwﬂ:a uonesnpy _m_uwumho@WE\,mmh T
0 0 0 otty o mEm_wEn_ Ie[n3ay Joy syuawAhed IEL
ooty (2135-0)) SUN IAOD 13 151 94D 02 SUBWAEY 9€L
Sel
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 A . Lo,
T6Y'88L'T 0 00S'vT 00T's 000°S0T'T 000'vSt 059081 £06'SZT SEC'E09 000 S 53311138 woddns 2301
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0062 _(awiay g 2qu3s50) sadinIRg Leddns saipng Zcl
26v'88L°C 0 005'pT 00z’ 000°50T'T 000'pSt 059°08¢ £06'ST1 SEZ'€09 0052 — ssouping - seanes voddns oL |10
0 0 0 095t 5321A135 POOY (1}54]
0 o. B 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 o 0ssz [ERIIELN co:mtoamcm_._. dng 621
T6Y'BELT 0 00S'vT 002's 000°S0T'T 0007Sh 059'0Ev £06'STT SEC'E09 orsz 3010195 1UB|d 4O 3DUBUIILIEN ._o_uE.vun. 9zl
000°0S 0 0 0 0 0 000'0S 0 0 81374 S92IAI3S UORDIMASUOS 1§ LOMISINBAY S B4 121
0 0 (o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0152 B S9INAIDS r_n..mm:m mwm.c_M_._mIBI_._o_uuw__o 9zl
o0sz e uisng - seojaeg vioddng  [Gz |
0 =S nq - Q. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0617 «mN\Em: g mﬂbmm& 5| 1dnd - S331A13G 110 ( 271
00T 1idng - saa1nu85 Poddng cZ1
ccl
(W30) anni IINVYNIINIVINl NV SNOILYY3O - 07 icl
\az'aee o " lesst %:Emmmmﬁﬁuam 6L
YHM) sainipuadxy/ 13RO H/adiasay jo (Auayaq) ssaaxg
[eRT'97Z T - © (666T Spung Auanay wapms (g |
b . UUM) sunypuddxg/ G810 130 d/s1d1339y jo ;uca_u__oﬂ__ $53I%3
b2 1SS b 0 ov61Z 8bS'E16 00001 8L70L crpEeT BLUBSEC ObE'03T'6 {666T) SPUN3 AXARIY 1USPMIS Ui S2IMIPUR XA /SUSWRSINGSI] 192210 [E10L m
R 0 5 or6'1T 85'8€8 000'0T 78.'70L 9SV'v8E'T 8LT'8GE'T OVE'09T'6 (666T) SPUN AJiARoy 3U2pMms NOYUM) S3NPURXI/ 9510 192110 fe10L oLl
BIEIT] wawdinb: sjeuae SBIINID -
fe101 Housa 3 $129(q0 JaY10 Aepng jendes L i s1jausg dakoydwig saLre|jeg L [
UonBUIWIS ) pazijeyide)-uon g sa1jddnsg paseyaund Vung AuQ siaquinN ajoym 433u3 :uonduasag
(006) {008) (002) (009) (oos) (oop) (oo€) (002) (oot) )
A r | H [9) E| 3 a o) g A4
v1 abed

STUNLIANIIXI/SLNINIASUNESIA G3LVINILST

vl abed



LeozieLis

N20Z dSNQ 8U0i09d zzZ4™ 92-N.0Z-660-95WeBPNg ZZAH

088 06T) L) / 10 J3AQ . ..:.mun_muuz jo ;u:m_u.:mn: ss39x3
T5v'ee8’T 0 0 0s0'8 00002 0000t2 6LY'BES T8F'PE Try'186 ~ saimupuadx3/suswasingsiq 1995 (el
0 0
0 Q = 3310136 3630 |e10) rAYA
0 0 00ds ?N_Ew: u:m wn:umwn. BY IO - NIMBG 1029 e
0 0 = S {Po1nay jedpung oLz
005 m%ﬁ.:&\ammu.: 1990 w3, .—.nca._ uo _g__u:_.:_ 10 sjuswifey - wu:”wm 1934
0 0 oo¢s zun w9)-8u0q uo ) 1sasmu| - 2anes 192|602
0 0 ﬂm e unda WiI3]-1I0US UQ 153133 - IJIAISS .um_wm _Immm._.l ) 202
0 0 05TS «mw:tm: pup .un:umwe 193q Ewwf._.luwo:m _._w mmwwwum_ _m;uo 107
1] 0 ovTS S91e21/11420) uoneddUY ply 23815 8N
0 [} OETS 210N opiednuty xey doy doug jeuossag aiesodic) [G0g
0 0 0Z1s s210N uoneddiuy xe| ¥0¢
0 0 oTTS mu:mtm\s :o_umn_u_u:/.\ Xej £02
Swn_ [BICY to:m U0 1S942U) - 2IAIRS 1090 c0c
[ 0 = | o 1] 5 . 000v m.::.. Sow m 1510 1910 S.m.._._.aﬂ.mmlm_ﬂ«o._. 00z
_||.Jo — S 0 (3znway ® aqisaq) 661
| Oovy (31835-10-INQ) 511UN 180D 13 2SI SSYPQ 03 SUALARY
| 0 0 —— 001y T (ees-ui) snunnon ' 150 IR0 03 SIuaUATd €301 lgs
0 o] 0 06TV ?N‘Em: 5 mﬂb«m& suun u>ow 31e)5-U} O ﬂ:wE\,mn_ FEIiTs) 161
0 0 0 0LTY aEEwn__a a83j03 ALUNWWOY 1o suawAey 061
0 1] 0 ovly SWeIFo.d 317 40} STUBWARY G561
0 0 0 OETH nEa.ao_:_ uonesnp3 m:_::_ucou\::u< 10} wu:wE>mn_ PEL
0 t 4] 0 oty uEEmo‘_n uol3eanp3 |e1>3ds loj siuswAed €61
Y u 4] 0 (03944 - weldo4d J2|NEY 10} SIUWARYCN Z61
00Ty {P1836-UI) SUUN 3805 19 151G 3910 03 SwawAed T ([ 6|
e 061
0 o 1o [ 0 0 0 0 0 681
[esreest 0 o 050’8 000'0Z 000°0vZ 6LV'8ES Z8Y'vE Tov'186 000z -~ )  somwesuoddngmoy
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0062 (el un:uwuo._ s221A135 LDddng 1ay10 N
TSP'Te8T 0 0 0508 00002 000°0v¢C 6LV'8ES (41443 Trr'186 0557 o mmu_Ewm wopeodsues) pdng QgL
- ssaulsng - saanuss woddng  |G8|
.Io||||ll.ll.|ol|[.v. T m_r.%? lllllll m T O|I |...ro o o| g m N |O|Ii B | mmm m ——— faziwayy w‘mn.:m_mm.n\ :n_ ES _,?_wm, uo ns h.w,mu@. a1
0ot - spdng - wwu..EwmIt.onnsm €81
281
LT (u1) aNN4 NOILYINOdSNYYL - 0v| 181
| 658°22 oo jo
L8T'LEKT . [8Z'BY'T s mipuadxa/RUALISLINGSIG DoNA 161
[ 60609 £06'09
[Bigotre * 8Le9Eve 0 _PARsigiamoL |
003 009 0 ovs (o220 3 7qu3s2q) 1910 2913 1930
000'5i2C oo0'scTe e  (pai03d [edisusd aseipingfmenl)  [p7]
00ES ch w3 1-3u0y uo |edpuig Jo SUSWARY - ARG 1G3Q
844'09T 844°091T 0028 1990 Wwia1-3u07 UD 1sAIAY - - eopuag 1990 €Ll
0 0 001S 70 WIAL-HONS UD 1521310 - 34 3q2G 0] Z/L
0 | 0 0STS " fapwan ® B_:umd._ Emn_ wis) - :a_._m uo 153I33U] ._wfo 1.1l
0 S | 0 orTs — o mmum..uu wu uonedinuy _u_< B 0lLL
0 0 0€1s saton wonedinuy xe day doiq (euosiad mexnding 691
0 0 oz1s o - S910N uorediuy e | 891
sujsuag juawdinby sjeuaen SIIAID!
18101 :o_uM:_E._w 1 pazijende)-uoN $131a0 210 Aeno jeides ﬁ_ww__nn:m twmmcuh”n_ SWaudg shojdusy Souees ﬁusm AJuQ s1oqumnp 3joyn Jajug uonduasag ¢
(006) (008) (002) (009) (00s) {oob) (00€) (002) {oot) m
A r | H 9 El El a o) g v
G| ebeg STANLIANALXI/SINIWISANESIA QI LVINILST

G| abey



LeocieLis

N0z ASND dU0l03d zZ8™ 92-N/0Z-660-95186PNg ZZAIH

009z 1enua) - saanues uoddng Gle

IEPBOE | TEY'60E 0052 ~ ssouisng- soapuag uoddns jeioL vz
0 0 0452 - o S3IIAIDS |BUIR3Y| nm.mnml
voZ'ee YoT'Te 0952 o N ) S32IAIDG POOS 2.2
862'E9T 86C'€9T 0552 5321135 UoReLIodsuer) (1dng 112
Ov6'E0T 0v6'E0T (4] 474 - 2910135 ucm_n_ 10 32USUUIEN B uonesadp 0.2
0 0 0£S5Z 52235 UOIONNSUOY 5§ UORISINDIY SaNNIBS 692
S6.°9T S6/°91 0752 - ~ sowesexsy  [gog
veI'E P6T'E 01sZ $321A125 1J0ddNS SSAUISNY JO UORIBA] 197
0052 i W ssauisng - sa31asas Uoddng 0992

605, 6052 oove  UneRSUIUPY 00uS - seowias voddns ol |oop ]
0 (4] 064 _..d_ntm: kd _wa:umun_‘. uoIIBJISILIWPY .oocum SIIINIDS :oaa.:m _lmmumw Y9z
605°L 60S'L [1)8774 . _ seaInss tedipulld 941 4o o to £92
00v2 WY j001DS - 831125 Loddng c9C

tv8’s ¥8°6 00£Z > 5-seomssuoddnsieior — [)oz
] 0 69EZ ERITYEINT-Ea] 09z
0 |._ 0 89£7 sjualwhed paurinsu| jEaosdinay 652
[ | 0 79€7 uonoNpay 10 co:cm>m& $507 03 pa1Rj2Y AIDS ton?__wa:m .:vvn_u..: J1e3np3 367
0 * 0 99€7 EcmEm_tmm u.:.m..«.._..g._.._uu..: 162
0 | 0 S9€7 “SIHUARS Sthing suie|) pue n..mE_._amE.s_ V_m_m 0Ge
0 | 0 b9ET (3uBINSUI-yjas Jo JEynfal] siuaLihed adueinsul GGZ
0 |_. 0 £9ET s1U3WAed IduBINSL) Eu_wﬁmr.:..:: pGe
0 | 0 29E7 siudwAeg sv mmmwﬂo uopednIan SIINIOM J0 :o_umm:wnEou..ﬂlm{o; ammIN..
% —_ _ 0 T9¢£7 puny mu:m:._wc_ 135 Wouy U_mn_ Swie) YASTA
|o ——— _ O[ 334 ) wmu_.me w>_umbm_:_E_u< mE( =ixads FmN
| 8v¥'C 0Zf£T S99IAI3S UORBIISIUILIPY 3A1N3X] 052

_ 96€"L 0TET 530|195 UOREINP3 4O pleog 6¥Z

_ 00€¢ :ozmbm_c_Em.< |eJaua9) - $831A495 Poddng 1474

90LT H00CZM]IE T 5 e =i =§_§§g_§p vz

0 0€TT Buinsa] R WANLSTISTY T

91L 07zT S3IIAISS BIDIWN [RUDIIEIND Gz

066 11944 53214135 UONINISU] 4O JDWAAGId] e

00zz T peis|evondnisu) - seapuss woddng b2

820’6k 8206y 00Tz S T iidna- seoihivs oddng evoL 72
0 0 06TC ?.._Ew: g AqUI5AG) 5|(dng - S32IAIS Hoddng 1BYIQ Lve
ore'z o9’z 051z — seanas Aojoinny & Afojouied wasds  |Opg
LIv'E LT otz o T samnuss [Eaiojoyadsg 6EZ
ERSEL £85'67 €Tz S ~ sommssqiesH |gez
PLETT PLETT srax4 - © saiaies adveping ice
v10T ¥10'T 01tz D " S30IAI3S IO JBINOS 78 2IUEPLILY 08z
0012 o !I.E:m - saoKuas woddng GEZ

vee

Teret F Ter'8ie 000t L i T uommnsueor

0 0 0061 sweiSold _m:ozn_o 3 SAIRUIY JUBNIL 282
0 0 0081 . ) mEm_moi |endunig 162
6CT 6CT 00LT sweJBod L UoREINPT §,49A1Q 0€z
0 0 0591 T  swetSoud pamy 62z
S¥6 Sv6 009T T B — mE|m_mEA_ J00Y3S JBWWNG Y44
._vmm.c_ PSEY 00ST mEm_moi JuseI0YIsIY| 122
veL'z 6L 00vT T sweBoid 3o ﬂ
0 0 00€T N ﬂ:EmﬂﬂMowmu:.nm mc_zcz:ou\u_aud\ MNN
0 0 SLZT N-a1d wesfosy _mu:mEm_an_:w pue |ejpaway $ZT
Im.: L3 — Eids 0szT ZT-¥ weifoig _mEme_mmmm.u:m_m_umﬁmaml B (a4
| l 0 Lr44N N-31d sweiSold uojesnpy (444

lmMm|. m...nlll | SEE9TT 0021 B SN«- acma wca:u::b mEmuwlo._n_ voneanpy 122
E:u 619 STTT ) .ﬂ.:mmoi v_.m_n_lnr_uhws
6¢1'Eh I 67176 00TT weidoid Jejnday 6LZ

|el0L Siyauag ywiswdinby spalqoaylo | Aepng jende) EIEESIS SIS s1yoUag sako|dwg sauejes # [4
uoljeUlWIA] pazijende)-uon 13 saiddng paseyaung Jouny AluQ s1aquiny 3oy 123u3 ‘uonduasag
(006) {oog) (002) (009) (00s) (0ot) (o0¢) (002) (00T1) [} ]
A r | H 9 3 3 a 9. g A4
9| abed

SIUNLIANIIXI/SLNINISUNESIA QILVINILST

9| obed




Lcoz/eLis

N20Z ASND 8U0l0ad Z2d 92-N/0Z-660-95186pNg ZZA4\H

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 oovT sweigold 319
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00£T - sweifouq UONEdINP3 BUINLRUGD/HNPY
0 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0 0 (x4  y-21d sweidoid [e1wawaiddns pue |epawsy
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0571 ~ z1-¥swesSoid [pauawaiddns pue [eipaway
0 0 0 0 0 4] 0 0 0 1444 S N-24d sweidold uoneanpy exads
0 0 0 0 0 0 o] o] i) 0021 (0ZZT - 00ZT suoIdUN4) sweidolg uoneInp3 (e13ads
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 szit - sweiBold y-aid
0 0 STIT S]00Y2S JILIeYD 03 JUSWARY UORIN]
1] 0

00TT

sweiBoud sejnsay

rt a4 L¥OL - S

:E
l

IB {OM) aNn3 HSYD DNDINOMBL|BLE

oclo|o|oa| o|ofl~

(=)

s2inuipuadx3/ 1510 4an0 /509y 1o | yaq) ssang Lig
0 0 o 0 B 0 0 0 =  samypundxg fAuswEsingnqg 1590 [E10L
1]
0 0 = ooay SN 1105 § SISIQ SN 1 s1wIked (E101 ble
0 0 06TY ___m_u__ES- 7 nﬂﬁﬁg _...:Ewé_ SHUM IA0D J2YA0 01 siuaudeg cLe
0 0 ovty - - nEmnw.D;k_ 310 1oy loy _cuE,Eu ZLE
0 0 7487 mEm_wEn_ :o;mu:nm _m_u...am 104 auikeg LLE
0 0 0Tty R - 8014 Jejnfny o1 0 d 0l¢
003t ~ (mmsw) swun oo gasig oo o swewiked  |6OE
80€
o 0 0 0 — o 0 0 0002 ———_  sommsuoddngimol | po
|0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0062 (371211 g mﬂbwmm: SINAIDS ﬁoan:m JETNTe) 90¢
0 0 0 0 0] 0 0 DEST mmu::mm UONDNIISUO) 7§ UOIISINbIY Samoey GO
$589U)sSNg - $2d1JBS Woddng

_&_ mBuEE 2:...5 S

— .|ﬂ_i._
TEEZBT sainyipuadxy/ qsig JaAQ yfsidiaday jo (Aruapyag) ssaoxg
£8E'829 0 EBE'8C9 C sanypuady3/AuDwasingsiq 13ang 19100
0 0
[} 0  #IAgIGeq [EI0L /62
0 0 0515 B faziuaiy 3 2quasaq) Jayi0 |s62
0 0 orTsS 531831413190 uopediaguy ply 3181 mmN
0 0 OETS mwaoz co..na_u_uza. -.E. E.uz doid [euosIad ..y-mhouhau va
0 0 0z1s S210N Loy XeL €62
0 0 0T15 S swueLrep uBredo iy Xe] 262
00ts 199Q W3] - CEm U0 153434u] - 8IS 3G L6Z
06¢
0 0 000 == suun 1008 1910 5900 03 AuRwAed |eYor 692
0 0 ovTY  swesBosg 319 10) ssuawheg 887
0 0 0zty o - sweiBoig uoneanp3 (e Joy n:v:._ann 19z
0 0 0Tty = 1014 tenay 10) swuswAEg 982
G8¢
0 6
£oe00p 206’607 0002 gl - i
2 0 006¢ ?N.Emt % mntummn.: mwu_?_mm yoddns saypg 282
YRETE ¥8e°ZE 0092 = = |enua) - se1as woddns e10) 1 182
0 0 0992 - - mwu_ilm.m mc_mmmumn_ .Smn_ 082
0 e 0 0v9z - SPIANI3S Yeig GLZ
P8E‘CE ¥8€'7E 0€97  s921M1a5 UoREWIOU| _whN
0 0 0797 mou_Emm co:v:_m>m L] u:wEno_m>wQ wzxu_smvm,mmm ‘mc_ccm_n_ th
0 0 0192 mmu_tmm to%:m _m::mu %o co:uw:n_ 9.2
sjyauag awdinby sjeuae SIS - T
|e30L 4 swalqo Jay10 Aepng jender i 1S s)yauag aaAojdwz saue|es N ¢
uoneuIWID | pazijeude)-uoN v salddng paseyaung Uy Ao s;aquinn ajoym 12303 :uondinsag
(006) (008) (00z) {009) (00s) (oot} (oo€) (002) {oot) l
A r | H 9 4 3 a o) d A

L1 abed

SIAUNLIANIAXI/SLNIWISYNESIA 3LVNILSI

1| abed



LeocreLi8

n/0Z 0SNO 8uoload Zz8 92-N/0Z-660-95ueBpng ZZAJ\H

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 079 53211235 UolEN|ERT B [ar0g " ‘Buibusyd IER

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0192 mmu.amm 1oddng [eJ1u3) Jo uoiENg

0092 - 1enUa) - 533|195 LOddng
[006Ty o 0 052 Jo 0007 059'€ 0 000 005z —— ) ssaupsng - sapues woddns @0l |pae
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 045C B B SIAIDS |RUISIUY £8¢
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0952 e ] — _ sedmias pooy Z8E
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0ssZ " sa31A185 uonELIGdsIELL ndng 18€
006'1v 0 0 0S¢ 0 000°T 059°LE 0 000°E ovse B wmu_hw.m. 1UEId 40 3UBUSIUEN B voneRdy 08¢
0 0 Q0 0 0 0 0 0 0 07sZ o o SIIIAISS |51 6.
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [1)8-74 $821A135 110ddng ssauisng Jo UoN3UIQ LA
005Z - ssaujsng - seajaiss woddng  |//¢
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0otz  USHenSIumIPY [00YS - SIS wioddns 1e101 9/€
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [¢]574 (az1way m mnpSm.uS uonens|uupy _moﬁm - 221195 3ioddns 12410 GlE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (01874 5321A135 |edIdULId BYY JO 210 vi€
0o0vz __ USHENSIURPY [00WDS - SdARS LIodans  |6/¢
€£9'98¢ 0 o 0 0 0 ££9'98¢ 0 0 00€2 ; [ - 5921135 Loddng jeroy zi€
£/9'982 0 0 0 0 €£9'98¢ 0 0 S9E7 [SUE Amu_\:wm swie|d pue u_._wEmmm:mS_ ysiy (WIS
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 T9€2 - _puny mucm52_ yas Eo:.umn_;m.w_m_u (13
0 0 o 0 o] 0 ] 0 0 0EET mmu::mm co_umbm_:_E_u< BalY _q_uuam mwm
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0zET mwu_Eww co_umbm_c_Eg ELGLEENE] 9a9g
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (51414 mmu_\:mm uoneanp3 *o ﬂ:mom 19¢
00EZ ” IWIpY [E43U3D - S39IA2S UCTANG 19gg|
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 oozz = soranaIsu| suoddns 0L |Ggg
0 0 g 0 0 0 0 0 0 [o]344 m::w._h w EwEmmmmw< $ag
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o0zez . mmu_amm BIP3IA lEUONIEINPT £ag
0 . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [ ¥4 SDIIAIIS UOIINIISY| JO EmEm>oEE_ A
0022 i U [euomonAsy| - sedines woddns 167

= ————— - 0 0 0 0 0 0012 — 3 fidng - sa31A1ag Loddn

lo = 0 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0 06TZ AmN_Ew: ] mp:ummn: m__n:n_ $32IAIDS :oaa:m 2Y10 mmm
0 0 - 0 0 (1] 0 0 0 0 0STZ 5321A135 AZotolpny 1§ ASojowied ylaads BGE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ov1ie T 8321095 [ea(F0foASEN 15€
0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0ETZ - SIS UHERH — [9GE |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0zTe S2DIAI3S 32UEPING GGE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (11444 - T s3a1n13s YI0M [e100S 8 3IUBRPUINY vGE
00TZ idng - ssaias uGdANs  [gGE

STUNLIANIJXA/SINIWISUNGSIA AILYNILST

8] abed

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0001 - = S.ﬁ...&_..:ﬂmp 1GE
0 0 2261 uomny wumzi mEm_mnH.cu Soxwzumeu_( siueny) 0G¢
0 0 1¢61 I uonin| aeaud sweiSoud fenduyg (3149
0 0 0261 o ) uony 31eAld swerford paylo /bs
0 (4] 6T6T uonIn| 1AL SWeold 100YdS ISWwng 1vE
g o 8T6T == uoIIN| 31eALId SWeIZ01d D1ISE|OYISIaIU| abe
0 0 L16T o uoniny s1eAlld swerSosd 319 E
0 0 9T6T uolIn| 1A SWeiFoid uoneInp3 Suinuiuol/ynpy (s
0 0 SI6T Ny 318ALd ¥-31d sweJFoud |eyuswajddng/|eipaway £FE
0 0 PI6T _._c:__._‘_. 31eAd 4% ﬂcm_mci euswsa|ddng/jeipaway e
0 0 ET6T :o:_:h M- m:n_ mEm_moi uonesnpy eads (R4
U 0 [4%18 T FMV_::._. 2JBALId ZT-) SWelSoud uonesnpy epads [0)74%
Y 0 1161 i :oc_z._. mum>:n_ swesdosd 71-) teinday GEE
0 0 - 0t6eT co_u_:._, 218ALld - swesdold Y-3id gEC
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 006T sweidorg |BuoldQ '8 AAIIBUIYY JUENI] I
0 0 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0 008T I sweigoud [endulg qge
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0041 o - - sweidold Uonesnpy s Jaaug GEE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0597 — — o | sweiSolg payytD vee
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 009T B swedold |00Yas Jawwng £ce
0 o} 4} 0 0 0 0 0 0 00ST wEEmeme.ol_._uﬂmm_l Z8¢
syyoud Juawdinb sjewale SIINAID
1oL .._o._a.M:_Ewu 1 uon__ma_nau._woz sP3[40 oo Aepng jeydes .w_m.w__wn_-\_,_m _ummm._uhwa s1yauag sahojdu SaLeres uu“«:u ApuQ siaquinp 3joyan 19u3 uondunsaq ¢
(006) {008) (00z) (009) {oos) (oov) {oog) (002) (oot)
M r [ H B) d 3 a Q) g v
g1 abeyd



Leocrelig NZ0Z dSND 8u0l08d 228 92-N.02-660-961136PNg ZZAJ\H

o ...mmu' s 1109 kJ s Ei@u‘m.n.—:%ﬂ_woo_.
0 06T ._maEuz ® 20125307) SHUM IA0D B1e16-U| 03 BILIWARS IO cbh
0 0zty swesFolq UonEanp3 [e13ads o1 suawwhey
0 0Tty - e80s4 Jejnday o Aoy
B i et | S SIS | S (15 0 . ooz | T e T
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0062 T EN_EME ® 3q14353(7) $331M35 Loddns LBLRO QCY
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0057 —maae — ssauIsng - $32(195 10ddnS |e30L IS
0 0 0 0 0 0 4} ovsT 921195 1UE|d 4O SPUBLDIUIEIN 7§ uonesadn R
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o314 S3DIAIDS UOIINIISUO)) 7§ Leis| ki salu|oey GEb
L ssaujsng - sajiasas Uoddng 4%
EEb
= ) i ) {5%9d3) ONN4 AL33VS ' NOLNIAINA 3014 - 067 b
—_—— == { =g St imasian I
S6E'BZT . 1 ; ; =4 saunypuadxy/! Ingsiq 1280 Y/ mun_muux 10 (Aouapyaq) ssaixg [4]%4
£8L°9EE 0 0 vov's 0 000'T £2E'vTE 0 000'E ~ saunpuadwy/swswasingsig 1390 101
{454 71e'8 . NOD ¥
0 0 IS 1G3Q |BI0L
0 0 0STS (F2nuay @ LA ] 1630 W13 -110YS 10 152131U1 JBYI0
0 0 OETS mmuoz :nsucn_hg_:d xe| Emeum_aux A113doud jeuosiad a1ei0dio)
0 0 0T1S SIUBLIBAA co_uma_u;:< Xe] vy
1930 WJ3 1-HOYS U0 15313 - IIAIDS 1990 INAd
s - {444
0 = 0 0 000 5w suun oo g sgIo o swawked el || 7
0 0 0 oot N Aoumum Jo u:Ov suun u>ou 1] G_n_ 12410 01 S1USWARY _uw_v
0 0 0 00EY (33835 UY) S4935URI-SUN INOD g 151 JBUIO 03 SIUBLIARY jEIOL BLY
0 0 0 06EY EN\EP: ¥ 2G11753(7) S13JSURI - SIIUN 1A0D) 23EIS-U] 03 SIUSWAEY JaUI0 gLy
0 0 08¢l s1ajsuel] - sweidoig 12410 104 syuswAed LLp
0 0 0LEY ﬂm»mcm_._, wesJold 383(100 Ayunwnuod 10} syuawAey gly
0 0 [vi234 Ewt:,mw:mc_m_moi 319 Joy mu:mc;mnTJ GlLE
0 0 OEEY ssaysuel) - sweidold p3 m:_:c_wcoub_:n‘x 10} SIUSWABLD bl
0 0 0ZEY siajsued] mEEwEn_ uoresnp3 [e1aads Joy ﬂ:mE>mA_ Cly
0 0 OTEY ﬂm_m:m:. mEm_wo._n_ Je[n8ay Joy syuswAey Z\y
0 | 0 ooz {2 u)) uonng - S3IUM WA0D g 3810 1230 01 sjuswAed |e1oj 1LY
0 |||I._ 0 06Zh «mw:tmt » wﬂbwmg suun u>ooﬂﬁwlc_ o mm:wc;mn_ JTITe) 0Ly
0 | 0 08zY uoiny - wEm_mo_A_ _m_to 10} squatiAey G0F
0 0 (11247 .Ez__.z. .Efuﬁa mum__ou 3_::EEcu 10} S1UBWARY 808
0 0 ovzy ~womn - sweiBoiq 317 10} SIUBWARY 10F
0 0 (¥[34 uonmy - aEemn:n uoneanpy m:_:c_u:ou\«_:c< 10) SIUDWARY 0
0 0 oy COZ_:._. mr:m‘_mohn_ _._O_umu:ﬂm _m_uwnm 1o} mucwE>m& mo¢
0 0 [11x44 :o_ In] - sweiSo.d Jejngay 10y sjuswAed 0¥
0 0 0 00TY " (31835-U5) SUUN 0D 3 351 JSUIO O3 SUBWAR [BI0L £0v
0 0 0 0611 EN‘EE\ 2 EE%Q un Suanu-m..m vl o1 nwowhed 20 [20F
0 0 0 0LTt - fioig a%ay07 ALl -- Me__ el 0%
0 0 0 [s] 482 sweiSold 317 Jof 5usWARG 00v
0 0 0 oeTy swesinsd vonednp3 SuiNuIUOY/YNpY Joy sjuswAeyd @mm
0 0 0 [arax’2 sweiFolg uonesnpy [e133ds 1o} sjuawAey mmm
0 0 0 oty ) o sweiSold Jejnday 1oy syuswArd _MW_WI
[21835-U1) s1UN 1105 13 1510 19YI0 & AUBWARE  |GRE
0 0 0 0 0 Nl
£/5°82€ 0 0 0SZ 0 000°T ETE'YCE 0 000°€ " seouag yoddng (o) £6E
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0062 — [3uway g aqusag) smyuss woddns B0 |26
0 1] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0092 fenuay- ) voddng (ex0f 16E
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0992 mmu_iwm w:_mmwuo;_ e1Rq Gmm
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0v9Z ———= T saamiaspers 6BE
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0€9Z ) S _ s9mss uoneuLIOU| mnlml
2101 siysued Juswidinb3 5193lq0 oy10 Aepng teude) R bt sujauag aakojdwy saueles by 4
uoneuIwiz | pazijeyide)-uon 3 sajddng paseysand Puny AluQ sisqunp 1oy 193u3 uondudsag
{006} (008) (002) (009) (00s) {oov) (00€) {002) {oot) [117]
A r | H 9 El E| d Q) g9 Y

61 sbed SIAUNLIANIdXI/SLNINISUNGSIA A3LYNILST 61 abed



LeozieLia

N0Z ASND dU0I0ed Z2a 9z-N.0Z-660-96WeBPNa ZZANH

<r
O
z ] g/ HINGs1q 42RO SAnUIRYY/2I9Y 40 (Kauapyag) ssaxy cCy
[ 0 0 0 0 0 [) h SAIMIPUAdX3fSUAWISINGS)Q 193110 230
- 2 HINFONILNOD HO4 SO £sy
0 0 0065 - M NS 1030 |E10L 5y
0 0 (paunay jedpung 16t
00gs | 9seyundfases) <; 1990 uua)-Fuoy vo jedpuld Jo SsiuswAed - 39185 1990
o 0 0025 E "~ wgeguuai-Suouoisamsiy - anEsiged  J0gk
[} 0 o8t | Y190 H91-U00S B0 1S2uT - SHARS MRA 0L |Gk
0 0 0STS C [amwal  aqpssag) 1990 WIS1-10YS U0 15309U] 100 3rr
0 0 0T1S - swenem vonedenuy <EL | L
ERE. 3 ds 0015 1030 WLIB1-1I0YS U0 35219 - DS 190 |Op
syjauag uawdinby sjeuaie|y SIS # Tz
) 9 A d auag
fei0L uojeulula) pazyended-uoN sw3lq0 20 ERNO Jede) 19 s9jjddng paseyaund S soiduz SauBes »ung Aug srequinn ajoym 121u3 uopdudssg
(006) (008) (oaz) (009) {00s) {oov) (00€) {ooz) {ooT) |
A r | H 3] E| 3 a J ] A4
0z sbed

STUNLIANILXI/SLNIWISYNESIA ILVINILST

0z 8bed




Page 21 Page 21

This page is provided for detailed itemizations as requested within the body of the Report.

OO O U WN R

=
= O

. 10-4998 is for the Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Grant funds (10-4998)
. 10-3999 is for FY20 School District Library Grant award

. 10-1690 - Food Service Rebates
. Revenue Fund 10 Function 1790 - this revenue is listed as an estimate of all student activity funds for FY20. The creation of

. 10-1993 - Credit Card Processing Fees

. 10-1999 - Miscellaneous Revenues (Pepsi, Recycling, Scholarship, etc.)

. 20-1999 - Parking Permits and O&M Rebates

. 40-1999 - Reimbursement for Student of the Month Transportation

. 10-1900-600 Expense Fund 10 Function 1999 Object 600 - this expense is listed as an estimate of all student activity funds for
. 10-2190-400 - PHS and PJHS Graduation Supplies

. 30-5400-600 Expense Fund 30 Function 5900 Object 690 is for bank paying agent fees on bond payments.

H:\FY22 Budget\56-099-207u-26_B22 Peotone CUSD 207u 65 8/13/2021



Le0e/el/8

Nn/0Z ASNO suojoad zzg 92-N/02-660-951ebpng ZZAH

Jowof pun sauyapinb 3gs| Buisn padojanap s) ‘paiinbas fi ‘uoyd vonanpas 121fap 3y

el
‘Y4 ayi fo a3upidadan sayfo sAop of uiyaim 3gs) 01 (£Z-£Z 3bod uo a1ay punof) uoyd vonanpas 1afap o Mwans pup ydopo (joys ¢l
3LsIp 100Y2s 3y1 uayl (9 3bod) anogo pauifap so 1alfap o S133)fa1 (44y) 110d3Y j012UDUL [ORULY TZ0Z-0Z0Z Y1 fI - (T-£1/S SO SOT) T-£T U0NI3S ‘2p07) [00YIS 2|
51024 33241 UM [1DfLI0Ys ay3 23uDjog 01 Ujd UONINPaI 11aKfap D 385 Yum 3jif pup 3dopo asnw sip | Ol
ay) "Buipuads 31aiap ay1 sawnl 33.y1 Uoy3 53| S1 23uUbjpg punf Bulpua paiownsa ayl fi ‘51 10YL IN0GD paisy spunf Jnof ay1 Ajuo Buisn pauluiia1ap s| 2aubpg ayl 330N
8
‘(18 auyj) a3upipq punf Bujpua 3yl Jo (g/1) paiyi-aue uoy 1230246 4o 03 jonba Junowo up Aq (6T auly) s24n3puadxa 123.11p uoyj ssa] buiag (g aulj) sanuanal 13a41p ul 3nsas
ar0go paisy| ,spunf Buiipiado,, ayi yaiym ul 13Bpng 12U1s1p j0OYDS ZZ-TZ0Z Y3 (SPUaLLD 10) SIdopp uopBINPa fo puDOq (D30 3yl Ji pasnba. si void vonanpas 1iap v
_ L
|
3wl siy3 Je paJinbai jou S| uejd uonoONPaJ 1OY3P B ‘JIaASMOY ‘198pnq pasuejequn |
2I8'v0L'TT S08'60€'C 050766 _ €09'TT9T _ ¥SE'68L°9 2Z0T '0€ aunf - ajue|eg pung pajewns3 9
(Lb1'8297) Ze0'y (088'067) (zto'st1't) (£82'927'T) sualeyia G
88128561 ISV'Te8T 76V'88C°E VP oLv bl sainypuadxa wang | ¢
T¥0'656'9T [4087 TLS'TES'T 08V'€LT'T LSE'6YT'ET SaNUBARY PalIg ¢
(o) (ov) (0z) annd IDNVYNILNIVIN ¢
uonduosa
viol AaNNd HSYD DNIHOM GNN3J NOILVIHOdSNVYL 8 SNOILYYIdO (o) ann vNONYING3 S a
L
(Aluo spuisia jooyas) Ajuo spung Sunesado - NOILYINYOINI AYVINNS 139aNG L1143
4 3 a _ o) | 9 _ Y
ze abed

2z abed

66



Leozrel/s

N.0Z ASNQ 8ucload gzg™ 92-N20Z-660-95U0PNg ZZA4\H

I8 V0L TT S08'60€°T 0S0'v66 €09°TT9T vSE684°9 JINVIVE GNN DNIGNI GILVINILSI lC
0 (000'00€7) 0 000°000°T 000°00€T SANNJ 40 S3ISN/SIDUNOS ¥IHLO IWIOL oz
000°00€'Z 000'00€°Z 0 0 0 Ge
000°00€'Z 0 0 000°000°T 000°00E'T ve
SONNA 40 SISN/SIUNOS HIHLO| €7
(£¥1'829) (4084 (088°062) (ZT0'STT'T) (¢£82'922'T) saanypuadx3/siuawasingsig (42pun)/19n0 m:u_w‘.wz\mmn_uuwx jossaxg | Zg
881°/8S'6T ISv'Tes’T 65887 '€ vYT'IULYYT sainupuadxy/siuawssingsia je1oL | |7
vPE9Ys 0 000005 vYE‘OrE 0c
0 0 0 0 61
S9E‘8Ys 0 0 S9€8v8 8l
000°T 0 0 0001 Ll
20¥6v¥'8 TSvTT8T T6V'88L°T v9v'8€8'E ol
TL0TY¥'6 1L0'2v¥'6 Gl
#uny mwm::ozmﬂ_xu\&zuzumz:mm_o 145
T#0'656'91 €0 TLSTEST 08Y'€LT°T LS6'6VTET ~ senusasy/aidiacey |eol | €|
SL£'066 0 0 0 S/£°066 Z)
165'626'C 0 000°050°T 0 165°6£8°T Ll
0 0 0 0 oL
SL0'6€0°ET Z€0'y 2LS'TSY 08V'ELTT 166'6L£0T 6
# oy wm:z.uix\mh&uﬁz 8
6S6'ZEE VT £24'509 0£6'782'T ST9'92L1 TY9'STL9 (33upjog puny bugpu3 Joud [pnba Jsnw) Vi
IDNVIVE ONN4 DNINNIDIE GILVINLLSI
leloL pun4 yse) Supjiop | pung uopepodsuesy u_._”_m””“._”mc._wwﬂn_vwi puny jeuonesnp3 =
JWON 131151g
~ n-£ozasnd auojoad | g
o saquiny 1uisia|
9Zn£0z6609S | ¢
[4
AjuQ s1311351Q j00YOS, L

UOISIAIQ S991AIaS Ssauisng |00YIS

NOILYONA3 40 @¥vO04g 31VLS SIONITTI

¢z abey

67



1202/EL/8

NZ0Z ASND su0joad gzd™ 92-nL0Z-660-96ue6png zzAJ\H

ZI8'v0LTT S08'60€°C 05066 €09°T19'T ¥SE'684°9 JDNVIVE ANNJ ONIANI AILVINILLSI lC
0 0 0 0 0 SANN 40 SISN/SIDUNOS YIHLO TVAOL o9z
0 14
0 144
SGNN 40 SISN/SIIUNOS ¥IHL0| €7
0 0 0 0 0 sainjipuadx3 fsyuawasingsiq va::<..w>|o.w._._:wl\mz \wun_wuwm_ “_o.v.m|wu|x.u. YA
0 0 0 0 sanupuadxy/sjuswasingsiq |e1o L W
0 0¢
0 6l
o 8l
0 O Ll
0 9l
0 Gl
N #19uny SIYNLIANIAXI/SINIWISHNaSIa| VL
0 0 0 0 0 . |mwm:mgmua_muwz |el0L €l
0 cl
0. Ll
0 oL
0 6
# 1oV SINNIAIY/SLAIFDIY | 8
TI8'V0LTT S08'60€'C 050766 €09'T19'T ¥SE68L'9 (3aupjog punj buipu3 Jojd [pnba 1snw) /
JINVIVE ONNJ ONINNIOIE GILVINILST
|e308 pung yse) Sunjiopy | pung uoneuodsues n:“u_mﬂu%_”“”.“_n_um_z punj jeuonesnp3 )
SWON 121151q
8 ~ n-£ozasniauoioad | G
DR Jsaquiny pisig| v
B 92nL0266095 | ¢
c
Ao spisig jooyss, ||
7 | M r [ H g Y
UOISIAI]Q SOJIAIag ssauisng [ooYods
¢ abed NOILYIONAd3 40 @¥v0dg 3LV1S SIONITI ¥ obed

68



Lcoc/eL/8 N0Z ASNO suojoad gzd 92-nL0Z-660-96\ebpng ZzAJ\H

I8 VOL'TT S08'60€'C 0S0'v66 €09'TT9'T ¥S€'6829 IDINVIVE ANN3 DNIANI AIIVINLLSI x4
0 0 0 0 0 SANN4 40 SISN/SIIUNOS YIHLO WVLOL 9¢
0 j°14
0 e
SANNA 30 SISN/SIDYNOS ¥IHLO| €C
0 0 0 0 0 saumypuadxg /sauawasingsiqg (Japun)/sanp w.::w>wz \mun._wuwm. «.o|mm.u.uww b
0 0 0 0 saumipuadx3/siuswesingsia ieioy | |7
0 0c
0 6L
0 8L
0 yA
0 9L
0 . Sl
g33uny F 7 _ E .muzmh_azumxumm?usumz:mm.i_ 14
0 0 0 0 0 ‘senuanoy/sidieoay e1oL | ¢
0 Zl
0 Ll
0 ol
0 6
# pv  SINNIATY/SLADI | 8
ZI8V0LTT S08'60€C 0S0'v66 £09'TT9T ¥SE'68L'9 (asupjog punj bugpu3 soud jpnba snw) /
IINVIVE ONN ONINNIDIF QILVINLLST

Ui pung yse Suppom :o_um””._o_”_m:m._.— u::.w"_“_“”__““muﬂ_n_umi pung jeuoizednp3 °

awiop 1911510

N-£0¢ asnd auojoad

69

J1aquiny 1211siq

 92N£0266095

AjuQ spinsig jooyas,,

SN || W0

UOISIAIQ S@9IAIaS SSaulsng |00YoS
Gz 9bed NOILYONA3 40 qy¥vOog I1Vv.LS SIONITTI Gz abed



L2oe/eL/8

N/0Z ASND auojoad gzg 92-N/0Z-660-96196png gZA-\H

ZI8VOL'TT S08'60E°T 050766 €09'119'T vSE'682'9 JINVIVE ANNd DNIGNT Q3LVNIESI lC
0 0 0 0 0 SANN4 40 S3ISN/SIDYNOS YIHLO V101 9z
0 14
0 144
SANN 40 S3SN/S324N0S ¥3HLO| £C
0 0 0 0 0 sainypuadx3y/syuswasingsiq Twu::<..m>0.m::w>wz \mwa_wuwﬂmﬂmwluxlm t4
0] 0 0 O mw._:u_ﬂCOGXU\mHCWEUmu—._Qm_Q (ejog FN
0 0¢
0 6l
0 8l
0 Ll
0 o 9l
0 Gl
#32uny AT W_zEﬂz&xu\ﬂru?uwxmmw_m 145
0 0 0 0 0 " conusnay [sdiedsy jero) | €|
0 i _ zl
i L
DR B
0 6
y # 1Y . mmﬂuﬁm_\w_.h_muﬂz. 8
ZI8V0LTT 508'60£°C 050766 €09'TT9T ¥SE'68L°9 (2oupjpg puny buipuz soud jonba snw) |,
IINVIVE ONNJ ONINNIOIE QILYNILST
1eloL Pund yse3 Suppiom :o_um”hoﬂ_m:m._._. v:”mﬂn”__”“wﬂ.uﬂ_n_vmi pung jeuonieonpy °
SWON I12LSIT
i N-£0Z asnJ auo03d | G
. = 4oquinN 1313510 1%
92n£0z66095 | ¢
4
AjuQ s1u1s1g jooyos, L
A n 1 = m g | v
UOISIAIQ S99IAI9S SSaulsng |00YydS
og obed NOILVONA3 40 aNvOg ILVLS SIONITI 9z abed

70



120c/el/8

NZ0Z ASNO duojoad zzd 9Z-N/02-660-95\186png ZZA\'H

TI8'V0LTT TI8'VOLTT I8VOL'TT ZI8'v0L'TT JINVIVE ANN SNIONT GILVINILSI l2
0 0 0 0 SANN4 40 SISN/STIUNOS ¥IHIO V101 oz
0 0 0 000°00£°C 14
0 0 0 000°00€C : . 0l vC
SANNd 40 mmm...\muum:om ¥aIHLO €c
0 0 0 (£¥1'8297) sain)ipuadxy /syuawasingsiq Twuca\hw>0|wﬂ_._@ﬂwm \mu.n_wwwx JO $S0XF C
0 0 0 881'/85'61 saunypuadxa/siuswasingsig 1oL | |Z
0 0 0 w98 0c
0 0 0 0 6l
0 0 0 S9E‘8h3 8L
0 0 0 000'T Ll
0 0 0 801'6V¥'8 9l
0 0 0 TL0ChY'6 Sl
#1ouRy mmz::czmn_xu_\mhzuiumxzmw.n 142

0 0 0 Tv0'656'9T sanusasy/sidiedey (ew0L | €|
0 0 0 GLE066 cl
(o 0 0 165'626' L
0 0 0 0 0]
0 0 0 S/0'6EQ'ET 6
& 33y SINNIAIY/SLAIFOTY | 8

T8V0L'TT I8v0L'TT I8 V0L TT 6S6TEE VT (3supjog pung bugpu3 roud jonba ysnw) l

IDNVIVE NN ONINNIDIE AILVINILLSI
S20Z-HZ0ZAd ¥Z0z-€202A4 €202-220ZA4 Z20Z-TZOZA4 °
JUWIDN 13111510

N-£0Z dsnJ auo103d | G

Jaquiny pasig| v

 9eznsoze609s | ¢

[4

Ajuo spussia jooyss, | |

q | v

71

UOISIAIQ S9IIAISS SSauIsng |ooyoS

Lz sbed NOILVYONA3 40 a¥v09 3LVLS SIONITTI

17 obed



Page 28 Page 28

Deficit Reduction Plan-Background/Assumptions (School Districts Only)
Fiscal Year 2021-2022 through Fiscal Year 2024-2025

Peotone CUSD 207-U 56099207026

Please complete the following schedule and include a brief description to identify any areas of the budget that will be impacted from one year to the next. If the
deficit reduction plan relies upon new local revenues, identify contingencies for further budget reductions which will be enacted in the event those new revenues are

not available.

1. Background and Narrative of Budget Reductions:

2. Assumptions Used in the Deficit Reduction Plan:

- EBF and Estimated New Tier Funding:

- Equal Assessed Valuation and Tax Rates:

- Employee Salaries and Benefits:

- Short and Long Term Borrowing:

- Educational Impact:

72

H:\FY22 Budget\56-099-207u-26_B22 Peotone CUSD 207u 8/13/2021



Page 29 Page 29

- Other Assumptions:

- Has the district considered shared services or outsourcing (Ex: Transportation, Insurance) If yes please explain:

73

H:\FY22 Budget\56-099-207u-26_B22 Peotone CUSD 207u 8/13/2021



B : Sk ad (1emdv) TZ0CAd 1900
%E . _

| o] bl 1 - | _ (pe198png) zzozAd 10} (asea103Q) 3seasU| JuSdIRd parewns] 6
' v66'8ER 0 ‘0 ¥66'8EY BSTVEY 0 ) | 6STveY | sjeiol ‘g
I ! . ) | | *9A0QR PapN|IUl pue Me| 31els Aq
0 [0 0 0 0 0 10 fo
| : paJinbas suonesiqo uoisuad JaY10 10 JUsWaINBY AjJe] - U:umﬁn
[o o Te i 0 0 R | o019z $301A35 L0ddnS (2332 J0 UOIDBIG "9
| 6’0z o [ £56'0L S9T'29 S9T79 | oLse S3DIAI3S [EWIAIY] °G
_. 0€8'05T | |0 ' 0€8'0ST 8IS'TYT | 8TSZHT 0tse | $a01A)35 110ddng $sauISNg 40 UoNIBNG Y
[0 . 0 S A N a = w1l 0 | osvz UONBJISIUIWPY |O0YIS - 53115 Loddns JByiQ ¢
[0 o R 0 0 : 0 oEET SIDIAIBS UONEASIUIWPY B3 2123dS 2
[ T1z'zte |o | TTT'L1e 9LS'vIT | as'vie 0ZET S3JIAISS UONBNSIUILIPY 2ARNDSXT T
“ l . un |
] | _ pund pun4 | = | pung ‘ON
jexol pund o] | ajueuayuep | |e1o1 pung uoj | asueulluie uondudsaqg
| |euonesnpy _ | |leuonieanpy | -duny
| g suonesado g suonesadQ |
| ! |
! los) ¢ {(74] (ot) (08) | 74) (o1)
7202 183 [e3sty ‘sainjipuadx3 pa1adpng 120€ 1834 [edsld ‘sainjipuadx] [en)dy pajewnsy
9ZNL0Z6609S “J3quinN 14aoy | (2p0) |00YIS 3Y) JO §' T2 T UONIAS)
N-£0Z AsSND auo102d BWEN 12U3sIq |o0YdS 1IIHSHYOM S1SOJ IAILVHISININGY 30 NOLLYLIWN a31vnisa|
SIS0 SANENSIUILDY JO Uonenur] “}e 91ISGaM 34S| 3Y1 UO PUNOY 37 OS|B UBD 133YSHIOA 150D SANEIISIUILIPY JO UOIBIWIT [BDI0 Uy

“Hodas 1eya yum uoiduniuod u) peanwgns ag Aew pue (Sg-05 Wio4 3gs1) Moday [epueuld (enuuy 3y3 Jo pua 93 01 PayIeNIe S 1DIYSHIOM SIS0D) SAIIRIISIUILIPY JO UOIBHLIIT (BIDIH0 Bl

‘(esea103p) aseasdul s3ejuaniad parewnss ay) 3Indwod 03 $3nPUAAXS [EN1DE pajewIss Jesh soud a3

ﬁtwmc_ *38ed sty1 03 paidod s1 uoriewloyul 138png 'S3JNUPUIAXS [BNIDR TZOZ AL JBAO saunupuadxa p3138pNnq 2z0TA4 JO 95E.0UI JUSIRd §,101ISIP BYL S1BWIISS 01 SSa00.d Sunadpng ay1 3ulnp 3sN 10J PEPUIILI S| IDBYSHIOM EIT

D 3 JOU i pup AJUO 139YSHIOM SIS0 NIDIISIUILPY fO UonDIWL] Ppa1pwWinsa uo sy syt
(AtuQ asn 10207 104}
(AjuQ s1511s10 100Y2S) $1S0D JAILVHISININGY 40 NOILVLIWIT QILVINILST

0¢ abed




Lcac/el/8 N0z @SNO auoload zzd™ 92-"L0Z-660-95uebpng zzA4\H

S o e e T e K

S 00 G VS G

75

Adenbape 03 jjejrioys|

SIIIAID
Suipuny jeso| Juswaiddns! . L &
uswyedaq s21191Y1y SHJ 01 Aj3da.1p Juss ! {s)ux auijepis 3peioien| 00T aulydep SUIpUSA pue ‘syuug

pue 13u3sIp jooyds| . ,
| Jo suoijesado poddns: Vods “usiem pamog ‘Sjutia 4os

277 ‘dnoun:
Suijniog ‘Auedwo) sa8eianag I1sday:

pa1nqgLsig suolelaunway Alejauow uoneJaunway
. spa3%0id jo asoding
-Uop jo Juaididay pue poylaw uonnguasig Aejsuon-uoN

aNUaAY 19N PApINOId BDIAIDS JO 1oNPO.Id 10pU3A JO 3wen

(UOISSILIGNS 10f PaSN 3G 1SNW ING ‘PAPIU SD PAIIDUWLIOL-2 1 3G upl pup pajrarosdun st 133ys)

SI301U0) - 17 0Z-01 U0I1985 8007 Jo0yIs 395

‘p4p0q j00Y35 343 Aq panosddo aq 1snw £00z ‘T Ainr 4a3fo 10 uo painiaxa

$12041U03 yYons |y *126png ayp Jo 10aA [035if ayz bujpasaid Aja1pipawwy Jpak joasif ay; Jof s39053u03 Yans bulpiobas uonowiofu] ISy 03 S| Lodas ayy “sa3nsas ydpiBojoyd pup ‘SBuls SSO ‘FNI0 JAYI0 PUD S1IOTS SIIDAUOI
auiyaow Buipuan uenoiwil 1noyiim Buipniaul 000 TS Jo ssadxa ul PIASIP [00YITY] J0f SUOIIDIAUNIIAL J3YI0 PUD NUSA3I [DUCHIPPD 3)013uab 01 PapUIUT 31aM IDUY] §321035 pup Spoob 03 UIbUad J0Y) SJU3WS316D PUD S1301U03
I|D, 01 $13fa1 , $190.0U03 JOPUBA, WA} AYF WXL S1Y3 U] 13Bpng L3yl 03 U3WIYI01I0 UD 50 5130040 Jopuan, builsi| 1iodas b ajif 01 paiinbas 210 SPIISIP J00Y3S |j0 ‘TZ'0Z-0T UONI3S 9p0) [00YIS 3yl ylim 22UDPI0II0 U]

(Auo spisiq (eoYds) IHOW ¥O 000°TS O SLIVEINOD HOANIA NIENd 40 ONILO4IY

L¢ abed L¢ abed



Page 32 REFERENCE PAGE Page 32

1 Each fund balance should correspond to the fund balance reflected on the books as of June 30th - Balance Sheet Accounts #720 and #730 (audit figures, i
available).

2 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance. The "On-Behalf" Payments should only be reflected on this page
(Budget Summary, Lines 10 and 20).

3 Requires the secretary of the school board to notify the county clerk (within 30 days of the transfer approval) to abate an equal amount of taxes to b
next extended. See Sec. 10-22.14 & 17-2.11.

3a Requires notification to the county clerk to abate an equal amount from taxes next extended. See section 10-22.14

& Principal on Bonds Sold:
(1) Funding Bonds are to be entered in the fund or funds in which the liability occurs.
(2) Refunding Bonds can be entered in the Debt Services Fund only.
(3) Building Bonds can be entered in the Capital Projects Fund only.
(4) Fire Prevention and Safety Bonds can be entered in the Fire Prevention & Safety Fund only.

5
The proceeds from the sale of school sites, buildings, or other real estate shall be used first to pay the principal and interest on any outstanding bonds on
the property being sold, and after all such bonds have been retired, the remaining proceeds from the sale next shall be used by the school board to meet

any urgent district needs as determined under Sections 2-3.12 and 17-2.11 of the School Code. Once these issues have been addressed, any remaining
proceeds may be used for any other authorized purpose and for deposit into any district fund.

6 The School Code, Section 10-22.44 prohibits the transfer of interest earned on the investment of "any funds for purposes of lllinois Municipal Retirement
under the Pension Code." This prohibition does not include funds for Social Security and Medicare-only purposes. For additional requirements on
interest earnings, see 23 lllinois Administrative Code, Part 100, Section 100.50.

7 Cash plus investments must be greater than or equal to zero.
8
For cash basis budgets, this total will equal the Budget Summary - Total Direct Receipts/Revenues (Line 9) plus Total Other Sources of Funds (Line 46).

9 For cash basis budgets, this total will equal the Budget Summary - Total Direct Disbursements/Expenditures (Line 19) plus Total Other Uses of Funds (Line
79).

= Working Cash Fund loans may be made to any district fund for which taxes are levied (Section 20-5 of the School Code).

11 Include revenue accounts 1110 through 1115, 1117,1118 & 1120.
12
The School Code Section 17-2.2¢. Tax for leasing educational facilities or computer technology or both, and for temporary relocation expense purposes.

13
Corporate personal property replacement tax revenue must be first applied to the Municipal Retirement/Social Security Fund to replace tax revenue lost

due to the abolition of the corporate personal property tax (30 ILCS 115/12). This provision does not apply to taxes levied for Medicare-Only purposes.

14
Only tuition payments made to private facilities. See Functions 4200 or 4400 for estimated public facility disbursements/expenditures.

15 Payment towards the retirement of lease/purchase agreements or bonded/other indebtedness rincipal only) otherwise reported within the fund - e.g.:
alternate revenue bonds. (Describe & {temize)

16 Only abolishment of Working Cash Fund must transfer its funds directly to the Educational Fund upon adoption of a resolution and
at the close of the current school Year (see 105 ILCS 5/20-8 for further explanation)
Only abatement of working cash fund can transfer its funds to any fund in most need of money
(see 105 ILCS 5/20-10 for further explanation)

H:\FY22 Budget\56-099-207u-26_B22 Peotone CUSD 207u  8/1 3/23?1



Page 30

Page 30

CHECK FOR ERRORS
This worksheet checks various cells to assure that selected items are in balance.
Out-of-balance conditions are accompanied by an error message.
Errors must be corrected before the budget is finalized and submitted to ISBE.

Is Deficit Reduction Plan Required? (Joint Agreements do not complete a deficit reduction plan.) Deficit reduction plan is not required,

If required, is Deficit Reduction Plan Completed (Page: DefReductPlan 23-27)?

1. Cover Page - "School District or Joint Agreement” and "CASH or ACCRUAL"

Cells C73:D76).

Check School District or Joint Agreement. School District

Check one type of Accounting Basis used on the Cover sheet. | CASH
2. Budget Summary: Other Sources (Page BudgetSum 2-3 - Acct 7000), must equal Other Uses (BudgetSum 2-3 - Acct. 8000).

Estimated Beginning Fund Balance July,1 2021 for all Funds (Cells €3 - K3} (Line must have oK

a number or zero. Do not leave blank.)

Estimated Activity Fund Beginning Fund Balance July,1 2021 (Ceil C83) (Cell must have a oK

number or zero. Do not leave blank.}

Transfer Among Funds (Funds 10, 20, 40 - Acct 7130 - Cells €29, D29, F29), must equal {Funds 10, 20 & 40 - oK

Acct 8130 - Cells €52, D52, F52).

Transfer of Interest (Funds 10 thru 90 - Acct 7140 - Cells C30:K30), must equal (Funds 10 thru 60, & 80 - oK

Acct 8140 - Cells C53:H53, J53).

Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Principal on Capital Leases (Fund 30 - Acct 7400 - Cell £39) must equal oK

{Funds 10, 20 & 60 - Acct 8400 Cells C57:H60).

Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Interest on Capital Leases (Fund 30 - Acct 7500 - Cell E40) must equal (Funds "

10, 20 & 60 - Acct 8500 - Cells C61:H64).

Transfer to Debt Service Fund to Pay Principal on Revenue Bonds {Fund 30 - Acct 7600 - Cell E41) must oK

equal {Funds 10 & 20 - Acct 8600 - Cells C65:D68).

Transfer to Debt Service to Pay Interest on Revenue Bonds (Fund 30 - Acct 7700 - Cell E42) must equal oK

(Funds 10 & 20 - Acct 8700 - Cells C69:072).

Transfer to Capital Projects Fund (Fund 60 - Acct 7800 - Cell H43) must equal (Fund 10 & 20, Acct 9800 - oK

3. Summary of Cash Transactions: Beginning Cash Balance on Hand July 1, 2021, (CashSum 4, All Funds), cannot be negative.

Educational (Fund 10 - Cell C3) OK
Operations & Maintenance (Fund 20 - Cell D3) oK
Debt Service (Fund 30 - Cell E3) OK
Transportation (Fund 40 - Cell F3} OK
Municipal Retirement/Social Security (Fund 50 - Cell G3) oK
Capital Projects (Fund 60 - Cell H3} 0K
Working Cash (Fund 70 - Celi 13) oK
Tort (Fund 80 - Cell J3) OK
Fire Prevention & Safety (Fund 90 - Cell K3) OK
Activity Funds {Cell C23) OK
4. Summary of Cash Transactions: Ending Cash Balance on Hand June 30, 2022, (Page CashSum 4 - All Funds), cannot be negative.
Educational (Fund 10 - Cell C21) 0K
Operations & Maintenance (Fund 20 - Cell D21) 0K
Debt Service (Fund 30 - Cell E21) OK
Transportation (Fund 40 - F21) 0K
Municipal Retirement/Social Security (Fund 50 - Cell G21) OK
Capital Projects (Fund 60 - H21) OK
| Working Cash (Fund 70 - Cell 121) - 0K |
| Tort (Fund 80 - Cell J21) OK
__Fire Prevention & Safety (Fund 90 - Cell K21) i} o I i oK _
= Summary of Cash Transactions: Other Receipts, (Page CashSum 4), must equal Other Disbursements, (Page CashSum 4).
Interfund Loans Payable {Funds 10:60, 80, 90 - Acct 411 - Cells C6:H6, J6:K6) must equal Interfund Loans .
Receivable (Funds 10:20, 40, 70 - Acct 141 - Cells C15:D15, F15, 115).
Interfund Loans Receivable (Funds 10, 20, 40 & 70 - Acct 141 - Cells C7:D7, £7, 17) must equal Interfund I oK

Loans Payable {Funds 10:60, 80, 90 - Acct 411 - Cetls C16:H16, 116, K16).

End of Balancing

717

H:\FY22 Budget\56-099-207u-26_B22 Peotone CUSD 207u

8/13/2021



—
i s |
I
S -~
>
-~ o

Approval of a Coed Soccer Team at
Peotone Junior High School

78



PJHS Soccer Proposal
2021-2022

Five area schools have started a Junior High Soccer program this year. We
will have interest from our students and families as this continues. The season
will take place in the Spring the same time as track. We would hold tryouts
the week before the track season may start. By doing this, it will allow any
student athlete who does not make the soccer team to be able to participate in
track. It will be coed consisting of 7th and 8th graders with anywhere between
18 to 20 student athletes. Please see more information in regards to the
program on the attached sheet. The attachment includes schedule, season

length, rules, and scoring.

Things we will need to consider for the season are coach(es) and coaching
stipend, field of play and practice (where), uniforms, and pay for officials.

79



Peotone School District
Club/Activity Proposal

Name of Club: Junior High CoEd Soccer
1 at PJHS

Number of Sponsor(s) Needed: :
PJHS

School where activity/club will be housed:

Purpose of the Club:

Soccer is being recognized as an emerging sport in the
IESA. This means that there is no IESA tournament they
are seeing if schools show interest by starting a soccer
program and possibly make it an IESA sport. As of right
now, six schools in the area will begin a league for junior
high soccer.

Grades of Student Involved:

It is a CoEd league with grades 7 and 8. Team size can
range from 18 to 24 athletes.

Student Contact (please be specific; how often you will
meet with students; when will you be meeting; time
frames, etc.):

Tryouts will begin at the end of February. Games will
begin, middle to end of March. The season will run
through the beginning of May. Season could consist of
10-12 games. Team will practice during the week.

Budget:

1 Coaching Stipend - $2473.17 (Same as HS Asst. Soccer
Coach) Team Uniforms, Soccer Equipment (Minimal),
Soccer Goals

Additional Comments:

80

Page | of |



Approval of a Choose to Include
Program Coordinator at
Peotone High School and
Peotone Junior High School

81



Peotone School District
Club/Activity Proposal

Name of Club: Choose to Include Program Coordinator
1 at PJHS

Number of Sponsor(s) Needed: 1 :t PHS
PJHS and PHS

School where activity/club will be housed:

Purpose of the Club:

The Choose to Include Leadership Team works to provide
activities and information around the school to help make
sure that every student is able to fully be a part of our
Blue Devil community. This club also has two students
that will be a part of the Youth Activation Committee for
Special Olympics Illinois, where they will present at the
Special Olympics Illinois Summit.

Grades of Student Involved:

6-8 and 9-12

Student Contact (please be specific; how often you will
meet with students; when will you be meeting; time
frames, etc.):

There are two parts to the club: the Youth Activation
Committee and the Choose to Include Leadership Team.
We will meet with the pair of students on the Youth
Activation Committee 2-3 times per week in the mornings
before school to work on their Special Olympics Summit
Presentations from August - November. Sponsors will
attend a 2 day training in Bloomington Normal in July.
Sponsors will be attend Special Olympics Boot Camp
with 2 students in Bloomington Normal in August, and
sponsors will attend a 3 day Special Olympics Summit
with up to 10 students in November.

Meetings will be bi-weekly before school with the
Choose to Include Leadership team before or after school
from August - May. At the meetings, we will help
students plan whole school engagement activities to take
place during and after school quarterly, fundraisers,
Respect Week, and informational activities to make
everyone at PJHS/PHS included in our school
community. Monthly, sponsors will also attend a webinar
with the 2 students on the Youth Activation Committee
after school until 4:45. The advisors will also help the 2
students on the Youth Activation Committee create
presentation(s) to teach other students in the monthly
webinars.

Budget:

$2,473.17 Stipend for PJHS coordinator as defined per

the contract
$2,473.17 Stipend for PHS coordinator as defined per

contract

82 Page 1 of 2



REPORT NO. 13:

FOR ACTION: APPROVAL OF PERSONNEL.:

(*Contingent upon receipt and evaluation and
employment documentation required by the District and
the lllinois State Board of Education™).

The Board will need a motion to approve the following Certified and Classified
Personnel.

CERTIFIED STAFF
EMPLOYMENT:

Shawn Sobotka - PJHS - Athletic Director (effective date of 08.01.2021).

Shawn Sobotka - PJHS - Health Teacher (effective date of 08.16.2021).

Shawn Sobotka - PJHS - Assistant Baseball Coach (effective date of
08.01.2021).

Shawn Sobtka - PHS Boys’ Basketball Assistant Coach (effective date of
08.16.2021).

Jeannette Hennke - PES First Grade Teacher (effective date of 08.16.2021).

Kylie Rennels - PES First Grade Teacher (effective date of 08.10.2021).

CHANGE IN STATUS:

Moira Burke - PHS - Student Council Sponsor - (effective date of 08.16.2021).
Madison Mikalauski - PHS Track and Field Assistant Coach (effective date
of 08.16.2021).
Sarah Zarnowski - PHS Track and Field Assistant Coach (effective date
of 08.16.2021).
Kathy Ernst - PES - Third Grade Teacher to PIC 5" Grade Special Education
Teacher (effective date of 07.30.2021).
Andrew Butz - PHS - Freshman Sponsor (effective date of 08.16.2021).
Kim Pagliarulo - PHS - Head Bowling Coach (effective date of 08.17.2021).
Nicole Phelps - PHS - Renaissance Sponsor (effective date of 08.16.2021).
Stacy Plastiak - PES - Reading/Math Paraprofessional to PES 3™ Grade
Teacher (effective date of 08.16.2021).
Luisa Suarez - PHS - Fellowship of Christian Athletes Sponsor (effective date
of 08.16.2021).

83



RESIGNATION:

¢ Todd Zasadil - PJHS Health Teacher (effective date of 07.26.2021)

e Todd Zasadil - PHS Head Boys’ Basketball Coach (effective date of 07.26.2021).

e Todd Zasadil - PJHS Assistant Baseball Coach (effective date of 07.26.2021).

» Connie Mortell - PIC -5 Grade- Special Education Teacher (effective date

of 07.28.2021).
Michelle Weinirch - PES - First Grade Teacher (effective date of 07.30.2021).
e Michelle Weinrich - PES - 2™ Grade Airplanes and Drones Sponsor
(effective date of 07.30.2021).

e Rachel Graniczny - PES - First Grade Teacher (effective date of 08.09.2021).
¢ Nicholas Munro - PHS - Math Teacher (effective date of 08.02.2021).

CLASSIFIED STAFF
EMPLOYMENT:
e Edward Leitelt - PJHS - Assistant Baseball Coach (effective date 08.03.2021).

CHANGE IN STATUS:
e Juan Salgado - Transportation - Bus Driver to Substitute Bus Driver (effective

date of 06.04.2021).

RESIGNATION:
¢ Nicole Simmons - PES - Sl Paraprofessional (effective date of 08.12.2021).

TERMINATION:
e Diandre Owens - PJHS - Night Custodian - (effective date of 08.09.2021).

MOTION REQUIRED: ROLL CALL VOTE.

FOR DISCUSSION:

FY22 Budget Presentation

First Reading of PRESS 107

First Reading of Board Policy 4:140

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS:

84



EXECUTIVE SESSION:

For the purpose of discussing the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline,
performance, or dismissal of specific employees or legal counsel; collective negotiating
matters,; student disciplinary cases and other matters relating to individual students;
pending, probable, or imminent litigation; security procedures, school building safety
and security, and the use of personnel and equipment to respond to an actual, a
threatened, or a reasonable potential danger to the safety of employees, students, staff,
the public or public property. THERE MAY BE OR MAY NOT BE ACTION

FOLLOWING THE EXECUTIVE SESSION.

OTHER:

ADJOURNMENT:

The next scheduled reqular board meeting is Monday, September 20, 2021
at 6:00 p.m. Peotone High School - Media Center

85



|t2jél| PEOTONE
CUSD ”iz

First Reading of PRESS 107 Board Policies

86



Feeby204H6June 202 | 1:10

School District Organization

School District Legal Status !

The Illinois Constitution requires the State to provide for an efficient system of high-quality public
educational institutions and services in order to achieve the educational development of all persons to

the limits of their capabilities.

The General Assembly has implemented this mandate through the creation of school districts. The
District is governed by the laws for school districts serving a resident population of not fewer than
1,000 and not more than 500,000. 2

The School Board constitutes a body corporate that possesses all the usual powers of a corporation for
public purposes, and in that name may sue and be sued, purchase, hold and sell personal property and
real estate, and enter into such obligations as are authorized by law.

LEGAL REF.: HI. Constitution, Art. X, Sec. 1.
105 ILCS 5/10-1 et seq.

CROSS REF.: 2:10 (School District Governance), 2:20 (Powers and Duties of the School Board;
Indemnification)

1 State or federal law controls this policy’s content.
2 See f/n 2 of policy 2:10, School District Governance, fot a discussion of school districts having a population of less
than 1,000 inhabitants.

1:10 Page 1 of 1

©2442112 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

87



2046 une 202 | 1:20

School District Organization
District Organization, Operations, and Cooperative Agreements

The District is organized and operates as follows: 1
[INSERT DISTRICT'S ORGANIZATION and OPERATIONS]
The District enters into and participates in joint programs and intergovernmental agreements with
units of local government and other school districts in order to jointly provide services and activities
in a manner that will increase flexibility, scope of service opportunities, cost reductions, and/or
otherwise benefit the District and the community.2 The Superintendent shall manage these activities
to the extent the program or agreement requires the District’s participation, and shall provide periodic
implementation or operational data and/or reports to the School Board concerning these programs and
agreements. The District participates in the following joint programs and intergovernmental
agreements: 3
FENSERT APPLICABLE JOINT PROGRAMS]

LEGAL REF.: 1IL. Constitution, Azt. VII, Sec. 10.
S ILCS 220/ Intergovernmental Cooperation Actl-et-seg.

Lhe Tootnotes are not intended o be part of the adopted policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State law controls this policy’s content. Whatever school system is established by the State legislature must be free
and open o all. without discrimination. Lewis E. v. Spagnolo. 287 [lLApp.3d 822 (3rd. Dist. 1997). Boards may use the
following sentence as the first sentence, customizing it as appropriate: “The District is organized and operates as a Unit
District serving the educational needs of children in grades Pre-K through 12 and others as required by the School Code.”

2, Constitution, Art. VI, Sec. 10; 5 ILCS 220/1-et-seq. A number ol provisions in the School Code which provide
authority for boards to jointly provide programs with other school districts or colleges that meet specified criteria, including:

22.31 (special education). (4) 3/10-22 31a (joint educational programs): (3) 5/10-22.31b (joint building program): (6) 5/10-
20.42 (wind and solar farms).

3 In some districts. the joint educational programs and intergovernmental agreements in which they participate change
frequently; boards in those districts should omit this sentence and should not list the joint educational programs and
intergovernmental agreements. While this list may be limited to only educational programs, some boards may choose to also
list insurance co-ops or other similar joint agreements.

1:20 Page 1 of 1

©2046202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards, All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

88



Hiy2046June 202 | 1:30

School District Organization
School District Philosophy 1

The School District, in an active partnership with parents and community, will promote excellence in

students to develop a-strong self-respectesteent and to become responsible learners and decision-
makers. The School District is committed to developing and using a visionary and innovative
curriculum,? a knowledgeable and dedicated staff, and sound fiscal and management practices.

CROSS REF: 2:10 (School District Governance), 3:10 (Goals and Objectives), 6:10
(Educational Philosophy and Objectives)

[he footnoles are not intended to be part ol the adopted policy : they should be removed before the policy is adopted

L Replace the text in this sample policy with the district’s mission, vision, and/or belief statement, if any. A mission
p ple policy
statement is a statement of purpose: why the district exists, what benefits it intends to deliver, and who will receive those
benefits. See IASB’s Foundational Principles of Effective Governance, at www.iasb.com/principles popup.cfm.

2 Alternatively, strike “visionary and innovative” and substitute: “comprehensive and challenging”.

1:30 Page 1 of 1

©20462021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use..

89



k2046 une 202 | 2:10

School Board

School District Governance !

The District is governed by a School Board consisting of seven members.2 The Board’s powers and
duties include the authority to adopt, enforce, and monitor all policies for the management and

governance of the District’s schools. 3

Official action by the Board may only occur at a duly called and legally conducted meeting. Except as
otherwise provided by the Open Meetings Act, at-which-a quorum smust be physically present at the
meeting, 4

As stated in the Board member oath of office prescribed by the School Code, a Board member has no
legal authority as an individual. 3

LEGAL REF.: 5 ILCS 120462, Open Meetings Act.
105 ILCS 5/10-1, 5/10-10, 5/10-12, 5/10-16.5, 5/10-16.7, and 5/10-20.5.

CROSS REF.: 1:10 (School District Legal Status), 2:20 (Powers and Duties of the School
Board; Indemmnification), 2:80 (Board Member Oath and Conduct), 2:120 (Board
Member Development), 2:200 (Types of School Board Meetings), 2:220 (School
Board Meeting Procedure)

I'he footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy: they should be remoyed before the policy is adopted.

1 State law controls this policy’s content. IASB sample policies are aligned with the TASB Foundational Principles of
Effective Governance, www.iasb.com/principles popup.cfin.

Sample policy 2:120, Board Member Development, contains the boardmember training requirements.

2 School districts having a population between 1,000 and 500,000 inhabitants are governed by a seven-member board
of education, (105 ILCS 5/10-103. School districts having a population of less than 1,000 are governed by a three-member
board of school directors, unless it is governed by a special act, or is a consolidated district, or a district in which the
membership was increased by the passage of a proposition, (105 ILCS 5/10-13.

3105 ILCS 5/10-16.7 and 5/10-20.

4 5 ILCS 120/2.01 and 120/7(e)(1)-(10), amended by P.A. 101-640; see also 105 ILCS 5/10-12.

The Open Meetings Act (OMA) defines meeting as “any gathering, whether in petson or by video or audio conference,
telephone call, electronic means (such as, without limitation, electronic mail, electronic chat, and instant messaging), or
other means of contemporaneous interactive communication, of a majority of a quorum of the members of a public body
held for the purpose of discussing public business;.” ¢5 ILCS [20/1.02). A quorum must be physically present for all
meetings. except under limited eircumstances during a public health emergency. ¢5 [LCS 120/2.01 and 120/7(e). During the
COVID-19 pandemic. the Open Meetings Acl was amended to give public bodies the flexibility lo meel withoul the
presence of a physical quorum during a disaster declaration related to a public health emergency. See [/n 32 of policy 2:220,
School Board Meeting Procedure, and its subhead No Physical Presence of Quorum and Participation by Audio or

Video; Disaster Declaration.
5 The oath is found in 105 ILCS 5/10-16.5. Specific board officers may have individual authority; for example, the
president may call a special meeting. €105 [LCS 5/10-163.

2:10 Page 1 of 1

©2H6202 1 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

90



Oetober2049June 2021 2:20

School Board

Powers and Duties of the School Board; Indemnification

The major powers and duties of the School Board include, but are not limited to:

[. Organizing the Board after each consolidated election by electing officers and establishing its
regular meeting schedule and, thereafter, taking action during lawfully called meetings to
faithfully fulfill the Board’s responsibilities in accordance with State and federal law. !

2. Formulating, adopting, and modifying Board policies, at its sole discretion, subject only to
mandatory collective bargaining agreements and State and federal law. 2

3. Employing a Superintendent and other personnel, making employment decisions, dismissing
personnel, including determining whether an employee has willfully or negligently failed to
report an instance of suspected child abuse or neglect as required by 325 ILCS 5/,3 and
establishing an equal employment opportunity policy that prohibits unlawful discrimination.
4

4. Directing, through policy, the Superintendent, in his or her charge of the District’s
administration. 3

5. Approving the annual budget, tax levies, major expenditures, payment of obligations, annual
audit, and other aspects of the District’s financial operation; and making available a statement

of financial affairs as provided in State law. ©

I'hie footnotes are nol intended to be part ol the adopted suficy: they should beiemoved betore the policy is adopled.

1 State law controls this policy’s content. School board powers listed in the School Code are not exclusive, meaning
that a board may exercise “all other powers not inconsistent with this Act thet may be requisite or proper for the
maintenance, operation, and development of any school or schools under the jurisdi¢tion of the board.” 105 ILCS 5/10-20.
This policy’s intent is to list the major statutory powers and duties — not all of thepa. See atso 105 ILCS 5/10-20.5 and 5/10-
21.

For power/duty #1, see 105 ILCS 5/10-16 and 5/10-16.5 and policies 2:80, Board Member Oath and Conduct, and
2:210, Organizational School Board Meeting. Boards that elect officers for one-year terms and/or hold organizational
meetings yearly, replace the default text in number 1 with the following:

Annually organizing the Board by electing officers and establishing its regular meeting schedule and, thereafter,
taking action during lawfully called meetings to faithfully fulfill the Board’s responsibilities in accordance with
Board policy and State and federal law.

2 105 [LCS 5/10-20.5 and policy 2:240, Board Policy Development; 105 ILCS 5/10-21; and 115 ILCS 5/, 11l
Educational Labor Relations Act.

3 105 1LCS 5/10-23.12(c), added by P.A. 101-531; 105 ILCS 5/21B-75(b), amended by P.A. 101-531. For further
discussion see f/n 22 in policy 5:90, Abused and Neglected Child Reporting. Note: While 105 ILCS 5/10-23.12(c) permits
boards to immediately dismiss certain employees upon the determination that he or she has willfully or negligently failed to
report, this does not negate a board’s responsibility to provide employees with due process required by the law and district
policies and procedures. Consult the board attorney for further guidance.

4105 ILCS 5/10-21.4 (employing superintendent); 5/10-20.7 and 5/10-21.1 (teachers); 5/10-21.9 (criminal history
records checks); 3/10-22.34 (non-certificated personnel (this statute still uses certificated rather than licensed)); 5/10-22.4
(dismissing teachers for cause); and 5/10-23.5 and 5/24-12 (reduction in force). See Hie-policies in the PRESS Policy
Reference Manual Sections 3, General School Administration, and 3, Personnel.

5105 ILCS 5/10-16.7.

2:20 Page | of 4

©204+9-2021 Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

91



Entering contracts using the public bidding procedure when required. 7

7. Providing, constructing, controlling, and maintaining adequate physical facilities; making
school buildings available for use as civil defense shelters; and establishing a resource

conservation policy. 8
8. Establishing an equal educational opportunities policy that prohibits unlawful discrimination. ?

9. Approving the curriculum, textbooks, and educational services. 10

10. Evaluating the educational program and approving School Improvement and District
Improvement Plans. 11

11. Presenting the District report card and School report card(s) to parents/guardians and the
community; these documents report District, School, and student performance. 12

12. Establishing and supporting student behavior policies designed to maintain an environment
conducive to learning, including deciding individual student suspension or expulsion cases

brought before it. 13

13. Establishing attendance units within the District and assigning students to the schools. 14

14. Establishing the school year. 15

15. Requiring a moment of silence to recognize veterans during any type of school event held at a
District school on November 11. 16

16. Providing student transportation services pursuant to State law. 17

17. Entering into joint agreements with other boards to establish cooperative educational
programs or provide educational facilities. 18

['he Tootnotes are nol intended (o be parl ol the adopled puficy: they should beiremoved betore the policy is adopted.

6 105 ILCS 5/10-20.19 and 5/17-1 et seq. See policies in the PRESS Policy Reference Manual Section 4, Operational
Services.

7105 ILCS 5/10-20.21. See policy 4:60, Purchases and Contracts.

8 For the first clause, see 105 ILCS 5/10-20.6, 5/10-20.12, 5/10-22.10, 5/10-22:35A, and 5/10-22.36; and policy 4:150,
Facility Management and Building Programs. For the second clause, see 105 ELES 5/10-22.35. For the third clause, see 105
ILCS 5/10-20.19¢: and policy 4:70, Resource Conservation.

9 Many civil rights laws guarantee equal educational opportunities; see policy 7:10, Equal Educational Opportunities.

10 105 ILCS 5/10-20.8. See policies in the PRESS Policy Reference Manual Section 6, Instruction.

11 105 1LCS 5/2-3.25d, which addressed school and district improvement plans, was repealed by P.A. 100-1046. 105
ILCS 5/2-3.25f, and 105 ILCS 5/27-1. For more specific information about school and district improvement plans, see
policy 6:10, Educational Philosophy and Objectives, and f/n 6 in policy 6:15, School Accountability.

12 105 ILCS 5/10-172, amended by P.A.s 100-364, 100-465, 100-807, 100-863, 100-1121, and 101-68-ef—~1-20. This
statute details the requirements for presenting the district report card and school report card(s), including presenting them at
a regular school board meeting and posting them on the district’s website.

13 105 [LCS 5/10-22.6, amended by P.A.s 100-105, 100-810, and 100-1035. See policies 7:190, Student Behavior;
7:200, Suspension Procedures; and 7:210, Expulsion Procedures.

14105 1LCS 5/10-21.3 and 5/10-22.5. See policy 7:30, Student Assignment and Intra-District Transfer.

15 105 1L.CS 5/10-19. amended by P.A.s 100-463, and-101-12_and 101-643. and 23 [l Admin.Code §1.420-amended-at
42 HEReg-1512, See policy 6:20, School Year Calendar and Day.

16 Recognizing veterans on Nov. 11 is required by 105 ILCS 5/10-20.46.

17 105 1LCS 5/10-22.22. See policy 4:1 10, Transportation.

2:20 Page 2 of 4

©204u.202] Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

92



18. Complying with requirements in the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act (ANCRA).
Specifically, each individual Board member must, if an allegation is raised to the member
during an open or closed Board meeting that a student is an abused child as defined in
ANCRA, direct or cause the Board to direct the Superintendent or other equivalent school
administrator to comply with ANCRA’s requirements concerning the reporting of child

abuse. 19

19. Communicating the schools’ activities and operations to the community and representing the
needs and desires of the community in educational matters. 20

Indemnification 21

To the extent allowed by law, the Board shall defend, indemnity, and hold harmless School Board
members, employees, volunteer personnel (pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/10-22.34, 10-22.34a and 10-
22.34b), mentors of certified staff (pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/2-3.53a, 2-3.53b, and 105 ILCS 5/21A-5
et seq.), and student teachers who, in the course of discharging their official duties imposed or
authorized by law, are sued as parties in a legal proceeding. Nothing herein, however, shall be
construed as obligating the Beard to defend, indemnify, or hold harmless any person who engages in
criminal activity, official misconduct, fraud, intentional or willful and wanton misconduct, or acts

beyond the autherity properly vested in the individual.

Fhe footnoles are not intended to be part of the adopled policy: they should be removed betore the policy is adopted
18 105 [LCS 5/10-22.31a. See policy 1:20, District Organization, Operations, and Cooperative Agreements.

19 325 1LCS 5/4(d), amended by P.A. 101-564—efE—-1-20. Abuse and neglect are defined in 325 ILCS 5/3; for a
disabled adult student see 20 ILCS 1305/1-17(b).

20 gee policy 8:10, Connection with the Community.

21 105 ILCS 5/10-20.20 (duty to indemnify) and 5/10-22.3 (duty to insure against loss or liability). These statutes
identify the same individuals for protection except that the indemnification statute includes mentors of certified staff
members. See f/u 3 in policy 4:100, Insurance Management.

Public officials or employees who are sued or incur loss because of the performance of their duties imposed or
authorized by law on behalf of the public entity are entitled to indemnification. McQuillan on Municipal Corporations
§12.137 (3rd ed. 1973). Public employees who must defend themselves in actions based upon the performance of official
duties are entitled to indemnitication. Wayne Twsp. Bd. of Auditors v. Ludwig, 154 [ILApp.3d 899 (2nd Dist. -1987). The
public’s interest is served by indemnifying public officials and employees in the performance of their official duties in order

to recruit and retain qualitied public employees and officials.

2:20 Page 3 of 4

©2049-2021 Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
Mlinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney betore use

93



LEGAL REF.:

CROSS REF.:

2:20

105 ILCS 5/10, 5/17-1, and 5/27-1.
115 ILCS 5/, I1l. Educational Labor Relations Act.
325 ILCS 5/, Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act.

1:10 (School District Legal Status), 1:20 (District Organization, Operations, and
Cooperative Agreements), 2:10 (School District Governance), 2:80 (Board
Member Oath and Conduct), 2:140 (Communications To and From the Board),
2:210 (Organizational School Board Meeting), 2:240 (Board Policy
Development), 4:60 (Purchases and Contracts), 4:70 (Resource Conservation),
4:100 (Insurance Management), 4:110 (Transportation), 4:150 (Facility
Management and Building Programs), 5:10 (Equal Employment Opportunity and
Minority Recruitment), 5:90 (Abused and Neglected Child Reporting), 6:10
(Educational Philosophy and Objectives), 6:15 (School Accountability), 6:20
(School Year Calendar and Day), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:30
(Student Assignment and Intra-District Transfer), 7:190 (Student Behavior),
7:200 (Suspension Procedures), 7:210 (Expulsion Procedures), 8:10 (Connection
with the Community), 8:30 (Visitors to and Conduct on School Property)

Page 4 of 4

©2444-202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[ilinois Association of Schaol Boards All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

94



Oetober20+6June 202! 2:30

School Board

School District Elections 1

School District elections are non-partisan, governed by the general election laws of the State, and
include the election of School Board members, various public policy propositions, and advisory
questions.-2 Board members are elected at the consolidated election held on the first Tuesday in April
in odd-numbered years.3 If, however, that date conflicts with the celebration of Passover, the
consolidated election is postponed to the first Tuesday following the last day of Passover.—4 The
canvass of votes is conducted by the election authority within 21 days after the election. 5

The Board, by proper resolution, may cause to be placed on the ballot: (a) public policy referendum
according to Article 28 of the Election Code, or (b) advisory questions of public policy according to
Section 9-1.5 of the Schoel Code. 6

The Board Secretary gerves as the local election official. He or she receives petitions for the
submission of a public question to referenda and forwards them to the proper election officer and
otherwise provides information to the community concerning District elections. 7

[he Tootnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted polwy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted,
I State law controls this policy’s content. Consult the board attomey early concerning any election question.

2 105 ILCS 5/9-10 provides that nominating petitions are filed with the gounty clerk or the county board of election
commissioners if one was created pursuant to 10 ILCS 5/6A-1. Objections to nominating petitions or to a petition for a
public question are submitted to the county officers electoral board. (10 ILCS 5/10-8 and 10-93. The Election Code also
addresses reportable campaign contributions (10 ILCS 3/9-1-8); simultancous filing 6fnominating petitions (10 ILCS 5/10-
6.2); withdrawal from nomination (10 ILCS 5/10-7); Electoral Board duties (10 ILES 5/10-10); and advertising in proximity
of a polling place (10 ILCS 5/19A-70). See also 10 ILCS 5/1-3—amended-by#A-—99-523_eff—|—I-17- (definitions), 5/2A
(time of holding elections), and 5/28 (submitting public questions). The school board secretary or clerk has no statutory
duties regarding the election of members to the school board. He or she is well-advised to refer all questions to the county
clerk or the county board of election commissioners, whichever is applicable.

3 10 ILCS 5/2A-1.1.
410 ILCS 5/2A-1.1a.

5 The appropriate election authority (county clerk or election commission) canvasses the vote for school district
elections. €10 [LCS 5/1-8). The election authority must canvass the vote within 21 days after the election. €10 ILCS 5/22-
17 and 5/22-18). Within 28 days after the consolidated ¢lection, boards must hold an organizational meeting to elect officers
and fix a time and place for regular meetings. 4105 ILCS 5/10-163. See policy 2:210, Organizational School Board Meeting.

6 This policy addresses two types of public questions: (1) binding referendum governed by 10 ILCS 5/28, and (2)
advisory questions of public policy governed by 103 ILCS 5/9-1.5. An advisory question must be authorized by majority
vote of the board. A third type of public question — a voter-initiated petition — is not covered in the policy; the board does
not have any duties regarding this type of petition, A voter-initiated petition must be filed with the school board secretary
who, if the timelines are met, must certify the question to be placed on the ballot t the county clerle. 10 [ILCS 5/10-15,
5/28-2, and 5/28-5).

710 ILCS 5/28-6 provides that any petition for the submission of a public question to referendum must be filed with
the local election official. The board secretary or clerk is the local election official_4105 [LCS 5/9-2 and 10 [LCS 5/1-3).
See f/n 2 as many of the duties of the !f)r:m' m‘eumu offi um' were rea.sﬂguud alter the ZUH l.h'lllgt,h 1o thc luw [hc lmard
may delete the following PR function: * - 5

2:30 Page 1 of 2

©20-6-202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[1linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your schoo! board attorney before use

95



10 ILCS 5/1-3, 5/2A, 5/9, 5/10-9, 5/22-17, 5/22-18, and 5/28.

LEGAL REF.:
105 ILCS 5/9-and-5/9-1-5.
CROSS REF.: 2:40 (Board Member Qualifications), 2:50 (Board Member Term of Office),
2:210 (Organizational School Board Meeting)
2:30 Page 2 of 2
©2046-202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service

[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.

96



Fy-20-6 ) une 202 | 2:130

School Board

Board-Superintendent Relationship !

The School Board directs, through policy, the Superintendent in his or her charge of the
administration of the District by delegating its authority to operate the District and provide leadership
to_staff. The Seheol-Board employs and evaluates the Superintendent and holds him or her
responsible for the operation of the District in accordance with Board policies and State and federal

law. 2
The Board-Superintendent relationship is based on mutual respect for their complementary roles. The

relationship requires clear communication of expectations regarding the duties and responsibilities of
both the Board and Superintendent.

The Board considers the recommendations of the Superintendent as the District’s Chief Executive
Officer. The Board adopts pelicies necessary to provide general direction for the District and to
encourage achievement of District goals. The Superintendent develops plans, programs, and
procedures needed to implement the policies and directs the District’s operations.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-16.7 and 5/10-21.4.

CROSS REF.: 3:40 (Superintendent)

I'he footnoles are nol intended Lo be part ol the adopted policy: they should be removed betore the policy is adopted.

1 State law controls this policy’s content. 105 ILCS 5/10-16.7 requires the board to make all employment decisions
pertaining to the superintendent as well as “to direct, through policy, the superintendent in his or her charge of the
administration of the school district, including without limitation considering the recommendations of the superintendent
concerning the budget, building plans, the locations of sites, the selection, retention, and dismissal of employees, and the
selection of textbooks, instructional material, and courses of study.” It also requires the “board [to] evaluate the
supermtendent in his or her administration of board policies and his or her stewardship of the assets of the district ”

bmﬁu&“&mmm&hﬁ%&—m&%rm%w%m&ﬁwmmmww% The
superintendent and board should periodically discuss, for example, the amount, type, and timing of information cach expects
to give and receive. Discussing each party's role and using a formal, written superintendent evaluation process will further
clarity role expectations.

2 Boards may want to incorporate additional governance concepts into the first sentence, e.g., by holding the
superintendent responsible for progress toward district ends. See IASB’s Foundational Principles of Effective Governance,
www.iash.com/principles _popup.cfim. The IASB guide titled The Superintendent Evaluation Process contains information
on strengthening the board-superintendent relationship. It is available at:
www. lash.com/training/superintendent-evaluation-process.pdf.

2:130 Page 1 of |

©2016202 1 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

97




Jre2049 une 2021 2:240

School Board

Board Policy Development !

The School Board governs using written policies. Written policies ensure legal compliance, establish
Board processes, articulate District ends, delegate authority, and define operating limits. Board policies

also provide the basis for monitoring progress toward District ends. 2

Policy Development

Anyone may propose new policies, changes to existing policies, or deletion of existing policies. Staff
suggestions should be processed through the Superintendent. Suggestions from all others should be
made to the Board President or the Superintendent.

A Board Policy Committee will consider all policy suggestions and provide information and
recommendations tothe Board. 3

The Superintendent is responsible for: (1) providing relevant policy information and data to the Board,
(2) notifying those who will implement or be affected by or required to implement a proposed policy
and obtaining their advice and suggestions, and (3) having policy recommendations drafted into written
form for Board deliberation. The Superintendent shall seek the counsel of the Board Attorney when
appropriate.

Policy Adoption and Dissemination

Policies or policy revisions will not be adopted at the Board meeting at which they are first introduced,
except when: (1) appropriate for a consent agenda because no Board discussion is required, or (2)
necessary or prudent in order to meet emergency or special eonditions or to be legally compliant.4
Further Board consideration_may-wil be given at a subsequent meeting(s) and after opportunity for
community input. The adoption of a policy will sefve to'supersede all previously adopted policies on
the same topic.

[he footnotes are not intended Lo be part of the adopled policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted

1 State law requires this subject matter be covered by policy. See 105 ILCS 5/10-20.5 and 5/10-16.7.

105 ILCS 5/10-16.7 requires the board to make all employment decisions pertaining to the superintendent as well as “to
direct, through policy, the superintendent in his or her charge of the administration of the school district, including, without
limitation, considering the recommendations of the superintendent concerning the budget, building plans, the locations of
sites, the selection, retention, and dismissal of employees, and the selection of textbooks, instructional material, and courses
of study.” Rather than being a laundry list of mandated written board policies, this list provides items on which boards must
make decisions after considering the superintendent’s recommendations. The statute also requires the “board [to] evaluate the
superintendent in his or her administration of board policies and his or her stewardship of the assets of the district.” Boards

Dist. 1, 117 [lL.App.3d 374 (5th Dist. 1983).
2 See the IASB’s Foundational Principles of Effective Governance, available on line at: www.iasb.com/pdfffound prin.pdf.

3 Optional. See policy 2:130, Committees.
p
4 State law does not require a first reading before a board adopts a policy. The use of a consent agenda allows a board to
q g pts a policy g

vote on a matter without discussion. Policies or policy revisions may be appropriate for a consent agenda when providing for
legal compliance; correcting substantive grammar, spelling, or punctuation; or clarifying pre-existing policy language. A board
member may make a motion to remove any item from the consent agenda to the regular agenda for discussion. See policy
2:220, School Board Meeting Procedure.

2:240 Page 1 of 2

©2019202 ) Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

98



The Board policies are available for public inspection in the District’s main office during regular office
hours.3 Copy requests should be made pursuant to Board policy 2:250, Access to District Public
Records.

Board Policy Review and Monitoring

The Board will periodically review its policies for relevancy, monitor its policies for effectiveness, and
consider whether any modifications are required. The Board may use an annual policy review and

monitoring calendar. 6

Words Importing Gender Z

Throughout this policy manual, words importing the masculine and/or feminine gender include all
gender neutral/inclusive pronouns.

Superintendent Implementation

The Board will support any. reasonable interpretation of Board policy made by the Superintendent.8 If
reasonable minds differ, the Board will review the applicable policy and consider the need for further
clarification.

In the absence of Board policy, the Superintendent is authorized to take appropriate action.

Suspension of Policies

The Board, by a majority vote of members present at any meeting, may temporarily suspend a Board
policy except those provisions that are controlled by law or contract. The failure to suspend with a
specific motion does not invalidate the Board action.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-20.5.

CROSS REF.: 2:150 (Committees), 2:256 (Access to District Public Records), 3:40
(Superintendent)

T'he footnotes are not intended to be part ol the adopted policy: they should b semoved before the policy is adopted.

5 This sentence must be customized to include where and how policies are available, such as, through School Board
Policies Online or the district’s website,

6 Optional.
T Optional. Consult the board attorney to determine whether inclusion of a subhead related to gender neutral/inclusive

pronouns is appropriate for the district. This subhead’s text mirrors language from the [11. Statute on Statutes importing words
applying the masculine gender lo mcludi. the female gutder bm. 5 ILLS 70!] (]4

students. 775 ]LCS S/5-101(A)(11y; 775 ILCS 5/1-103(0-1): and 23 [IL.Admin. Cudc §1.240. Tite IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §1681) also prohibits exclusion and discrimination on the basis of’ sex. 20 U.S.C. §1681(a).
See also policy 7:10, Egual Educational Opportunities.

For emplovees. the Equal Employment Opportunities Act (a/l/a Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964) prohibits
discrimination because of an individual's sex. which includes sexual orientation and/or transgender status. See 42 [L.S.C.
§2000¢ et seq.. amended by The Lilly Ledbetter Fair Pay Act of 2009, Pub.L.. 111-2: Bostock v. Clayton Cawnty , 140 S.CL
1731 (2020); and Hively v. lvy Tech. 853 IF.3d 339 (7th Cir. 2017). See also policy 5:10. Egual Employment Opportunity and
Minority Recruitment,

8 The board delegates authority to the superintendent through written board policy. The board will not substitute its
Jjudgment for that of the superintendent when the superintendent acts reasonably based upon his or her policy interpretation,
See the IASB’s Foundational Principles of Effective Governance, available online at: www.iasb.com/pdf/found prin.pdf.

2:240 Page 2 of 2

©2049202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

99



Fily20-H6 une 202 | 3:30

General School Administration

Chain of Command

The Superintendent shall develop an organizational chart indicating the channels of authority and
reporting relationships for school personnel. These channels should be followed, and no level should

be bypassed except in unusual situations. L

All personnel should refer matters requiring administrative action to the responsible administrator,
and may appeal a decision to a higher administrative officer. Whenever possible, each employee
should be responsible to only one immediate supervisor. When this is not possible, the division of
responsibility must be clear.

CROSS REF.: 1:20 (District Organization, Operations, and Cooperative Agreements), 2:140
(Communications To and From the Board), 3:70 (Succession of Authority),
8:110 (Public Suggestions and Concerns)

1 The chain of command communicates the channels of authority that should be consistently followed with informal
conversations that can solve issues without use of the more [ormal policy 2:260. Uniform Grievance Procedure, other
administrative procedures, and/or collective bargaining agreements. See 1ASB's foundational Principles of Effective
Governance, al www.iash.com/prineiples popup.cfim.

3:30 Page 1 of 1

©20462021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

100



Artbeust2020June 2021 5:10

General Personnel

Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment 1

The School District shall provide equal employment opportunities? to all persons regardless of their
race; color; creed; religion;3 national origin; sex;4 sexual orientation;S age;% ancestry; marital status;”

I'he footnotes are nol intendeditarbe part of the adopted policy: they should be removed belore the policy is adopled

1 Federal and State law (see the policy’s Legal References) require that all districts have a policy on equal employment
opportunities and contro! ¢his policy’s content. This is a complex, confusing, and highly litigated area of the law; consult
the board attorney foer advice on the application of these laws to specific fact situations.

2 Equal employment opportunities apply to virtually all terms and conditions of employment, e.g., discharge, hire,
promotion, pay, demotion, and benefits (see the policy’s Legal References). The Ill. Constitution protects the following
categories from discrimination in employment: race, color, creed, national ancestry, sex, and handicap. Art. I, §§17, 18, and
19. The Ill. Human Rights Act (IHRA) protects the following categories from discrimination in employment, whether actual
or perceived: race, color, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, military
status, order of protection status, sexual orientation, pregnancy, unfavorable discharge from military service, and citizenship
status. 775 ILCS 5/1-102 and 5/1-103, amended by P.A. 101-221. Beginning—7-1-20-Tthe IHRA requires employers to
annually disclose to the Ill. Dept. of Human Rights (IDHR) certain information about adverse judgments and administrative
rulings where there was a finding of sexual harassment or urlawful discrimination under any federal, State, or local law, as
well as data regarding settlement agreements, if requested by an IDHR investigator. 775 IL.CS 5/2-108, added by P.A. 101-
221, scheduled to be repealed on 1-1-30.

The Equal Employment Opportunities Act (EEOA, a’k/a Fitle VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964) prohibits
discrimination because of an individual’s race, color, religion, sex, er national erigin. 42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq., amended by
The Lilly Ledbetter Fair Pay Act of 2009 (LLFPA), Pub.L. 181-2.

Under the Workplace Transparency Act (WTA) (820 ILCS 96/, added by P.A. 101-221), employers may not, as a
condition of employment or continued employment, prevent prospective or curremt employees from making truthful
statements or disclosures about alleged unlawful employment practices, including discrimiumation. Id. at 96/1-25.

The LLFPA clarifies that a discriminatory compensation decision or other practice occurs each time an employee is
paid or receives a last benefits check pursuant to the discriminatory compensation decision as opposed to only from the time
when the discriminatory compensation decision or other practice occurred. The Act has no legislative history available to
define what the phrase or other practice might mean beyond a discriminatory compensation decision; however. in a
guidance document. the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) states that practices “may include
emplover decisions about base pay or wages. job classifications. career ladder or other noncompetitive promotion denials,
tenure denials, and failure to respond to requests for raises.” See Equal Pay Act of 1963 and Lillv Ledbetter Fair Pay Act of
2009 (2014), at www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/equal-pay-act- 1963-and-lillv-ledbetier-lair-pav-act=2009.

The I1l. Equal Pay Act of 2003 (EPA) offers additional protection by prohibiting the payment of wages to one sex less
than the opposite sex or to an African-American less than a non-African-American for the same or substantially similar
work. 820 ILCS 112/, amended by P.A.s 100-1140 and 101-177. The Ill. Dept. of Labor (IDOL) enforces the EPA. The EPA
also prohibits employers from requesting or requiring applicants to disclose wage or salary history as a condition of being
considered for employment or as a condition of employment. Id. at 112/10(b-5), added by P.A. 101-177. [f an applicant
voluntarily offers such information without prompting, an employer still cannot use that information in making an otfer or
determining future pay. See sample—administrative procedure 3:30-API1. /nterview Questions, for sample permissible
inquiries on this topic. Employers may seek wage or salary history from an applicant’s current or tormer employer if that
information is a matter of public record under the Freedom ot lnformation Act (| Ol.\); however, districts that wish to
undertake such searches should exercise caution; the fact a district seeks out publicly available wage information could still
be used against it in a pay discrimination claim. Id. at 112/10(b-10). added by P.A. 101-177. Consult the board attorney for
further guidance.

While not exhaustive, other laws protecting these and additional classifications are named in subsequent footnotes.

5:10 Page 1 of 7

©25202021 Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

101



arrest record;8 military status; order of protection status;? unfavorable military discharge;10
citizenship status provided the individual is authorized to work in the United States;!! use of lawful

I'he footnotes are not intended to be part ol the adopted policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted,

3 775 ILCS 5/2-102 of the [HRA, amended by P.A.s 100-100,_[00-588. and 101-22] contains a religious
discrimination subsection. It expressly prohibits employers from requiring a person to violate a sincerely held religious
belief to obtain or retain employment unless, after engaging in a bona fide effort, the employer demonstrates that it is unable
to reasonably accommodate the employee’s or prospective employee’s sincerely held religious belief, practice, or
observance without undue hardship on the conduct of the employer’s business. Religious beliefs include, but are not limited
to: the wearing of any attire, clothing, or facial hair in accordance with the requirements of his/her religion. 775 ILCS 5/2-
102(E-5). Employers may, however, enact a dress code or grooming policy that restricts attire, clothing, or facial hair to
maintain workplace safety or food sanitation. Id.

In addition to the [HRA and the federal EEOA (discussed in f/n 2), see 775 ILCS 35/, Religious Freedom Restoration
Act.

4 Discrimination on the basis of sex under the EEOA includes discrimination on the basis of sexual orientation or
transgender status. Bostock v. €lavton Ceunty., 140 S.Ct. 1731 (2020); Hively v. Tvy Tech, 853 F.3d 339 (7th Cir. 2017). In
addition to the [HRA and the federal EEOA (discussed in f/n 2), see Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Title
IX). 20 U.S.C. §1681 gt geq.; 34 C.F.R. Part 106. See samplepolicy 2:265, Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance
Procedure. The federal Equal Pay Act prohibits an employer from paying persons of one sex less than the wage paid to
persons of the opposite sex for equal work. 29 U.S.C. §206(d). See f/n 2 above for more information on State equal pay
protections, including on the basis of sex. The LLFPA defines date of underpayment as each time wages are underpaid.
Employees have one year from the time they become aware of the underpayment to file a complaint with the IDOL. 820
ILCS 112/15(b).

5 Sexual orientation means actual or perceived heterosexuality, homosexuality, bisexuality, or gender-related identity;
it does not include a physical or sexual attraction to @ minor by an adult. 775 ILCS 5/1-103(O-1).

6 Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA) (29 U.S.C. §621 et seq.), amended by LLFPA (see f/n 2). 29 C.F.R.
Part 1625, amended the L.S—Egual-Emplovment-Opposbsnt—bommission(EEOC) regulations under ADEA to reflect the
U.S. Supreme Court’s decision in General Dynamie Systems, Inc. v, Cline, 540 U.S. 581 (2004), holding the ADEA to
permit employers to favor older workers because of age. Thus, favoring an older person over a younger person is not
unlawful discrimination, even when the younger person is at least 40 years old.

7 105 ILCS 5/10-22.4 and 775 ILCS 5/1-103(Q), amended by P.A. 101-221. The term marital status means an
individual’s legal status of being married, single, separated, divoreed, or widewed. 775 ILCS 5/1-103(J). This statutory
definition does not encompass the identity of one’s spouse. Fhus, school districts may adopt no-spouse policies. Boaden v.
Dept. of Law Enforcement, 171 {11.2d 230 (T11. 1996). )

8 Districts may not make employment decisions on the basis of arrest history, But may use job-disqualifying criminal
convictions_provided specific conditions are met. 775 TLCS 5/2-103_and 5/2-185.1, adddd by P.A. 101-656. See f/n 18,
below. The Job Opportunities for Qualified Applicants Act prohibits an employer from asking about a criminal record until
the employer determines that the applicant is qualified for the position; heswever, this does not apply when employers are
required to exclude applicants with certain criminal convictions from employment. School employers should limit their
requests for criminal convictions to job-disqualifying convictions. as permitted by the IHRA. 775 ILCS 5/2-103. 1. added by
P.A, 101-636: 820 ILCS 75/15. See also_the [DHR's puidance. Conviction Record Protection — Frequently Asked Questions.
at _www2.illinois,eov/dhr/Pages/Conviction_Record Protection_Freguently Asked Questions.aspx and —the EEOC’s
guidance, Consideration  of  Arrest and  Conviction  Records in  Employment  Decisions,  at:
www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/arrest_conviction.cfm.

9 775 ILCS 5/1-103 (Q), amended by P.A. 101-221. The term order of protection status means a person protected under
an order of protection issued pursuant to the [ll. Domestic Violence Act of 1986, Article 112A of the Code of Criminal
Procedure of 1963, the Stalking No Contact Order Act. the Civil No Contact Order Act. or an order of protection issued by a
court of another state. 775 [LCS 5/1-103(K-5), amended by P.A. 100-714.

10 Military status means a person’s status on active duty or in status as a veteran in the U.S. Armed Forces, veteran of
any reserve component of U.S. Armed Forces. or current member or veteran of the [ll. Army National Guard or [ll. Air
National Guard. 775 ILCS 5/1-103(J-1). Unfavorable military discharge does not include those characterized as RE-4 or
dishonorable. 775 ILCS 5/1-103(P). The Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 prohibits
employers from discriminating or retaliating against any person for reasons related to past, present, or future service in a
uniformed service. 38 U.S.C. §4301 et seq.

1 775 [LCS 5/1-102(C). According to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, all employers must verity
that employees are either U.S. citizens or authorized to work in the U.S. 8 U.S.C. §1324(a) et seq.

5:10 Page 2 of 7

[Ilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

102



products while not at work;!1? being a victim of domestic violence, sexual violence, or gender
violence;!3 genetic information;!4 physical or mental handicap or disability, if otherwise able to
perform the essential functions of the job with reasonable accommodation; '3 pregnancy, childbirth, or
related medical conditions; ¢ credit history, unless a satisfactory credit history is an established bona
fide occupational requirement of a particular position;17 conviction record. unless authorized by

I'he tootnotes are not intended to be part ot the adopted policy: they should be removed betore the poliey is adopted

12 The Right to Privacy in the Workplace Act prohibits discrimination based on use of lawful products, e.g., alcohol,
cannabis, and tobacco, off premises during non-working hours. §20 ILCS 55/5, amended by P.A. 101-27.

13 820 1.CS 180/30, amended by P.A. 101-221, Victims’ Economic Security and Safety Act. Gender violence means:
(1) one or more acts of violence or aggression that are a criminal offense under State law committed, at least in part, on the
basis of a person’s actual or perceived sex or gender, (2) a physical intrusion or invasion of a sexual nature under coercive
conditions that is a criminal offense under State law, or (3) a threat to commit one of these acts. 820 ILCS 180/10(12.5),
added by P.A. 101-221. An empleyer is prohibited from discriminating against any individual, e.g. an applicant for
employment, because he or she “is @n employee whose employer is subject to Section 21 of the Workplace Violence
Prevention Act.” The Workplace Violence Prevention Act allows an employer to seek a workplace protection restraining
order when there is a credible threat of violence at the workplace. 820 ILCS 275/. Section 21 requires the employer seeking
aworkplace protection restraining order to notify the employee who is a victim of unlawful violence. 820 [LCS 275/21.

14 [llinois’ Genetic Information Privacy Act (GIPA) (410 TLCS 513/25) and Title I of Genetic Information
Nondiscrimination Act (GINA) (42 U.S.€. §20004f et seq.). Both laws protect job applicants and current and former
employees from discrimination based on their genetic information. Note that GIPA provides greater protections to Illinois
employees than Title II of GINA. GIPA, amended by P.A. 100-396, prohibits employers from penalizing employees who do
not disclose genetic information or do not choose to participate in a program requiring disclosure of the employee’s genetic
information. See f/n 12 in sample-policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure, for the definition of genetic information and
a detailed description of both statutes, including of Title I of GINA affecting the use of genetic information in health
insurance. b2tbbothe- bbb pubhshed-snoiiommib v s idanoetetive b St i bnesnaves—far-laskproee i ellnesy
Program-at—wwivesoesovieene foiateters 20 L nda—simincontiveshitml But-tThe EEOC vacated certain 2016 ADA
and GINA wellness program regulations following an adverse ¢ourt ruling. 83 Fed. Reg. 65296. Those rules provided
guidance to employers on the extent to which they couldiuse ineentives (such as discounted health plan costs) to encourage
employees to participate in wellness programs that asked for employee and family health information. Consult the board
attorney for guidance regarding specific application of ADA and GINA and how they integrate with other related laws, e.g.,
the Family Medical Leave Act —the-Adnesicans—with-Disabilities—Aet-and other Staté laws governing time off for sickness
and workers’ compensation.

15 Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) (42 U.S.C. §1210% et seq.), amended by the Americans with
Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008 (ADAAA) (Pub. L. 110-325) and modified by the LLFPA; Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (29 U.S.C. §701 et seq.).

16 775 [LCS 5/2-102(l). Employers must provide reasonable accommodations to employees with conditions related to
pregnancy, childbirth, or related conditions. 775 ILCS 5/2-102(J). Employers are required to post a notice summarizing the
right to be free from unlawful discrimination and the right to certain reasonable accommodations. 775 ILCS 5/2-102(K).
The IDOL is required to prepare such a notice, retrievable from its website, which employers may use.

Federal law also prohibits employers from discriminating against employees and applicants on the basis of pregnancy,
childbirth, or related medical conditions. 42 US.C. §2000e(k). State law also prohibits the State, which includes school
districts, from interfering with or discriminating against an individual’s fundamental right to continue a pregnancy or to have
an abortion. 775 ILCS 55/, added by P.A. 101-13. Pregnant workers with pregnancy-related impairments may have
disabilities for which they may be entitled to reasonable accommodation under the ADA. Guidance from the EEOC (744~
+46-25-15) is available at: www.eeoc.gov/laws/guidance/pregnancy _ga.cfm.

17 820 1LCS 70/ Employee Credit Privacy Act. Unless a satisfactory credit history is an established bona fide
occupational requirement of a particular position. an employer may not: (1) refuse to hire. discharge. or otherwise
discriminate against an individual with respect to employment because of the individual’s credit history or credit report; (2)
inquire about an applicant’s or employee’s credit history: or (3) order or obtain an applicant’s or employee’s credit report
from a consumer reporting agency. The Act identifies circumstances that permit a satisfactory credit history to be a job
requirement, such as, the position’s duties include custody of or unsupervised access to cash or marketable assets valued at
$2.500 or more.

5:10 Page 3 of 7

©2626202 1 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

103



law; '3 or other legally protected categories.-1? 20 21 22 No one will be penalized solely for his or her
status as a registered qualifying patient or a registered designated caregiver for purposes of the
Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program Act, 410 ILCS 130/. 23

Persons who believe they have not received equal employment opportunities should report their
claims to the Nondiscrimination Coordinator and/or a Complaint Manager for the Uniform Grievance
Procedure. These individuals are listed below. No employee or applicant will be discriminated or
retaliated against because he or she: (1) requested, attempted to request, used, or attempted to use a

I'he footnotes are not intended to be part ol the adopled policy: they should be remoyed before the policy is adopled

18 775 1LCS 5/2-103. 1(A). added by P.A. 101-656. The IHRA prohibits an emplover from disqualifving or taking other
adverse action against an applicant or emplovee based on a conviction record unless: (1) otherwise authorized by law; (2)
there is a substantial relationship between the eriminal olfense and the employment sought: or (3) granting the employment
would involve an unreasonable risk to property or to the satety or welfare of specific individuals or the general public. ld.
Disqualification or adverse action includes refusal 1o hire, segregation. and actions with respect to recruitment, hiring,
promotion. renewal of employment. selection for training or apprenticeship. discharge. discipline. tenure or terms.
privileges. or conditions of eliployment. Id. [ a board wants to terminate or take other adverse action against a current
district employee based inowhole oein part on a conviction record, it still must comply with all applicable statutory. policy.
and bargaining agreement provisions. Boards should consult the board attorney to ensure all legal obligations are met.

record must first engage them in an sueractive assessment, providing the individual with the opportunity to submit evidence
in mitigation or to dispute the acguracy of the gonviction record. See policy 3:30, Hiring Process and Criteria. at ffn 3. and
administrative procedurg 5 20-AP2 Ivespigations, for more information.
19 [nsert the following optional sentence (775 ILCS 5/1-103(Aa) and 29 U.S.C. §631):
Age, as used in this policy, means the age of a person who is at least 40 years old.

20 psert the following optional provisien (29 U.S.C. §705(10)(A)-(B), 20)(C)(v), 20}D) and 42 U.S.C. §12114):

Handicap and disability, as used in this policy, excludes persons:

1. Currently using illegal drugs;
Having a currently contagious disease or infection and who, by reason of such disease or infection, would
constitute a direct threat to the health or safety of ather individuals or who, by reason of the currently
contagious disease or infection, are unable to perform the duties of the job; or

3. Whose current alcoho! use prevents them from performing the job’s duties or constitutes a direct threat to the
property or safety of others.
Persons who have successfully completed or are participating in a deug rehabilitation program
are considered disabled.

21 pistricts may not make residency in the district a condition of employment for teachers or educational support
personnel. 105 ILCS 5/24-4.1, 5/10-23.5. This ban on residency requirements for teachers applies only to instructional
personnel, and not, for example, to assistant principals. Owen v. Kankakee Seh. Dist, 261 I1l.App.3d 298 (3rd Dist. 1994).
Districts also may not ask an applicant, or the applicant’s previous employ@e, whether the applicant ever received, or filed a
claim for, benefits under the Workers” Compensation Act or Workers’ Occupational Diseases Act. 820 ILCS 55/10(a).
Districts are also prohibited from requiring, requesting, or coercing an employee or potential employee to provide a user
name and password or any password or other related account information to gain or demand access to his or her personal
online account. 820 ILCS 55/10(b). While the law does not prohibit employers from viewing public information, consult the
board attorney before engaging in this practice.

22 School districts must accommodate mothers who choose to continue breastfeeding after returning to work. See 740
ILCS 137/, Right to Breastfeed Act; 820 ILCS 260/, amended by P.A. 100-1003, Nursing Mothers in the Workplace Act
(NMWA); and 29 U.S.C. §207(x), Fair Labor Standards Act. At least one court has ruled an implied private right of action
may exist under the NMWA. Spriesch v. City of Chicago, 2017 WL 4864913 (N.D.IIl. 2017). See sample language for a
personnel handbook in 5:10-AP, Workplace Accommodations for Nursing Mothers.

23 410 ILCS 130/40, amended by P.A. [01-363~seheduled-to-be-repeated-on-7-4-20; 77 [l Admin.Code Part 946. To
legally use medical cannabis. an individual must first become a registered qualifying patient. Their use ot cannabis, e.g.
permissible locations, is governed by the Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program Act. 410 [LCS 130/, amended
by P.A.s 100-660 and 101-363. There are many situations in which no one. even a registered qualifying patient. may possess
or use cannabis except as provided under Ashley’s Law (105 [LCS 3/22-33, added by P.A.s 100-660. and amended by P.A.s
101-363. and 101-370). including in a school bus or on the grounds of any preschool. or primary or secondary school. 410
[LCS 130/30(a)(2)(3), amended by P.A.s 100-660_and 101-363. See sample—policy 5:50, Drug- and Alcohol-Free
Workplace.: E-Cigarette, Tobacco, and Cannabis Prohibition, at fin 9 for further discussion.

5:10 Page 4 of 7
©2420202 1 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney betore use

104



reasonable accommodation as allowed by the Illinois Human Rights Act, or (2) initiated a complaint,
was a witness, supplied information, or otherwise participated in an investigation or proceeding
involving an alleged violation of this policy or State or federal laws, rules or regulations, provided the
employee or applicant did not make a knowingly false accusation nor provide knowingly false

information. 24

Administrative Implementation

The Superintendent shall appoint a Nondiscrimination Coordinator for personnel who shall be
responsible for coordinating the District’s nondiscrimination efforts. The Nondiscrimination
Coordinator may be the Superintendent or a Complaint Manager for the Uniform Grievance
Procedure. The Nondiscrimination Coordinator also serves as the District’s Title IX Coordinator. 25

The Superintendent shall insert into this policy the names, office addresses, email addresses, and
telephone numbers of the District’s current Nondiscrimination Coordinator and Complaint

Managers.26

Ihe Tootnotes are nol intended 1o be part of the adopted poliwe! they should be removed before the poliey is adopred.

24 775 ILCS 5/6-101. Discrimination on the basis of @ request for or use of a reasonable accommodation is a civil
rights violation under the [HRA. Id. Most diserimination laws prohibit retaliation against employees who oppose practices
made unlawful by those laws, including, for example, the EEOA, Title EX, ADA, ADEA, Victims™ Economic Security and
Safety Act, the EPA, and the [1l. Whistleblower Act (IWA).

The WA spt.ctf' cally prohibits employers from refaliating against employct.s for: (1) disclosing information to a
government or law enforcement agency, where the employee hias reasonable cause to believe that the information discloses a
violation of a State or federal law, rule, or regulation (740 ILCS 174/15(b)); (2) disclosing information in a court, an
administrative hearing, or before a legislative commission or committee, or in any other proceeding where the employee has
reasonable cause to believe that the information reveals a violation of a State or federal law, rule or regulation (740 ILCS
174/15(a)); (3) refusing to participate in an activity that would result in a vielation of'a State or federal law, rule, or
regulation, including, but not limited to, violations of FOIA the-Ereedom-ofltormation-Aut-(740 ILCS 174/20); and (4)
disclosing or attempting to disclose public corruption or wrongdoing (740'ILCS 174/20.1). The definition of retaliation is
expanded to include other retaliation and threatening retaliation. 740 ILCS 174/20.1, 20.2.

The [l False Claims Act defines State to include school districts. 740 ILCS 175/2(a). Thus, boards may seek a penalty
from a person for making a false claim for money or property. 740 ILCS 175/4. For information regarding the [WA and the
tort of retaliatory discharge.: sSee Thomas v. Guardsmark, 487 F.3d 531 (7th Cir. 2007)(cdiscussing the elements of
retaliatory discharge and IWA); Sherman v. Kraft General Foods. Ine., 272 [IL.App.3d 833 (d4th Dist. 1995)(finding
employee who reported asbestos hazard had a cause of action for retaliatory discharge).

25 The Nondiscrimination and Title 1X Coordinator(s) need not be the same person. [f the district uses a separate Title
X Coordinator who does not also serve as the Nondiscrimination Coordinator, delete “The-Mondiserimination-Coordinater
also—serves—as—the—Distriet’sTideX—Coordinator,” insert a hard return to create a new paragraph, and insert “The
Superintendent shall appoint a Title IX Coordinator to coordinate the District’s efforts to comply with Title [X.” Then, list
the Title IX and Nondiscrimination Coordinators’ names and contact information separately in this policy.

26 Title 1X regulations require districts to designate and authorize at least one employee to coordinate their efforts to
comply with Title IX and 1o reler to that employee as the Title LX Coordinator. 34 C.F.R. §106.8(a). Districts must identify
the Title [X Coordinator by name. office address. email address. and telephone number. Id. See l/n 19 in semple-policy
2:260, Uniform CGrievance Procedure.

While the names and contact information are required by law to be listed. they are not part of the adopted policy and do
not require board action. This allows for additions and amendments to the names and contact information when necessary. It
is important for updated names and contact information to be inserted into this policy and regularly monitored.

5:10 Page 5 of 7

©24202021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

105



Nondiscrimination Coordinator: 27

Name

Address

Email

Telephone
Complaint Managers:

Name Name
Address Address
Email ' Email
Telephone Telephone

The Superintendent shall also use reasomable measures to inform staff members and applicants that
the District is an equal opportunity employer, such as, by posting required notices and including this
policy in the appropriate handbooks. 28

Minority Recruitment 29

The District will attempt to recruit and hire minority employees. The implementation of this policy
may include advertising openings in minority publications, participating in minority job fairs, and
recruiting at colleges and universities with significant minority enrollments. This policy, however,

lhe Footnoles are nol inlended Lo be part of the adopted policy: they should be removetthelure the policy is adopted.

27 Best practice is that throughout the district’s board policy manual, the same individual be named as
Nondiscrimination Coordinator. In contrast, Complaint Managers identified in mdividual policies may vary depending upon
local district needs.

28 1 addition to notifying employees of the Uniform Grievance Procedure, a district must notify them of the person(s)
designated to coordinate the district’s compliance with Title IX and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 34 C.F.R. §§106.8(a),
104.8(a). The Nondiscrimination Coordinator may be the same individual for both this policy and policy 7:10, Equal
Educational Opportunities, as well as a Complaint Manager for policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance Procedure. A
comprehensive faculty handbook can provide required notices, along with other important information, to recipients. The
handbook can be developed by the building principal, but should be reviewed and approved by the superintendent and
school board. Any working conditions contained in the handbook may be subject to mandatory collective bargaining.

29 All districts must have a policy on minority recruitment. 105 ILCS 5/10-20.7a. Unlike minority recruitment efforts,
affirmative action plans are subject to significant scrutiny because of the potential for reverse discrimination. The U.S.
Constitution's guarantee of equal protection prohibits school districts from using racial hiring quotas without evidence of
past discrimination. See 29 C.F.R. §1608.1 et seq. (EEOC’s guidelines for affirmative action plans): Wygant v. Jackson Bd.
of Ed., 476 U.S. 267 (1986) (The goal of remedying societal discrimination does not justity race-based layotts.): City of
Richmond v. J.A. Croson Co., 488 U.S. 469 (1989) (Minority contractor quota struck: quotas must be narrowly tailored to
remedy past discrimination and the city failed to identify the need for remedial action and whether race-neutral alternatives
existed.).

The (HRA states that it shall not be construed as requiring any employer to give preferential treatment or special rights
based on sexual orientation or to implement affirmative action policies or programs based on sexual orientation. 775 ILCS
5/1-101.1.

5:10 Page 6 of 7

©2026202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

106



does not require or permit the District to give preferential treatment or special rights based on a
protected status without evidence of past discrimination.

LEGAL REF.:

CROSS REF.:

5:10

8 U.S.C. §1324a et seq., Immigration Reform and Control Act.

20 U.S.C. §1681 et seq., Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972; 34 C.F.R.
Part 106.

29 U.S.C. §206(d), Equal Pay Act.

29 U.S.C. §621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act.

29 U.S.C. §701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

38 US.C. §4301 et seq., Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment
Rights Act (1994).

42 US.C. §1981 et seq., Civil Rights Act of 1991.

42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq., Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; 29 C.F.R. Part
1601.

42 US.C. §2000ff et seq., Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008.

42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq., Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

42 U.S.C. §2000e(k), Pregnancy Discrimination Act.

42 US.C. §12111 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act, Title L.

IIL. Constitution, Art. I, §§17 18, and 19.
5;'24 4.1, and 5;‘24-7

410 ILCS 130740, Compassionate Use of Medical Cannabis Program Act.

410 ILCS 513/25, Genetic Information Privacy Act.

740 ILCS 174/, 11. Whistleblower Act.

775 ILCS 5/1-103, 5/2-102, 103, 103.1. and 5/6-101, [ll. Human Rights Act.

775 ILCS 35/5, Religious Freedom Restoration Act.

820 [LCS 55/10, Right to Privacy in the Workplace Act.

820 ILCS 70/, Employee Credit Privacy Act.

820 ILCS 75/, Job Opportunities for Qualificd Appl[cants Act.

820 ILCS 112/, Ill. Equal Pay Act of 2003.

820 ILCS 180/30, Victims® Economic Security and Safety Act.

820 ILCS 260/, Nursing Mothers in the Workplace Act,

2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 2:265 (Title [X Sexual Harassment
Grievance Procedure), 5:20 (Workplace Harassment Prohibited), 5:30 (Hiring
Process and Criteria), 5:40 (Communicable and Chronic Infectious Disease),
5:50 (Drug- and Alcohol-Free Workplace; E-Cigarette, Tobacco, and Cannabis
Prohibition), 5:70 (Religious Holidays), 5:180 (Temporary Illness or Temporary
Incapacity), 5:200 (Terms and Conditions of Employment and Dismissal), 5:250
(Leaves of Absence), 5:270 (Employment, At-Will, Compensation, and
Assignment), 5:300 (Schedules and Employment Year), 5:330 (Sick Days,
Vacation, Holidays, and Leaves), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:180
(Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment), 8:70
(Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities)

Page 7 of 7

© Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of Schoo! Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your schoo! board attorney before use

107



Meovember2020June 2021 5:30

General Personnel

Hiring Process and Criteria 1

The District hires the most qualified personnel consistent with budget and staffing requirements and
in compliance with School Board policy on equal employment opportunity and minority
recruitment.2 The Superintendent is responsible for recruiting personnel and making hiring
recommendations to the Board.3 If the Superintendent’s recommendation is rejected, the
Superintendent must submit another.4 No individual will be employed who has been convicted of a
criminal offense listed in 105 ILCS 5/21B-80(c). $

The footnotes are not intepder to B&part ol the adopted policy: they should be removed belore the policy s adopted

1 State or federal law controls this olicy’s content. This policy contains an item on which impact bargaining may be
p p p . ]
required. Any policy that impacts upon wages, hours, and terms and conditions of employment, is subject to collective
bargaining upon request by the employee representative, even if the policy involves an inherent managerial right.

2 See policy 5:10, Equal Employment Oppartunity and Minority Recruitment. Districts may not classify a job as either
a male or female job. 29 C.F.R. §1604.5. 34 CF.R. §106.55.

3 Boards must consider the superintendent’s recommendations concerning, among other things, “the selection,
retention, and dismissal of employees.” 105 FLES 5/10-16.7. The board may want to use this alternative sentence:

All personnel decisions are made by the Board, but only on the recommendation of the Superintendent.

Subject to an applicable collective bargaining agreement in effect on 6-13-11, a board that fills a “new or vacant
teaching position” must select a candidate based on: (1) certifications, (2) qualifications, (3) merit and ability (including
performance evaluation, if available), and (4) relevant experience, provided that the length of continuing service with the
district must not be considered a factor, unless all other, factors are determined by the school district to be equal. 105 [LCS
5/24-1.5. The statute does not define “new or vacant teaching positions.” The requirement does not apply to filling vacant
positions under 105 ILCS 5/24-12 (reduction in force and'recall). Consult the board attorney about these issues.

4 An additional optional sentence follows:

The Superintendent may select personnel on a short-term basis for aspecific project or emergency condition before the
Board’s approval.

S 775 ILCS 5/2-103.1. added by P.A. 101-656. prohibits employers from usiiig corVietion records as a basis 1o refuse
to hire or to take any adverse action against an applicant or emplovee unless: (1) otherwise authorized by law: (2) there is a
substantial relationship between the criminal offense and the employment:sought; or (3) granting the employment would
involve an unrcasonable risk to property or to the safety or welfure of specific individuals or the general public. For the
disqualifving offenses listed in 105 ILCS 5/21B-80. a district does not have to show a substantial relationship between the
offense and the position or that hiring or continuing to employ the person would involve an unreasonable risk. However, the
11, Dept. of Human Rights (IDHR) interprets the 111, Human Rights Act (IHRA) to still require the employer to notify the
applicant of the disqualification pursuant to law and to afford the applicant at least five business days to respond in case the
applicant wants to dispute the accuracy of the conviction record. Id. at 5/2-103.1(C). See IDHR's Conviction Record
Protection — Freguently Asked Ouestions (March 2021). at:

www2.illinois.gov/dhi/Pages/Conviction_Record Protection_Frequently Asked Queslions.aspx. See administrative
procedure 5:30-AP2. [mvestigations, and its footnotes for more detail regarding the IHRA notice requirements. Note: The
protections of 775 [LCS 5/2-103.1 do not cover unpaid interns. which may include student teachers in the K-12 coutext. The
definition of emplovee in_the THRA only extends to include unpaid interns for civil rights violations involving sexual
harassment. 775 [LCS 5/2-101(A)(1)(c) and 5/2-102({D).

105 [LCS 5/10-21.9(c). amended by P.A. 101-531; 105 ILCS 5/21B-80. amended by P.A. [0[-531. allows individuals
with criminal histories involving certain drug convictions to apply for or to reinstate their educator licenses seven years after
their sentence for the criminal offense is completed. Consult the board attorney about whether the board wants to continue
prohibiting employment for any individual who has a criminal history involving these exempted drug offenses.

For more discussion regarding criminal history records checks and screenings required by 105 ILCS 3/10-21.9,
amended by P.A.s 101-531 and 101-643, see f/ns 5 and 6 in policy 4:175, Convicted Child Sex Offender; Screening;
Notifications.

5:30 Page | of 7

©2620202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association ot School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney betore use.

108



All applicants must complete a District application in order to be considered for employment. 6

Job Descriptions

The Board maintains the Superintendent’s job description and directs, through policy, the
Superintendent, in his or her charge of the District’s administration. 7

The Superintendent shall develop and maintain a current comprehensive job description for each
position or job category; however, a provision in a collective bargaining agreement or individual

contract will control in the event of a conflict. 8

The footnotes are not intended (o be part of the adopied policy: they should be removed belore the policy is adopled

6 Any person who applies for employment as a teacher, principal, superintendent, or other certificated employee who
willfully makes a false statement on his or her application for employment, material to his or her qualifications for
employment, which he or she does not believe to be true, is guilty of a Class A misdemeanor. 105 ILCS 5/22-6.5. District
employment applications must contain a statement to this effect. Id. Each employment application for these positions must
state the following (Id.):

Failure to provide requested employment or employer history which is material to the
applicant’s qualifications for employment or the provision of statements which the applicant
does not believe to be true may be a Class A misdemeanor.

Many districts ask applicants about disgualifying criminal convictions on their employment applications or at another
point before a job ofler is made. State law does not expressly prohibit this practice: however. guidance issued by |DHR
regarding implementation pf£ 778 ILCS 5'1-103(4-3) and 5/2-103.1. added by P.A. 101-636, states “[u]nless authorized by
law, an employer is prohibited from Inguiring abuut an applicant’s conviction record prior (o making a job offer to the
applicant.” See IDHR's Convictivn Record. Protection - Frequently Asked Ouestions guidance issued by [DHR (March
2021), at:

www2.illinois.gov/dhr/Pages/Conviction_Record Protection_Frequently Asked Questions.aspx. It is also unclear if
an applicant’s mere disclosure of a disqualifying conviction on an application, absent results of a fingerprint-based eriminal
history records check. [ll. Sex Offender Registry cheek. or Violent Offender Against Youth Registry check. triggers the
district’s obligation to provide notice to the apphicant under 775 ILCS 5/2-103.1(C); see also fn 5. above. Consull the board
attorney for advice on these issues and how they may atfect application processes.

Any employer that asks applicants to record video interviews amd uses an artificial intelligence analysis of the
applicant-submitted videos must comply with the Artlﬁcral Intelligence Video Interview Act, 820 ILCS 42/, added by P.A.
101-260.

7 105 ILCS 5/10-16.7. The foundation for a productive employment relaﬁonship begins with a board’s policy, a
thoughtfully crafted employment contract and job description, and procedures for communications and ongoing assessment.
See IASB’ s Foundatlonal Prmczples of Effective Govemance, Prmclple 3.The bmu:d employs a supermtendent at:

. o/ o

governance/.
See also 3:40-F, Checklist for the Superintendent Employment Centract Negotiation Process, for best practice

discussions about establishing the board-superintendent employment relationship and contract.

8 Job descriptions will become the basis for categorizing a teacher into one or more positions that the teacher is
qualified to hold for reduction in force (RIF) dismissal and recall purposes. 105 [LCS 5/24-12(b), amended by P.A. 101-643.
A board should consult with its attorney to review its current list of job descriptions and discuss the district’s specific
responsibilities.

A job description is evidence of a position’s essential functions. 29 C.F.R. §1630.2(n). The Americans with Disabilities
Act (ADA) protects individuals who have a disability and are qualified, with reasonable accommodation, to perform the
essential functions of the job. 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq., amended by the ADA Amendments Act (ADAAA), Pub. L. 110-
325. Determining which functions are essential may be critical to determining if an individual with a disability is qualified.
An individual is qualified to perform a job even though he or she is unable, due to a disability. to perform tasks which are
incidental to the job. Only when an individual is unable to perform the essential functions of a job may a district deny the
individual employment opportunities. 29 C.F.R. §1630.2(m). For a definition ot essential functions see Id. at 1630.2(n).
Whether a particular function is essential is a factual determination.

Important: The ADAAA madekes significant changes to the ADA’s definition of disability that broadened the scope
of coverage and overturned a series of U.S. Supreme Court decisions that made it difficult to prove that an impairment was a
qualifying  disability. There is information about the regulations and a link to them at
www.eeoc.gov/laws/regulations/adaaa_fact sheet.cfm. Consult the board attorney regarding how these amendments impact
the district’s hiring processes.

5:30 Page 2 of 7

©2620202 | Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney betfore use

109



[nvestigations

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a fingerprint-based criminal history records check
and a check of the Statewide Sex Offender Database and Violent Offender Against Youth Database is
performed on each applicant as required by State law.? When the applicant is a successful
superintendent candidate who has been offered employment by the Board, the Board President shall
ensure that these checks are completed.1® The Superintendent or designee, or if the applicant is a
successful superintendent candidate, then the Board President shall notify an applicant if the applicant
is identified in either database.l! The School Code requires the Board President to keep a conviction
record confidential and share it only with the Superintendent, Regional Superintendent, State
Superintendent, State Educator Preparation and Licensure Board, any other person necessary to the
hiring decision, or for purposes of clarifying the information, the Ill. Dept. of State Police and/or
Statewide Sex Offender Database.12 The Board reserves its right to authorize additional background
inquiries beyond a fingerprint-based criminal history records check when it deems it appropriate to do
s0, in accordance with applicable laws.

I'e Tootnoles are nethmtended to be part ol the adopted policy: they should be removed betore the policy is adopled

9 The policy’s requirements om criminal records checks for applicants for employment are mandated by 105 ILCS
5/10-21.9, amended by P.A.s 101-72, 101-531, and 101-643. See administrative procedure 5:30-AP2, Investigations, for the
process and positions requiring criminal background investigation and what steps a district must take if'it wants to disqualify
an applicant based on a conviction record. The Statewide Sex Offender Database (a/k/a Sex Offender Registry) is available
at: www.isp.state.il.us/sor. The Statewide Murderer and Violent Offender Against Youth Database is available at:
www.isp.state.il.us/cmvo/. For more discussion regarding criminal history records checks and screenings required by 105
ILCS 5/10-21.9, amended by P.A.s 101-531 and 101-643, see f/n 5 in policy 4:175, Convicted Child Sex Offender:
Screening; Notifications. See policy 4:60, Purchases and Contracts, for requirements concerning criminal background
checks of employees of contractors who have direct, daily contact with students.

10 Id. If a board wants to require additional background inquiries beyond the fingerprint-based criminal history records
information check required by 105 [LCS 5/10-21.9, amended by P.A.s 107-72, 101-531, and 101-643, including the federal
Rap Back Service (20 ILCS 2630/3.3, added by P.A. 108-718) and/or checks through consumer reporting agencies regulated
by the Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. §1681 et seq.), consult the board attorney. For more detailed information, see
the laws listed in sample exhibit 3:40-E, Checklist for the Superintendem Employment Contract Negotiation Process, under
the checklist item entitled Conditions of Employment, in the Other Background Chesk Laws row.

1 195 [LCS 5/10-21.9(b), amended by P.A.s 101-72 and 101-531, and 105 &ES 5/21B-10. The School Code requires
the board president to keep a conviction record confidential. It is impossible to'know whether a fingerprint-based criminal
history records check and a check of the Statewide Sex Offender and Vielent Offender Against Youth Databases on a
successful superintendent candidate will come back with a conviction record:

Therefore, in accordance with best practice (ensuring compliance and aligning with good governance principles), this
policy does not assign a designee for the board president to complete this task. However, to balance the requirement to keep
conviction records confidential with the practical implementation of ensuring a fingerprint-based criminal history records
check and a check of the Statewide Sex Offender and Violent Offender Against Youth Databases are performed on each
successful superintendent applicant, a board president may want to designate the duty to order these checks to the
individuals otherwise listed in 105 ILCS 5/10-21.9(b), amended by P.A.s 101-72 and 101-531. Those individuals include the
board president, the superintendent or designee, regional superintendent (if the check was requested by the district), state
superintendent of education, state Educator Preparation and Licensure Board, any other person necessary to the hiring
decision, or for clarification purposes, the [1l. Dept. of State Police and/or Statewide Sex Offender Registry.

12 Id. at 5/10-21.9(b), amended by P.A.s 101-72 and 10[-331. The School Code continues to define the board
president’s role in conducting criminal background investigations and receiving the results of these investigations, including
the results for employees of district contractors. 105 [LCS 5/10-21.9. Many districts delegate this task in the hiring process
to a human resources department.

Use this alternative for districts in suburban Cook County: replace “Regional Superintendent™ with “appropriate
[ntermediate Service Center.”

For more discussion regarding responses to results obtained by criminal history records checks and screenings as
required by 105 ILCS 5/10-21.9(e), amended by P.A.s 101-331 and 101-643, see /n 6 in policy 4:175, Convicted Child Sex
Olffender; Screening; Notifications.

5:30 Page 3 of 7

©2020202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[Itinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

110



Each newly hired employee must complete a U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services Form as
required by federal law. 13

The District retains the right to discharge any employee whose criminal background investigation
reveals a conviction for committing or attempting to commit any of the offenses outlined in 105 ILCS
5/21B-8014 or who falsifies, or omits facts from, his or her employment application or other
employment documents. If an indicated finding of abuse or neglect of a child has been issued by the
[1l. Department of Children and Family Services or by a child welfare agency of another jurisdiction
for any applicant for student teaching, applicant for employment, or any District employee, then the

Board must consider that person’s status as a condition of employment. 15

The Superintendent shall ensure that the District does not engage in any investigation or inquiry
prohibited by law and complies with each of the following: 16
1. The District uses an applicant’s credit history or report from a consumer reporting agency
only when a satisfactory credit history is an established bona fide occupational requirement of
a particular position. 17
2. The District does not screen applicants based on their current or prior wages or salary
histories, including benefits or other compensation, by requiring that the wage or salary
history satisfy minimum or maximum criteria. 18
3. The District does not request or require a wage or salary history as a condition of being
considered for employment, being interviewed, continuing to be considered for an offer of
employment, an offer of employment, or an offer of compensation. 1?

Ihe lootnales arc not intended to be part ol the adopted palicy: they should be removed before the policy is udopled.

13 Immigration Reform and Control Act, 8 U.S.C. §1324a et seq. Consult with the board attorney regarding the
district’s rights and responsibilities under all [1linois laws if the district uses any electronic employment verification system,
including £-Verify and/or the Basic Pilot Program. 820 ELCS 55/12. This statute urges employers who voluntarily use £-
Verify (formerly known as the Basic Pilot/Employment Ekgibility Verification Program) to consult the I1l. Dept. of Labor’s
website for current information on the accuracy of E-Verify and to review and enderstand their legal responsibilities relating
to the use of any electronic employment verification systems. See f/n 2 in 5:150-AP; Personnel Records, for a more detailed
discussion of E-Verify issues.

14 gee f/n 5. above.

15 105 1ILCS 5/10-21.9(c) and (g), amended by P.A. 101-531. See f/n. 6 i 4:175, Convicted Child Sex Offender;
Screening; Notifications, for further discussion.

16 A an alternative to describing the prohibited investigations, a board may substitute this sentence:

The Superintendent shall ensure that the District does not engage in any investigation or inquiry prohibited by law,
including without limitation, investigation into or inquity concerning: (1) credit history or report unless a satisfactory credit
history is an established bona fide occupational requirement of a particular position; (2) claim(s) made or benefit(s) received
under Workers’ Compensation Act; and (3) access to an employee’s or applicant’s social networking website, including a

request for passwords to such sites.
The default policy provision and the alternative stated above — whichever is selected — may be made a prohibition

rather than a duty of the superintendent; to do this, delete the stricken text as follows: “The Superintendentshall-ensure-that
the District does not engage ... .”

17 Employee Credit Privacy Act, 820 [LCS 70/10. This Act allows inquiries into an applicant’s credit history or credit
report or ordering or obtaining an applicant’s credit report from a consumer reporting agency when a satisfactory credit
history is an established bona fide occupational requirement of a particular position. The Act identifies circumstances that
permit a satisfactory credit history to be a job requirement. such as, the position’s duties include custody of or unsupervised
access to cash or marketable assets valued at $2,500 or more.

18 820 (LCS 1 12/10(b-5). added by P.A. 101-177. 1f an employer violates this subsection, the employee may recover in
a civil action any damages incurred, special damages up to $10,000, injunctive relief, and costs and reasonable attorney’s
tees. 820 [LCS 112/30(a-5), added by P.A. 101-177.

1914,

5:30 Page 4 of 7

©262602021 Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

111



4. The District does not request or require an applicant to disclose wage or salary history as a
condition of employment. 20

5. The District does not ask an applicant or applicant’s current or previous employers about
wage or salary history, including benefits or other compensation. 21

6. The District does not ask an applicant or applicant’s previous employers about claim(s) made
or benefit(s) received under the Workers’ Compensation Act. 22

7. The District does not request of an applicant or employee access in any manner to his or her
personal online account, such as social networking websites, including a request for
passwords to such accounts. 23

8. The District provides equal employment opportunities to all persons. See policy 5:10, Equal
Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment.

The lootioles are not intended to be part of the adopled policy: they should be removed belore the policy is adopled.

20 14,

21 820 [LCS 112/10(b-10), added by P.A. 101-177. Nete: Attorneys caution that using the exceptions in 820 ILCS
112/10(b-10)(1) and (2), added by P.A. 101-177, may trigger litigation. Violating this subsection entitles an employee to
recover in a civil action any damages incurred, special damages up to $10,000, injunctive relief, and costs and reasonable
attorney’s fees. 820 ILCS 112/30(a-5), added by P.A. 101-£77.

A school board that wishes to preserve these exceptions sheuld consuft tts board attorney; then they may supplement
number 5 by adding the following after “compensation™

unless the applicant’s wage or salary history is a matter of public record, or i contained in a document completed by
the applicant’s current or former employer and then made available to the public %y the employer, or then submitted or
posted by the employer to comply with State or federal law; or the applicant is a current employee applying for a position
with the same current employer.

22 Right to Privacy in the Workplace Act, 820 ILCS 55/10(a).

23 Id. at 55/10(b)(6)(B) (commonly known as the Facebook Password Law). A personal online account is defined as
an online account used primarily by a person for personal purposes. Personal online account does not include an account
created, maintained, used, or accessed for the business purpose of a person’s employer or prospective employer. Id. at
55/10(b)(5). Bracketed explanations follow the statutory language:

“Nothing in this subsection shall prohibit or restrict an employer from complying with a duty to screen employees or
applicants prior to hiring...provided that the password, account information, or access sought by the employer only relates
to an online account that:

(A) an employer supplies or pays; or

(B) an employee creates or maintains on behalf of under the direction of an employer in connection with that
employee’s employment.”

[Based on this explanation, it is implausible that an applicant would have an account, service. or profile lor business
purposes of a school emplover. ]

The statute specifically permits an employer to: (1) maintain workplace policies governing the use of the employer’s
electronic equipment, including policies regarding [nternet use, social networking site use. and electronic mail use: and (2)
monitor usage of the employer’s (district’s) electronic equipment and electronic mail. The statute also states that it does not
prohibit an employer from obtaining information about an applicant or an employee that is in the public domain or that is
otherwise obtained in compliance with the statute. Finally. the statute does not apply to all types of personal technology that
employees may use to communicate with students or other individuals, such as text messages on a personal phone. Consult
the board attorney about these issues.

5:30 Page 5 of 7

©2262021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association ot School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

112



Physical Examinations 24

Each new employee must furnish evidence of physical fitness to perform assigned duties and freedom
from communicable disease. The physical fitness examination must be performed by a physician
licensed in Illinois, or any other state, to practice medicine and surgery in any of its branches, a
licensed advanced practice registered nurse, or a licensed physician assistant who has been delegated
the authority by his or her supervising physician to perform health examinations. The employee must
have the physical examination performed no more than 90 days before submitting evidence of it to
the District.

Any employee may be required to have an additional examination by a physician who is licensed in
[llinois to practice medicine and surgery in all its branches, a licensed advanced practice registered

nurse, or a licensed physician assistant who has been delegated the authority by his or her supervising
physician to perform health examinations, if the examination is job-related and consistent with

business necessity.25 The Board will pay the expenses of any such examination.

Orientation Program

The District’s staff will provide an orientation program for new employees to acquaint them with the
District’s policies and procedures, the school’s rules and regulations, and the responsibilities of their
position. Before beginning employment, each employee must sign the Acknowledgement of Mandated
Reporter Status form as provided in policy 5:90, Abused and Neglected Child Reporting.

I'he foolnoles are not intended to be part of the adopted policy; they shotild be removed before the policy is adopted

24 105 [LCS 5/24-5, amended by P.A.s 100-513, 100-855, and 101-81. According to this statute, a new or existing
employee or substitute teacher employee may be subject to additional health examinations, including tuberculosis screening,
as required by rules adopted by the Ill. Dept. of Public Health or by order of a kpeal public health official. The Ill. Dept. of
Public Health does not require school employees to be screened for tuberculgsis other than workers in child day care and
preschool settings. 77 Ill. Admin.Code §696.140(a)(3).

The last sentence of the first paragraph exceeds State law requirements and may be deleted.

Note that while examination by a spiritual leader/practitioner is sufficient for purposes of leaves, the statute does not
permit an examination by a spiritual leader/practitioner for initial employment exams. This difference may present a
constitutional issue; contact the board attorney for an opinion if an applicant wants to use an examination by a spiritual
leader/practitioner.

Federal law limits pre-employment medical inquiries to whether the applicant is able to perform job-related functions;
required medical examinations of applicants is forbidden. American with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 U.S.C. §12112(d)(2);
see also f/n 8 for an explanation regarding the ADAAA. Districts may condition an employment offer on taking and passing
medical inquiries or physical exams, provided that all entering employees in the same classification receive the same
conditional offer.

25 The State law (105 ILCS 5/24-5, amended by P.A.s 100-513, 100-855. and 101-81) allowing boards to require
physicals of current employees “from time to time.” is been superseded by the ADA. 42 U.S.C. §12112(d)(4). The ADA
allows medical inquiries of current employees only when they are job-related and consistent with business necessity or part
of a voluntary employee wellness program. Id. Districts may deny jobs to individuals with disabilities who pose a direct
threat to the health or safety of others in the workplace, provided that a reasonable accommodation would not either
eliminate the risk or reduce it to an acceptable level. 42 U.S.C. §12113; 29 C.F.R. §1630.2(r). See [/n 8 for an explanation
regarding the ADAAA.

See-the [/n 243 for a discussion of examinations by spiritual leaders/practitioners.

5:30 Page 6 of 7
©220202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

113



LEGAL REF.:

CROSS REF.:

5:30

105 ILCS 5/10-16.7, 5/10-20.7, 5/10-21.4, 5/10-21.9, 5/21B-10, 5/21B-80, 5/10-
22.34, 5/10-22.34b, 5/22-6.5, and 5/24-5.

20 ILCS 2630/3.3, Criminal Identification Act.

820 ILCS 55/, Right to Privacy in the Workplace Act.

820 IL.CS 70/, Employee Credit Privacy Act.

Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §12112, and 29 C.F.R. Part 1630.

Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.

Immigration Reform and Control Act, 8 U.S.C. §1324a et seq.

Duldulao v. St. Mary of Nazareth Hospital, 136 Tll. App. 3d 763 (1st Dist. 1985),

aff 'd in part and remanded 115 111.2d 482(1l1. 1987).
Kaiser v. Dixon, 127 Ill. App. 3d 251 (2nd Dist. 1984).
Molitor v. Chicago Title & Trust Co., 325 Ill. App. 124 (1st Dist. 1945).

2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 3:50 (Administrative Personnel Other
Than the Superintendent), 4:60 (Purchases and Contracts), 4:175 (Convicted
Child Sex Offender; Screening; Notifications), 5:10 (Equal Employment
QOpportunity and Minority Recruitment), 5:40 (Communicable and Chronic
Infectious Disease), 5:90 (Abused and Neglected Child Reporting), 5:125
(Personal Technology and 8001al Media; Usage and Conduct), 5:220 (Substitute
Teachers), 5:280 (Edueatic 2 Duties and Qualifications)

Page 7 of 7

©2024202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Iilinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

114



2046 une 2021 6:100

Instruction
Using Animals in the Educational Program !

Animals may be brought into school facilities for educational purposes according to procedures
developed by the Superintendent assuring: (a) the animal is appropriately housed, humanely cared for,
and properly handled, and (b) students will not be exposed to a dangerous animal or an unhealthy

environment. 2

Animal Experiments
Experiments on living animals are prohibited; however, behavior studies that do not impair an
animal’s health or safety are permissible. 3

Animal Dissection

The dissection of dead animals or parts of dead animals shall be allowed in the classroom only when
the dissection exercise contributes to or is a part of an illustration of pertinent study materials. All
dissection of animals shall be confined to the classroom and must comply with the School Code.
Students who object to performing, participating in, or observing the dissection of animals are
excused from classroom aftendance without penalty during times when such activities are taking
place.4 No student will be penalized or disciplined for refusing to perform, participate in, or observe a
dissection. The Superintendent or designee shall inform students of: (1) their right to refrain from
performing, participating in, or observing dissection, and (2) which courses contain a dissection unit
and which of those courses offers an alternative project. 5

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/2-3.122, 5/27-14, and 112/,

CROSS REF.: 6:40 (Curriculum Development)

e footnotes are not imtended (o be part ol the adopted poticy: they should be removed belore the policy is adopied.

1 State or federal law controls this policy’s content.

2 This paragraph is optional and is not controlled by State or federal statute or rule.

paragrap 5/

3 This sentence’s first clause is required by 105 ILCS 5/27-14; the clause after the semi-colon is a reasonable
interpretation that will allow the use of mouse-mazes.

4 105 ILCS 112/2554ate—taw prohibits schools from penalizing a student who refuses to perform, participate in, or

p p £ p p p
observe dissection-HHS-H-CS1H2/233,

Y [SBE’s guidelines for helping schools give notice to students, parents, teachers, and administrators are available
under the RESOURCES heading at: www.isbe.net/Pages/Science-Mandates.aspxwwwisbe-netilsiscience/mandaleshim,
State law does not require that objecting students receive an alternative project. [nstead. it says that the student may be given
an alternative project that provides the student, through means other than dissection, with knowledge similar to that expected
to be gained during the dissection project.

6:100 Page 1 of 1

©24162021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[{linois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use.

115



Oetober2046June 202 | 6:145

a
1]
[N

Instruction

Migrant Students 1

The Superintendent will develop and implement a program to address the needs of migrant children in
the District in accordance with federal law.

This program will-inetude-a-rmeansto:

1. Identify migrant students and assess their educational and related health and social needs.

2. Provide a full range of services to migrant students through appropriate local, State, and
federal educational programs,2 including applicable Title I programs, special education,
gifted education, vocational education, language programs, counseling programs, and elective
classes.

3. Provide migrant children with full and appropriate opportunities to meet the same challenging
State academic standards that all children are expected to meet. 3

4. Provide, tothe extent feasible: 4

a. _aAdvocacy and outreach programs to migrant children and their families, including
helping such children and families gain access to other education, health, nutrition, and
social services, and

b. pProfessional development programs. nicluding mentoring. for District staff:,

¢. Family literacy programs.

d. The integration of information technology into educational and related programs, and

a-e, Programs to facilitate the transition of Ssecondary school students to postsecondary
education or employment. 3

(he footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy: they should be minoved belore the policy is adopted.

I State or federal law controls this policy’s content. The first sentence of this policy allows a school board to consider
the goals for its migrant education program and to amend the sumple policy accordingly. The Migrant Education Program is
a federally funded program authorized under Title I, Part C, of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA).; 20
USL §639[ et__q) 34 (.I R §200.81 et \Lg#méwam—m—%e%%%&ﬂmd—we—mw—ﬂudem

S 0RO haee—aoi—heei-npdateds

Amendmeummhwlmemm—hghly-hkelwmﬁmwwyw

To qualify for the program, a migrant child must: (1) be younger than the age of 22, (2) have not carned a high school
diploma or an equivalent degree. (3) have moved on his/her own as a migratory worker or with/to join/to precede a parent,
spouse or guardian who is a migratory worker; and (4) have moved within the preceding 36 months due to economic
necessity, from one school district to another. and from one residence to another. 20 U.S.C. §6399: see also
www.ishe.net/Pages/Migrant-Education-Program.aspx. have-moved-within-the-last-three-years-across-state-or-sehool-distriet
lines-with-a-parent or-guardinn-or-on-histher own-to-obtain-qualifving-lempoerary-or-seasonal-worl-in-agriculture-or-fishing.
Although most of the requirements are directed to State agencies. local school districts that receive State money for these
programs will be held to many of the same requirements by the State. For additional information. see [SBE’s collection of
material about the Migrant Education Program in I[llinois is—available—at www.isbe.net/Pages/Migrant-Education-
Program.aspx,

220 U.S.C. §§ 6394(b)(1)(A). 6396(a)(1)(E).

320 U.S.C. §§ 6391(3). 6394(b)(2). 6396(a)(1)(C).

420 U.S.C. §6394(c)(7).

6:145 Page 1 of 2
©26:+a202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

116



5. Provide programs, activities, and procedures for the engagement of parents/guardians and
family members of migrant students in an understandable format and language. 6

Migrant Education Program for Parent/Guardian and Family Member Engagement

Parents/guardians and family members of migrant students will be involved in and regularly
consulted about the development, implementation, operation, and evaluation of the migrant program.

Parents/guardians and family members of migrant students will receive instruction regarding their
role in improving the academic achievement of their children.

LEGAL REF.: 20 U.S.C. §6318.
20 U.S.C. §6391 et seq.. Education of Migratory Children.
34 C.F.R. §200.819 et seq.

CROSS REF.: 6:170 (Title I Programs)

S For an elementary school district that wants to delete subsection e, amend d(c)-d(e) as follows:
c.  Family literacy programs, and

d.  The integration of information u.t.hnu]u_g» into bdumlll(!niﬂ and rci‘tlud programs.—s#d
; siseenndaryeduenticn siem

6:145 Page 2 of 2

©32+6202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

117



Oeteber2046June 2021 6:160

Instruction

English Learners 1

The District offers opportunities for resident English Learners to achieve at high levels in academic
subjects and to meet the same challenging State academic standards that all children are expected to
meet. The Superintendent or designee shall develop and maintain a program for English Learners that
will:
1. Assist all English Learners to achieve English proficiency, facilitate effective communication
in English, and encourage their full participation in school activities and programs as well as
promote participation by the parents/guardians of English Learners. 2

2. Appropriately identify students with limited English language proficiency. 3

I'he tootnotes are not_gmtended to be paet ol the adopled policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted

I State or federal law controls this policy’s content. The assessment and accountability provisions in the Elementary and
Secondary Education Act (ESEA), as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act, and State law inciude English Learners,
€20 U.S.C. §§6312, 6314, 6315, and 6318:). Neate: Applicable regulations at 34 C.F.R. Part 200 have not been updated;
amendments to the regulations are highly likely within the next year._34 C.F.R. Part 200).

ESEA Title I, Part A, also known as the English Language Acquisition, Language Enhancement, and Academic
Achievement Act, provides funding to suppert schools’ efforts to help children who are English learners “achieve at high
levels in academic subjects so that all English learners can meet the same challenging State academic standards that all children
are expected to meet.s” €20 U.S.C. §6812(2).)- Reimbursement for programs is contingent on the submission and approval of
a program plan and request for reimbursement in accordance with the requirements in 105 [LCS 5/14C-12 and 23
[1l.Admin.Code Part 228. This policy uses =English Learners?> (EL) rather than “English Language Learners (ELL)> or
=Limited English Proficient (LEP).2 LEP and ELL are no longer terms used generally among educators and researchers in the
field of English language acquisition. €37 Ill. Reg. 16804). [he 1ll. Stwie Board of Education (ISBE) now uses the term English
learners, which are synonymous with LEP and ELL. P.A. 99-30 alse deleted language from “English language learner.”

For purposes of this policy, English Learners is synonymous with the School Code definition, which means: (1) all
students in grades Pre-K through 12 who were not born in the United States, whose native tongue is a language other than
English, and who are incapable of performing ordinary classwork in English; and (2) alf students in grades Pre-K through 12
who were born in the United States of parents possessing no or limited English-speaking ability and who are incapable of
performing ordinary classwork in English. ¢105 ILCS 3/14C-2-amended-by-R2-A-49-30). Note: The I[lLineis Administrative
Code definition of English Learners has not been amended since the effective date of P.A. 99-30 and still provides that English
Learners means any student in preschool, kindergarten or any of grades 1 thmugh 12, whose home language background is a
language other than English and whose proticiency in speaking, reading, writing, or understanding English is not yet sufficient
to provide the student with: (1) the ability to meet the State’s proficiency level of achievement on State assessments; (2) the
ability to successfully achieve in classrooms where the language of instruction is English, or (3) the opportunity to participate
fully in the school setting. €23 1. Admin.Code §228.10).

The Office for Civil Rights (OCR) at the U.S. Dept. of Education (EDOE) and the Civil Rights Division at the U.S.
Depastment. of Justice (DOJ) have issued joint guidance to assist school districts and all public schools in meeting their legal
obligations to ensure that English {Learners can participate meaningfully and equally in educational programs and services.
The guidance is available at: www2.ed.gov/about/otfices/list/ocr/letters/colleague-el-201501.pdf (copy and paste link into
browser if clicking doesn’t work). —In support of this guidance, the Office of English Language Acquisition released an
English Learner (EL) Tool Kit to assist school districts in providing EL students with the support necessary to achieve their
full academic potential. The Too! Kit is available at: www2.ed.gov/aboutioffices/listVoela/english-learner-toolkit/index. html.

2 This policy’s first sentence and the first numbered paragraph both allow a school board to consider the goals for its
English Learners programs; a board should amend the sample policy accordingly.

323 1ll.Admin.Code §228.15. Districts must administer a home language survey to each student entering the district’s
schools for the first time within 30 days after the student’s enrollment. The survey’s purpose is to identify students of non-
English background. ISBE’s website contains useful information about communicating with parents/guardians of English
Learners (www.isbe.net/Pages/Resources-for-Families-of-English-Learners.aspx), including sample Home Language Surveys
and program letters in many languages (www.isbe.net/Pages/English-Learners-Forms-and-Notifications.aspx).

6:160 Page 1 of 3

©20+6-2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association ot School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

118



3. Comply with State law regarding the Transitional Bilingual Educational Program (TBE) or
Transitional Program of Instruction (TPI), whichever is applicable. 4

4. Comply with any applicable State and federal requirements for the receipt of grant money for
English Learners and programs to serve them. 5

5. Determine the appropriate instructional program and environment for English Learners. 6

6. Annually assess the English proficiency of English Learners and monitor their progress in order
to determine their readiness for a mainstream classroom environment. 7

7. Include English Learners, to the extent required by State and federal law, in the District’s
student assessment program to measure their achievement in reading/language arts and

mathematics. 8

8. Provide information to the parents/guardians of English Learners about: (a) the reasons for their
child’s identification, (b) their child’s level of English proficiency, (c) the method of instruction
to be used, (d) how the program will meet their child’s needs, (e) how the program will
specifically help their child learn English and meet age-appropriate academic achievement
standards for grade promotion and graduation, (f) specific exit requirements of the program,
(g) how the program will meet their child’s individualized education program, if applicable,
and (h) information on parent/guardian rights. Parents/guardians will be regularly apprised of
their child’s progress and involvement will be encouraged. ?

Parent Involvement 10

Parents/guardians oF English Learners will be informed how they can: (1) be involved in the education
of their children; ++/(2) be active participants in assisting their children to attain English proficiency,
achieve at high Ievels within a well-rounded education, and meet the challengmg State academlc
standards expected of all students. 20| 70 paiie e and ecee oo e D 11 1

lucdbion Prograins Pa \ Coiimi

I'he foolnotes are not intended (o be part of the adopled policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

For purposes of identifying students eligible to receive special education, districts must administer non-discriminatory
procedures to English Learners coming from homes in which a language other than English is used (105 ILCS 5/14-8.02).

41051LCS 5/14C-3, amended-by-P-A-99-30-and 23 [1l. Admin.Code §§228.25 and 228.30.

S20uUs.C. §§6312, 6314, 6315, 6318, and 6801 et seq.; 34 C.F.R. Part 200; 105 ILCS 5/14C-1 et seq.-amended-by-P-A-
99-30; and 23 [1l. Admin.Code Part 228.

6 23 111. Admin.Code §228.25.

7 23 Ill. Admin.Code §228.25(b). Districts must annually assess the English language proficiency of all English learners
using the assessment prescribed by the State Superintendent of Education. This assessment is the Assessing Comprehension
and Communication in_English State to_State for English Language Learners (ACCESS for ELLs) test. See
www.isbe.net/Pages/EnglishLearnerldentificationAssessment.aspx.

8 34 C.F.R. Part 200.

920 U.S.C. §6312(¢)(3)(A) and 23 [Il.Admin.Code §228.40.

1050 us.c. §6312(e)3)(C) and 23 [I.Admin.Code Part 228. 105 1LCS 5/14C-10 requires school districts W estublish
parental advisory committees for transitional bilingual education progrms. See 2. 150-AP. Superintendent Conmnitiees

6:160 Page 2 of 3

©2646-2021 Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association ot School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

119




LEGAL REF.: 20 US.C. §§6312, 6314, 6315, and 6318.
20 U.S.C. §6801 et seq.
34 C.F.R. Part 200.
105 ILCS 5/14C-1 et seq.
23 Ill.Admin.Code Part 228.

CROSS REF.: 6:15 (School Accountability), 6:170 (Title I Programs), 6:340 (Student Testing
and Assessment Program)

6:160 Page 3 of 3
2046-2021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved,
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

120



Oetober20H4-6June 2021 6:170

Instruction

Title | Programs !

The Superintendent or designee shall pursue funding under Title I, Improving the Academic
Achievement of the Disadvantaged, of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act, to supplement
instructional services and activities in order to improve the educational opportunities of educationally
disadvantaged or deprived children.

All District schools, regardless of whether they receive Title I funds, shall provide services that,
taken as a whole, are substantially comparable. Teachers, administrators, and other staff shall be
assigned to schools in a manner that ensures equivalency among the District’s schools. Curriculum
materials and instructional supplies shall be provided in a manner that ensures equivalency among

the District’s schools. 2

Title I Parent and Family Engagement

The District maintains programs, activities, and procedures for the engagement of parents/guardians
and families of students receiving services, or enrolled in programs, under Title I. These programs,
activities, and procedures are deseribed in District-level and School-level compacts.

District-Level Parent and Family Engagement Compact 3

The Superintendent or designee shall develop a District-Level Parent and Family Engagement
Compact according to Title [ requirements. The District-Level Parent and Family Engagement
Compact shall contain: (1) the Distriet’s expectations for parent and family engagement, (2)
specific strategies for effective parent and family engagement activities to improve student
academic achievement and school performance, and (3) ether provisions as required by federal
law. The Superintendent or designee shall emsure that the Compact is distributed to
parents/guardians of students receiving services, or engolled in programs, under Title L.

The footnoles are nol intended Lo be part ol the adopted pulicy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted.

1 State or federal law controls this policy’s content. This policy is mandatory for any district that receives or desires
to receive Title I funds. Title [ is part of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act. 20 U.S.C. §6301 et seq.)- It was
amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act. Pub. L. | 14-95-{ESSA-ef-2-10-15).

2 This paragraph, or similar language, is mandatory for each district receiving Title I funds, €20 U.S.C.
§6321(c)2UA)ii).

320 US.C. §6318(a)(2) requires cach district receiving Title [ funds to “develop jointly with, agree on with, and
distribute to, parents and family members of participating children a written parent and family engagement policy.” This
requirement is accomplished in this sample policy by mandating the superintendent or designee to develop a District-Level
Parent and Family Engagement Compact, according to Title [ requirements. A sample District-Level Parent and Family
Engagement Compact is contained in 6:170-AP1, EL, District-Level Parent and Family Engagement Compact. A sample
process for developing a parent and family engagement compact is contained in 6:170-AP1, Checklist for Development,
Implementation, and Maintenance of Parent and Family Engagement Compacts for Title [ Programs.

6:170 Page 1 of 2

©243202 | Policy Reference Educatjon Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

121



School-Level Parent and Family Engagement Compact 4

Each Building Principal or designee shall develop a School-Level Parent and Family
Engagement Compact according to Title I requirements. This School-Level Parent and Family
Engagement Compact shall contain: (1) a process for continually involving parents/guardians in
its development and implementation, (2) how parents/guardians, the entire school staff, and
students share the responsibility for improved student academic achievement, (3) the means by
which the school and parents/guardians build and develop a partnership to help children achieve
the State’s high standards, and (4) other provisions as required by federal law. Each Building
Principal or designee shall ensure that the Compact is distributed to parents/guardians of
students receiving services, or enrolled in programs, under Title I.

Incorporated

by Reference: 6:170-AP1, E1 (District-Level Parent and Family Engagement Compact) and
6:170-AP1, E2 (School-Level Parent and Family Engagement Compact)

LEGAL REF.: Title I of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act, 20 U.S.C. §6301-6514.

CROSS REF.: 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 4:110 (Transportation), 5:190 (Teacher

Qualifications), 5:280 (Duties and Qualifications), 6:15 (School Accountability),
6:140 (Education of Homeless Children), 6:145 (Migrant Students), 6:160
(English Learners), 7:10 (Equal Educational Opportunities), 7:30 (Student
Assignment), 7:60/(Residence), 7:100 (Health, Eye, and Dental Examinations;
Immunizations; and Exclusion of Students), 8:95 (Parental [nvolvement)

I'he Faotnotes are nol intended o he part of the adopted policy: they should be removed belore the policy is adopted

420us.C. §6318(b)(1) requires each school served under Title I to “jointly develop with, and distribute to, parents
and family members of participating children a written parent and family engagement policy, agreed on by such parents, that
shall describe the means for carrying out the requirements of subsections (c) through (f)-ofthis-seetion.” This requirement is
accorplished in this sample policy by mandating the building principal or designee to develop a School-Level Parent and
Family Engagement Compact, according to Title [ requirements. A sample School-Level Parent and Family Engagement
Compact is contained in 6:170-APt, E2, School-Level Parent and Family Engagement Compact. A sample process for
developing a parental involvement compact is contained in 6:170-AP1, Checklist for Development, Implementation, and
Maintenance of Parent and Family Engagement Compacts for Title [ Programs.

6:170 Page 2 of 2

©2048202 1 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

122



Meareh2020June 2021 6:235

Instruction
Access to Electronic Networks 1
Electronic networks—etuetinethe-tnternet are a part of the District’s instructional program and serve

to promote educational excellence by facilitating resource sharing, innovation, and communication.2

The term electronic networks includes all of the District’s technology resources. including. but not
ltmited to:

1. The District's local-arca and wide-area networks. including wireless networks (Wi-Fi).
District-issued Wi-Fi hotspots. and any District servers or other networking infrastructure:

2. Access to the Internet or other online resources via the District’s networks or to any District-
issued online ageount from any computer or device, regardless of location;

3. District-owaied or District-issued computers, laptops. tablets, phones, or similar devices.

The Superintendent shall develop an implementation plan for this policy and appoint system
administrator(s). 3

The School District is not responsible for any information that may be lost or damaged, or become
unavailable when using the network, or for any information that is retrieved or transmitted via the
Internet.4 Furthermore, the District will not be responsible for any unauthorized charges or fees
resulting from access to the Internet.

Curriculum and Appropriate Online Behavior

The use of the District’s electronic networks shall: (1) be consistent with the curriculum adopted by
the District as well as the varied instructional needs, learning styles, abilities, and developmental
levels of the students, and (2) comply with the selection eriteria for instructional materials and library

I'he Tootnotes arc not intended Lo be part ol the adopled policy: they should be removetibelore the policy is adopled

1 State or federal law requires this subject matter be covered by policy. State or federal law controls this policy’s
content. This policy contains an item on which collective bargaining may be required. Any policy that impacts upon wages,
hours, and terms and conditions of employment, is subject to collective bargaining upon request by the employee
representative, even if the policy involves an inherent managerial right. This policy concerns an area in which the law is
unsettled.

A policy on Internet safety is necessary to receive E-rate funds under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act,
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants (20 U.S.C. §7131-) and to qualify for universal service benefits under the
Children’s Internet Protection Act (CIPA) (47 U.S.C. §254(h) and (1)).

Generally, tederal rules prohibit schools [rom soliciting or accepting gilis or other things ol value exceeding $20 lrom
Internet service providers that participate or are seeking to participate in the E-rate program. 47 C.F.R, §54.503, However,
during the COVID-19 pandemic. the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) temporarily waived its rules prohibiting
such gills to enable service providers 1o supporl remole learning efTorts withoul impacting school E-rate funding. See
hps://does Tec gov/publicZatachments/DA-20-1479A L pd

2 This goal is repeated in exhibits 6:233-AP1, El, Student Authorization for Access to the District’s Electronic
Networks, and 6:235-AP 1. E2, Staff Authorization for Access to the District's Electronic Networks.

3 Topics for the implementation plan include integration of the [nternet in the curriculum, staft training. and safety
issues. The implementation plan can also include technical information regarding service providers, establishing [nternet
accounts, distributing passwords, software filters, menu creation, managing resources and storage capacity, and the number
of ehst—tp-Haeso-access points for users to connect to their accounts. Another topic is investigation of inappropriate use.

4 No system can guarantee to operate perfectly or to prevent access to inappropriate material: this policy statement
attempts to absolve the district of any liability.

6:235 Page 1 of 5
©2020202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association ot School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

123



resource center materials. As required by federal law and Board policy 6:60, Curriculum Content,
students will be educated about appropriate online behavior, including but not limited to: (1)
interacting with other individuals on social networking websites and in chat rooms, and (2)
cyberbullying awareness and response.5 Staff members may, consistent with the Superintendent’s
implementation plan, use the Internet throughout the curriculum.

The District’s electronic network is part of the curriculum and is not a public forum for general use. 6

Acceptable Use 7

All use of the District’s electronic networks must be: (1) in support of education and/or research, and
be in furtherance of the goals stated herein, or (2) for a legitimate school business purpose. Use is a
privilege, not a right.8 Students-and-staff-membersUsers of the District’s electronic networks have no
expectation of privacy in any material that is stored on, transmitted, or received via the District’s
electronic networks-er—District-computers. General rules for behavior and communications apply
when using electronic networks. The District’s administrative procedure, Acceptable Use of the
District’s Electronic Networks, contains the appropriate uses, ethics, and protocol.9 Electronic

I'he foolnoles are not intended to be part ol the adopled policy: they should be removed hefore the policy is adopted

5 Required by 47 U.S.C. §254(l)(5)(B)(iii) and 47 C.F.R. §54.520(c)(i) only for districts that receive £-rate discounts
for Internet access or plan to become participants in the E-rate discount program. All boards receiving an £-rafe funding for
Internet access must-were required 10 certify that they hadkese- updated their Internet safety policies. See, FCC Report and
Order 11-125 (August T, 2011). This sentence is optional if the district only receives discounts for telecommunications,
such as telephone service, unless the district plans to participate in the £-rate discount program.

6 School authorities may reasonably regulate student expression in school-sponsored publications for education-related
reasons. Hazelwood Sch. Dist. v. Kuhlmeier, 484 U.S. 260 (1988). This policy allows such control by clearly stating that
school-sponsored network information resources are not a “public forum™ open for general student use but are, instead, part

of the curriculum.

It is an unfair labor practice (ULP) under the Ill. Educational Labor Relations Act (IELRA) for an employer to
discourage employees from becoming or remaining membets of a union. 115 ILCS 5/14(a)(10), added by P.A. 101-620. In
connection with that potential penalty, the IELRA requires employers to establish email policies in an effort to prohibit the
use of its email system by outside sources. 115 ILCS 534 (c-5) added by P.A. 101-620. This policy aligns with [ELRA
requirements by clarifying the District’s electronic network is not'e public forum for general use by outside parties and by
limiting use of the network to the purposes stated under the.Acceptable Use subhead. However, districts are still prohibited
under the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution from suppressing messages based on viewpoint and may be subject to
liability if they affirmatively block individual senders. See Perry Educ. Ass’n v. Perry Local Educators’ Ass'n, 460 U.S. 37
(1983); Columbia Univ. v. Trump, 302 F.Supp.3d 541 (S.D.N.Y. 2018). Consult the board attorney if the board wants to
amend this policy to prohibit access by specific parties and/or before taking steps to “block” any specific party from the
district’s email system based on the content of the party’s message.

7 This paragraph provides general guidelines for acceptable use regardless of whether Internet use is supervised. n
practice. many_districts allow for_incidental personal use of their networks during duty-fice times. The specific rules are
provided in exhibits 6:235-AP1, B, Student Authorization for Access to the District's Electronic Networks, and 6:235-AP 1,
E2, Staff Authorization for Access to the District's Electronic Networks (see also f/n 1). This paragraph’s application to
faculty may have collective bargaining implications.

8 The “privilege. not a right” dichotomy is borrowed from cases holding that a student’s removal from a team does not
require due process because such participation is a privilege rather than a right. The deprivation of a privilege typically does
not trigger the Constitution’s due process provision. Clements v. Bd. of Educ. of Decatur Public Schi. Dist. No. 61, 133
TiL.App.3d 531 (4th Dist. 1985). Nevertheless, before access privileges are revoked, the user should be nolificd and allowed
to give an explanation.

9 (f students are allowed only supervised access and are not required to sign the Authorization for Access to the
District's Electronic Networks. the provisions from the Authorization should be used as administrative procedures for
covering student [nternet use. See 6:235-AP1, Acceptable Use of the District’s Electronic Networks. This is an optional
sentence:

The Superintendent shall establish administrative procedures containing the appropriate uses,

ethics. and protocol for [nternet use.
The Harassing and Obscene Communications Act criminalizes harassing and obscene electronic communication. 720

ILCS 5/26.5.

6:235 Page 2 of §

©20262021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney betore use

124




communications and downloaded material, including files deleted from a user’s account but not
erased, may be monitored or read by school officials. 10

Internet Safety 11

Technology protection measures shall be used on each District computer with Internet access.L2 They
shall include a filtering device that protects against [nternet access by both adults and minors to visual
depictions that are: (1) obscene, (2) pornographic, or (3) harmful or inappropriate for students, as
defined by federal law and as determined by the Superintendent or designee.13 The Superintendent or
designee shall enforce the use of such filtering devices. An administrator, supervisor, or other
authorized person may disable the filtering device for bona fide research or other lawful purpose,
provided the person receives prior permission from the Superintendent or system administrator.14 The
Superintendent or designee shall include measures in this policy’s implementation plan to address the
following: 15

[he footnotes are not intengdéd to hespart of the adopted policy: they should be removed belore the policy is adopted.

10 The Fourth Amerdment protects individuals from searches only when the person has a legitimate expectation of
privacy. This provisien attempts to aveid Fourth Amendment protection for communications and downloaded material by
forewarning users that their material may be read or searched, thus negating any expectation of privacy.

Email and computer files are “public records™ as defined in the [1l. Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) if they are, as
in this policy, “under control” of the schoot board. 5 [LCS 140/2. They may be exempt from disclosure, however, when they
contain information that, if disclosed, “would constitute a clearly unwarranted invasion of personal privacy.” 3 ILCS 140/7.

S HLCS 047 Alternatively, @ schood board may believe that making email semi-private enhances its educational
value. The following grants limited privacy te email communications and can be substituted for the sample policy’s sentence
preceding this footnote:

School officials will not intentionally inspect the contents of email without the consent of the
sender or an intended recipient, unless as required to investigate complaints regarding email that is
alleged to contain material in vielation of this policy or the District’s administrative procedure,
Acceptable Use of the District’s Electronic Networks.

 gee f/n 1.
12 While it is best practice w do so. neither CIPA nor the roles for the £<Rate program specificully address whether
school-owned computers or other mobile computing devices must be filiered whemusing 4 non-school Internct connection.

Consult the board atomey [or guidance on this issue.
13 This sample policy language is broader than the requirements in federal law (20'U.S.C. §7131, 47 U.S.C. §254, and

47 C.F.R. §54.520(c)(Q)). It does not distinguish between minors (children younger than ¥7) and non-minors. The terms,
minor, obscene, child pornography, and harmful to minors have not changed, but are now explicitly referred to in the
regulations at 47 C.F.R. §54.520(a). Federal law defines harmful to minors as:

...any picture, image, graphic image file, or other visual depiction that—(i) taken as a whole

and with respect to minors, appeals to a prurient interest in nudity, sex, or excretion; (ii)

depicts, describes, or represents, in a patently offensive way with respect to what is suitable

for minors, an actual or simulated sexual act or sexual contact, actual or simulated normal or

perverted sexual acts, or a lewd exhibition of the genitals; and (iii) taken as a whole, lacks

serious literary, artistic, political, or scientific value as to minors.

The Federal Communications Commission specifically declined to find that access to suciul

nelworking websites Faeeboekor-bpSpyesare per se harmful to minors. School officials have

discretion about whether or not to block access to these and similar sites. See supra f/n 3.

14 permitted by 20 U.S.C. §7131(c). The policy’s provision for prior approval is not in the law and may be omitted.
The entire sentence may be eliminated if a board does not want the filtering device to be disabled.

15 11 order to quality for universal service benefits under the federal Children’s [nternet Protection Act (CIPA), the
district’s [nternet safety policy must address the items listed in the sample policy. 47 U.S.C. §254(1). The sample policy
accomplishes this task by requiring these items be addressed in the policy’s implementation plan or administrative
procedure.

Note that tederal law requireds the-schoo!l boards to hold at least one hearing or meeting to address the initial adoption
of the Internet satety policy. Later revisions of the existing policy need not follow the public notice rule of CIPA, though a
board will still need to follow its policy regarding revisions and the mandates of FOIA.

6:235 Page 3 of 5

©2820202| Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

125



1. Ensure staff supervision of student access to online electronic networks, 16

2. Restrict student access to inappropriate matter as well as restricting access to harmful
materials,

3. Ensure student and staff privacy, safety, and security when using electronic communications,
4. Restrict unauthorized access, including “hacking” and other unlawful activities, and

5. Restrict unauthorized disclosure, use, and dissemination of personal identification
information, such as, names and addresses.

Authorization for Electronic Network Access 17

Each staff member must sign the Authorization for Access to the District’s Electronic Networks as a
condition for using the District’s electronic network. Each student and his or her parent(s)/guardian(s)
must sign the Authorization before being granted unsupervised use. 18

Confidentiality

All users of the Distriet’s computers to access the Internet shall maintain the confidentiality of student
records. Reasonable measures to protect against unreasonable access shall be taken before
confidential student informatiom is loaded onto the network.

Violations

The failure of any student-erstaff-memberuser to follow the terms of the District’s administrative
procedure, Acceptable Use of the District’s Electronic Networks, or this policy, will result in the loss

of privileges, disciplinary action, and/or appropriate legal action.

I'he footnotes are nol intended (0 be part of the adopted policy: they should be repwwved bekore the policy is adopted

CIPA also requires this policy and its documentation to be retained for at least five years after the last day of service
delivered in a particular funding year. This means the five year retention gequirement begins on the last day of service
delivered under [-rate, not from the day the policy was initially adopted. €onsult the board attorney about this rcquircment
and the best practices for your individual board.

16 Monitoring the online activities of students is broader than the requirement in federal law to monitor minors. The
definition of minor for this purpose is “any individual who has not attained the age of 17 years.” See 47 C.F.R.
§54.520(a)(4)(i). The use of the word students is a best practice.

17 The District’s administrative procedure, 6:235-AP1, Acceptable Use of the District’s Electronic Networks, —rather
than this board policy, specifies appropriate conduct, ethics, and protocol for Internet use. This is consistent with the
principle that detailed requirements are not appropriate for board policy; instead, they should be contained in separate
district documents that are authorized by board policy. Keeping technical rules specifying acceptable use out of board policy
will allow for greater flexibility. fewer changes to the policy manual, and adherence to the belief that board policy should be
confined to governance issues and the provision of guidance on significant district issues. !liis sample policy vnly reguive

18 The Superintendent’s implementation plan should describe appropriate supervision for students on the Internet who
are not required, or refuse, to sign the Authorization.

The use of personal electronic communication devices owned by students but used to gain [nternet access that has been
funded by E-rate is not addressed yet. The FCC has indicated that it does plan to address the issues associated with the
application of CIPA requirements to this situation.

6:235 Page 4 of 5

©20202021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

126



LEGAL REF.:

CROSS REF.:

ADMIN. PROC.:

6:235

Mo—hd e ehind—er—2 20 U.S.C. §7131. Elementary and
Secondary BEducation Act.

Chitdren s—trternertrateeton-Aet—47 U.S.C. §254(h) and (1). Children’s Internet
&‘w

47 CF.R. Part 54, Subpan F Universal Serv1ce Support for Schools and Libraries.
L15 ILCS 5/14(c-5). [ll. Educational Labor Relations Act.
720 ILCS 5/26.5.

5:100 (Staff Development Program), 5:170 (Copyright), 6:40 (Curriculum
Development), 6:60 (Curriculum Content), 6:210 (Instructional Materials), 6:220
(Bring Your Own Technology (BYOT) Program; Responsible Use and Conduct),
6:230 (Library Media Program), 6:260 (Complaints About Curriculum,
Instructional Materials, and Programs), 7:130 (Student Rights and
Responsibilities), 7:190 (Student Behav1or) 7:310 (Restrlctlons on Publications;
Elementary Schools) ' (" ), 7:345
(IIse ol Educational Technologies: Student Data anacy and Security)

6:235-AP1 (Administrative-Procedure—Acceptable Use of the District’s
Electronic Networks), 6:235-AP1, E1 (Student Authorization for Access to the
District™s Electronic Networks), 6:235-AP1, E2 (Exhibi+—Staff Authorization for
Access to the District’s Electronic Networks)

Page 5 of 5

©20202021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

127




Fb-2046 une 202 6:255

Instruction

Assemblies and Ceremonies !

Assemblies must be approved by the Superintendent or designee and be consistent with the District’s
educational objectives.

The District shall not endorse or otherwise promote invocations, benedictions, and group prayers at
any school assembly, ceremony, or other school-sponsored activity. 2

LEGAL REF.: Lee v. Weisman, 505 U.S. 577H2-8-C6-2649 (1992).
Santa Fe Independent Sch.eet Dist.¢iet v. Doe, 530 U.S. 290420-5:€t-2266 (2000).
Jones v. Clear Creek [ndenendent Sch aol D[St ﬂe& 930 F.2d 41697724963 (5th
Cir= 19911992), e cert. granted,
Jjudgement vacatedderied, 505 U.S. 12154—1—3—S—Gt—2—9§{-) (1992), remand, 977
F.2d 963, reh'g denied, 983 F.2d 234 (5th Cirz 1992), and cert. denied, 508
U.S. 967 (1993).

CROSS REF.: 6:70 (Teaching About Religion), 6:80 (Teaching About Controversial Issues)

I'he footnotes are not intended Lo be payt ol the adopted policy: they should beifemoved belore the policy is adopled.
1 State or federal law controls this policy’s content.

2 School-sponsored prayers or invocations at athletic events, graduation, and performances violate the First Amendment
to the U.S. Constitution. Lee v. Weisman, 505 U.8. 577H2-8-C&2649 (1992). Even permitting students to deliver a “brief
invocation and/or message” as part of pre-game ceremonies at football games is unconstitutional when the district retains
control of the message’s content. Santa Fe Independent Sch.eel Dist.riet v. Doe, 530 U.S. 290420-5.€+-2266 (2000), and
Workman v. Greenwood Cmty. Sch. Corp., 2010 WL 1780043 (S.D.Ind.; 2010). Using a student-led message to solemnize a
school event is problematic, especially when the student-led message was historically a prayer or when the purpose is to
solemnize an athletic event as opposed to an event like graduation. However, the Supreme Court denied review of the Fifth
Circuit Court of Appeals decision affirming a school board’s policy that allowed nonsectarian and nonproselytizing student-
led prayer during graduation ceremonies. Jones v. Clear Creek [ndependent Sch.eet Dist.riet, 508 U.S. 967977-E2d-063-(5th
Cir—(19931992), cert. denied. In that case, high school seniors were permitted to choose student volunteers to deliver
nonsectarian, nonproselytizing invocation at graduation ceremonies. The following is the policy upheld in that case:

I.  The use of an invocation and/or benediction at the high school graduation exercise shall rest within the
discretion of the graduating senior class, with the advice and counsel of the senior class principal [class
sponsor];

2. The invocation and benediction, if used, shall be given by a student volunteer; and

3. Consistent with the principle of equal liberty ot conscience, the invocation and benediction shall be
nonsectarian and nonproselytizing in nature.

A board should consult its attorney before adopting such a policy.

6:255 Page 1 of |

[1Im0|s Assoc1atlon of School Boards All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney betore use.

128



Herby2046J une 202 | 6:260

Instruction

Complaints About Curriculum, Instructional Materials, and Programs

Parents/guardians have the right to inspect any instructional material used as part of their child’s
educational curriculum pursuant to School Board policy 7:15, Student and Family Privacy Righis. 1

Persons who believe that curriculum, instructional materials, or programs violate rights guaranteed by
any law or Board policy should file a complaint using Board policy 2:260, Uniform Grievance
Procedure. Persons with all other suggestions or complaints about curriculum, instructional materials,
andor programs should complete a eCurriculum oObjection form-andiouse-the-tniform-Erievance
Procedure. A parent/guardian may request that his/her child be exempt from using a particular
instructional material or program by completing a eCurriculum eObjection form.

LEGAL REF.: 20 U.S.C.'81232h, Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment.

CROSS REF.: 2:260 (Uniform Grievance Procedure), 7:15 (Student and Family Privacy
Rights), 8:110 (Public Suggestions and Concerns)

I'he Footnotes are nol intended (o be part ol the adopted policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted,

120 U.S.C. §12320()(1NCYD.

2 A school district is not required to automatically accommodate a student’s or his/her parents” religious beliefs by
allowing the student to opt out of reading required materials or programs. A student is entitled to accommodation only if' a
district’s requirement burdens his/her free exercise of religion and the requirement is not justified by a compelling state
interest. Mozert v. Hawkins Co. Bused of Educ., 827 F.2d 1058 (6th Cir.z 1987). A student’s free exercise right would
unlikely be burdened by compelling the student to be exposed to ideas with which his/her religion disagrees. See
Fleischlesser v. Directors of Sch. Dist. 200, 15 F.3d 680 (7th Cir; 1994). On the other hand. compelling a student to
perform an act that violates the student’s religious beliefs would burden histher free exercise right, and the school district
would need to justify the requirement with a compelling state interest in order to be able to enforce it.

6:260 Page 1 of 1
©24-620 | Policy Reterence Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

129



Eebraary-2046June 202 | 7:220

Students

Bus Conduct !

All students must follow the District’s School Bus Safety Rules.

School Bus Suspensions

The Superintendent, or any designee as permitted in the School Code, is authorized to suspend a
student from riding the school bus for up to 10 consecutive school days for engaging in gross
disobedience or misconduct, including but not limited to, the following:

Prohibited student conduct as defined in School Board policy; 7:190, Student Behavior.
Willful injury or threat of injury to a bus driver or to another rider.

Willful and/or repeated defacement of the bus.

Repeated use of profanity.

Repeated willful disobedience of a directive from a bus driver or other supervisor.

Such other behavior as the Superintendent or designee deems to threaten the safe operation of
the bus and/or its occupants.

If a student is suspended from riding the bus for gross disobedience or misconduct on a bus, the
School Board may suspend the student from riding the school bus for a period in excess of 10 days
for safety reasons. The District’s regular suspension procedures shall be used to suspend a student’s
privilege to ride a school bus. 2

S

Academic Credit for Missed Classes During Schoel Bus Suspension 3

A student suspended from riding the bus whe does not have alternate transportation to school shall
have the opportunity to complete or make up work for equivalent academic credit. It shall be the
responsibility of the student’s parent or guardian to notify the school that the student does not have

alternate transportation.

ihe oontiows are ot mitenided wbe part o the adopred policy s they should e rcmosvad betore e policy i adoped

L Afl districts must have a policy on student discipline. €105 [LCS 5/10-20.14; 23 [l Admin.Code §1.280). State law
requires the parent-teacher advisory committee, in cooperation with school bus personnel, to develop with the board, school
bus safety procedures, £105 [LCS 5/10-20.14(c). See 4:110-AP3, School Bus Safety Rules.

2 Attorneys disagree whether 105 ILCS 5/10-22.6(b)P-A-99-456—eH-9-15-16; applies to school bus suspensions; this
sentence applies the law to school bus suspensions. 7:200, Suspension Procedure, satisfies the procedural requirements in
105 ILCS 5/10-22.6(b). Delete this sentence only at the direction of the board attorney.

3 The first sentence of this subhead is required by 105 [LCS 5/10-22.6(b-30)-aimended-by-RA-99-456ei-9~-15-2016.

7:220 Page | of 2

©2242 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Assoctation of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attomey before use

130



Electronic Recordings on School Buses 4

Electronic visual and audio recordings may be used on school buses to monitor conduct and to
promote and maintain a safe environment for students and employees when transportation is provided
for any school related activity. -Notice of electronic recordings shall be displayed on the exterior of
the vehicle’s entrance door and front interior bulkhead in compliance with State law and the rules of
the Illinois Department of Transportation, Division of Traffic Safety.

Students are prohibited from tampering with electronic recording devices. -Students who violate this
policy shall be disciplined in accordance with the Board’s discipline policy and shall reimburse the
School District for any necessary repairs or replacement.

LEGAL REF.: Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. §1232g; 34 C.F.R. Part 99.
105 ILCS 5/10-20.14, 5/10-22.6, and 10/.
720 ILCS 5/14-3(m).
23 Ik Admin.Code Part 375, Student Records.

CROSS REF.: 4:110 (Tramsportation), 4:170 (Safety), 7:130 (Student Rights and
Responsibilities), 7:170 (Vandalism), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:200
(Suspension Procedures), 7:230 (Misconduct by Students with Disabilities),
7:340 (Student Records)

ADMIN. PROC.: 4:110-AP3 (School Bus Safety Rules)

I'he footnoles are not intended to be part of the adopted policy: they should beiremoved betore the policy is adopled.

4 This section is optional; it contains the statutory prerequisites for disiticts that want to use electronic audio and visual
recording devices on school buses, ¢720 ILCS 5/14-3(m)—amended-by-P-A-98-1142. These required prerequisites reside in
an exception to the criminal eavesdropping statute. The criminal eavesdropping statute prohibits recording a conversation in
which someone has a reasonable expectation of privacy without the consent of all parties but allows citizens to record public
conversations without obtaining consent. While the criminal eavesdropping statute was legislatively corrected as of 12-30-
2014, 720 ILCS 5/14-3(m) remains the same. Districts should consult with their board attorney regarding the requirements
of the new-statute.

In addition, consult with the board attorney concerning the status of video and/or audio recordings that were made on
school buses. Confusion surrounds whether or not videotapes are education records for purposes of the federal Family
Education Rights and Privacy Act (EERRA20 1.5.C.§1232g) and/or school student records as defined in the Ill. School
Student Records Act (ISSRA) (105 ILCS 10/). The I1l. State Board of Education (ISBE) considerably reduced the confusion
by stating in its rule that schoo! student records do not include video or other electronic recordings “created at least in part
for law enforcement or security or safety reasons or purposess.” €23 [ll.Admin.Code §375.10y. ISBE rules also specify that:
(1) electronic recordings made on school buses, as defined in the exemption from the criminal offense of eavesdropping in
720 ILCS 5/14-3(m), are not school student records. td—and (2) no image on a school security recording may be
designated as directory information. €23 [ILAdmin.Code §§ 375.10, 375.80(a)(2)(B). This treatment exempts school bus
videos from the multiple requirements in [SSRAthe-H—Sehool-Student-RecordsAet. However, when responding to a request
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140/) for recordings on school buses, a district will need to find an
exemption other than the recording is a schoo! student record.

7:220 Page 2 of 2

©26+6202| Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association ot School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

131



Febrrary20-H6June 2021 7:230

Students

Misconduct by Students with Disabilities !

Behavioral Interventions 2

Behavioral interventions shall be used with students with disabilities to promote and strengthen
desirable behaviors and reduce identified inappropriate behaviors. -The School Board will establish
and maintain a committee to develop, implement, and monitor procedures on the use of behavioral
interventions for children with disabilities.

Discipline of Special Education Students 3

The District shall comply with the Individuals With Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004
and the Illinois State Board of Education’s Special Education rules when disciplining special
education students. -No spectal education student shall be expelled if the student’s particular act of
gross disobedience or miscondmct is a manifestation of his or her disability.

The [ootnotes are nol intended to be part ol the adopted policy: they should be removedbetore the policy s adopted.

I State or federal law controls this policy’s content. State law requires each. district to heve a policy on student behavior
(105 ILCS 5/10-20.14;emended-by P A_90.456 eff 9-15-2016; 23 [1l. Admie.€ode §1.280) plus “policies and procedures”
on behavioral interventions (105 ILCS 5/14-8.05). In its continuing ceinmitment to help school districts and special
education cooperatives comply with ISBE’s requirements for policy and procedure, the Ill. Council of School Attorneys,
special education committee, reviewed this policy and prepared extensive procedures, Special Education Procedures
Assuring the Implementation of Comprehensive Programming for Children with Disabilities. These procedures plus other
material are available gratis on the [ASB website at iasb.com/law/icsaspeced.ctim.

2 State law specifies what must be covered in the mandatory “policies and procedures” on behavioral interventions.
£105 ILCS 5/14-8.05(c)}. They must “be developed with the advice of parents with students with disabilities and other
parents, teachers, administrators, advocates for persons with disabilities, and individuals with knowledge or expertise in the
development and implementation of behavioral interventions for persons with disabilities;.” {Id.} A board that wants to
highlight the components of the procedures may add the following;:

The committee shall review the State Board of Education’s guidelines on the use of behavioral interventions and
use them as a non-binding reference. This policy and the behavioral intervention procedures shall be furnished to
the parents/guardians of all students with individual education plans within 15 days after their adoption or
amendment by, or presentation to, the School Board or at the time an individual education plan is first
implemented for a student; all students shall be informed annually of this policy and the procedures. At the annual
individualized education plan review, this policy shall be given to the parents/guardians and the behavioral
interventions procedures explained and made available to them on request.

3a special education student may not be expelled for behavior or a condition that is a manifestation of the student’s
disability. (34 C.F.R. §300.5305.

7:230 Page 1 of 2
©2462(121 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

132



LEGAL REF.: Individuals With Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004, 20 U.S.C.
§§1412, 1413, and 1415.
Gun-Free Schools Act, 20 U.S.C. §7151 et seq.
34 C.F.R. §§300.101, 300.530 - 300.536.
105 ILCS 5/10-22.6 and 5/14-8.05.
23 Mll.Admin.Code §226.400.
Honig v. Doe, 108 S.Ct. 592 (1988).

CROSS REF.: 2:150 (Committees), 6:120 (Education of Children with Disabilities), 7:130
(Student Rights and Responsibilities), 7:190 (Student Behavior), 7:200
(Suspension Procedures), 7:210 (Expulsion Procedures), 7:220 (Bus Conduct)

7:230 Page 2 of 2

©2H62021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

133



He-204-6June 2021 7:280

Students

Communicable and Chronic Infectious Disease !

A student with or carrying a communicable and/or chronic infectious disease has all rights, privileges,
and services provided by law and the School Board’s policies.2 The Superintendent will develop
procedures to safeguard these rights while managing health and safety concerns.

LEGAL REF.: 105 ILCS 5/10-21.11.
23 . Admin.Code §§ 1.610 and 226.300.
77 Ill.Admin.Code Part 690.

Sttt 20 U.S.C. §1400 et seq.. Individuals
Wnl‘r Disabltlu«,a E.dLchlUDﬂ Improvement Act of 2004.
RehabilitationAct—Section-504-29 U.S.C. §794(a). Rehabilitation Act of 1973,
Section 504.

Fhe footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy: they should be#émaoved before the policy is adopied.

L 105 11,08 s/10-21.11 requires all hoardsdistsiets to adopthave a policy on the appropriate manner of managing
children with chronic infectious diseases. State or federal law controls this policy’s content. This policy concerns an area in
which the law is unsettled in that competing interests (balancing the protectionssg of the afflicted student’s rights
againsishile the protectioning of the health and safety of the student body) have not been completely resolved.

2 A student with a contagious disease is probably a handicapped individual under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973. 29 U.S.C. §794(a). See Sch.eet Beard. of Nassau Co. v. Arline, +07-5:£—H23480 U.5. 273 (1987) (teacher with
tuberculosis was handicapped under sSection 504); Thomas v. Atascadero Unified Sch.eel Dist.#iet, 662 F.Supp. 376 (C.D.
Cak: 1986) (a child with AIDS was a handicapped person under Section 504); Dist.riet 27 Community. Sch.eel Beard. v.
Beard. of Educ.atier of the City of New York, 502 N.Y.S.2d 325 (1986).

Students with contagious diseases may also qualify for special education under the Individuals With Disabilities
Education Improvement Act_ of 2004. 120 U.S.C. §1400 et seq.) Each school district. independently or in cooperation with
other districts. must provide a comprehensive program of special education that meets the needs of children ages 3 to 21
with exceptional characteristics as identified in State law, specifically including physical or health impairments. +105 ILCS
SEaie 14,

Decisions 1o place a student in a class outside regular classes due to' inlectious disease must be based on medical
evaluations indicating a need to protect the health and safety of others. Comumsity High Sch.eet Dist.siet 155 v. Denz, 463
b2 008 | 2 L App.Sd 129 (H-App-22nd Dist.; 1984).

Cases involving contagious diseases are highly fact-specific. Generally. the appropriate treatment of a student depends
on the severity of the disease and the risk of infecting others, but in all cases, the board attorney should be consulted.

7:280 Page 1 of |
©20162021 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

134



aby20-4+6 une 2021 8:90

Community Relations
Parent Organizations and Booster Clubs

Parent organizations and booster clubs are invaluable resources to the District’s schools. While parent
organizations and booster clubs have no administrative authority and cannot determine District
policy, the School Board welcomes their suggestions and assistance.

Parent organizations and booster clubs may be recognized by the Board and permitted to use the
District’s name, a District school’s name, or a District school’s team name, or any logo attributable to
the District provided they first receive the Superintendent or designee’s express written consent.
Consent to use one of the above-mentioned names or logos will generally be granted if the
organization or club has by-laws containing the following: !

1. The organization’s or club’s name and purpose, such as, to enhance students’ educational
experiences, to help meet educational needs of students, to provide extra athletic benefits to
students, to assist speecific sports teams or academic clubs through financial support, or to
enrich extracurricular activities.

2. The rulesand procedures under which it operates.

3. An agreement to adhere to all Board policies and administrative procedures.

A statement that membership is open and unrestricted, meaning that membership is open to
all parent(syguardian(s) of students enrolled in the school, District staff, and community
members.

5. A statement that the District is not, and will not be, responsible for the organization’s or
club’s business or the conduct of its members. including on any organization or club websites
or social media accounts.

6. An agreement to maintain and protect its own fimances.

7. A recognition that money given to a schoel cannot be earmarked for any particular expense.
Booster clubs may make recommendations, but cash or other valuable consideration must be
given to the District to use at its discretion. The Board’s legal ebligation to comply with Title
[X by providing equal athletic opportunity for members of both genders will supersede an
organization or club’s recommendation. 2

I'he footnoles are nol intended to be part of the adopted policy: they should be removed belore the policy is adopled.

1 For boards that want to require all parent organizations and booster clubs to have 501(c)(3) status, use the following

paragraph:
Parent organizations and booster clubs may be recognized by the Board and permitted to use the District’s name, a
District school’s name, or a District school’s team name, or any logo attributable to the District provided they first
receive the Superintendent or designee’s express written consent. Consent to use one of the above-mentioned
names or logos will generally be granted if the organization or club is a 501(c)(3) that has submitted proof of its
status and has by-laws containing the following:
A 501(c)(3) organization is an organization that qualifies for exemption from federal income tax because it is organized and
operated exclusively for one or more of the following purposes: religious; charitable: scientific: testing for public safety:
literary: educational; fostering national or international amateur sports competition (but only if none of its activities involve
providing athletic facilities or equipment); or the prevention of cruelty to children or animals, For more information, see
www.irs.gov/charities-and-nonpro fitswwweiesaoy.

2 Booster clubs are understandably selective in their support. However, by accepting booster club assistance that
creates vast gender differences, a board may face claims that it has violated Title 1X. Title [X’s focus is on equal funding
opportunities, equal facility availability, similar travel and transportation treatment, comparable coaching, and comparable
publicity. €34 C.F.R. Part 106).

8:90 Page 1 of 2

©2+6202 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
[llinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use

135



Permission to use one of the above-mentioned names or logos may be rescinded at any time and does
not constitute permission to act as the District’s representative. At no time does the District accept
responsibility for the actions of any parent organization or booster club regardless of whether it was
recognized and/or permitted to use any of the above-mentioned names or logos.3 The Superintendent
shall designate an administrative staff member to serve as the recognized liaison to parent
organizations or booster clubs. The liaison will serve as a resource person and provide information
about school programs, resources, policies, problems, concerns, and emerging issues. Building staff
will be encouraged to participate in the organizations.

CROSS REF.: 8:80 (Gifts to the District)

The footnotes are not intended to be part of the adopted policy: they should be removed before the policy is adopted

3 Booster clubs present potential liabilities to a school district beyond loss of funds because they seldom are properly
organized (they generally are not incorporated or otherwise legally recognized), carry no insurance, raise and handle large
sums, and club members hold themselves out as agents of the school (after all, no funds could be raised but for the school
connection). A disclaimer, such as the one presented here, may not be sufficient. A district may take several actions, after
discussion with its attorney, to minimize liability, such as adding a requirement to item 6 above that the club: (1) operate
under the school’s authority (activity accounts); or (2) be properly organized and demonstrate fiscal responsibility by being
a 501(c)(3) organization, obtaining a bond, and/or arranging regular audits. Ultimately, the best way to minimize liability is
to be sure that the district’s errors and omissions insurance covers parent organizations and booster clubs.

8:90 Page 2 of 2

©2s20)2 | Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material with your school board attorney before use.

136



BT

First Reading of Board Policy 4:140

137



Peotone Community Unit School District 207U 4:140
(This board policy will be in effect for the 2022-2023 school year)

Operational Services

Waiver of Student Fees

The Superintendent will recommend to the School Board a schedule of fees, if any,
to be charged students for the use of textbooks, consumable materials,
extracurricular activities, and other school student fees. Students must also pay for
the loss of or damage to school books or other school-owned materials.

Fees for textbooks, other instructional materials, and driver education are waived for
students who meet the eligibility criteria for a fee waiver as described in this policy.
In order that no student is denied educational services or academic credit due to the
inability of parents/guardians to pay student fees, the Superintendent will
recommend to the Board which additional fees, if any, the District will waive for
students who meet the eligibility criteria for fee waiver. Students receiving a fee
waiver are not exempt from charges for lost and damaged books, locks, materials,
supplies, and equipment.

Eligibility Criteria

The School Board participates in a federally funded, school-based child
nutrition program and uses a student’s application and eligibility in the
program as the basis for waiving faes assessed by the District.

A student shall be eligible for a fee waiver if they appear on the lilinois State
Board of Education’s Electronic Direct Certification System or qualify for free
lunch based on a submitted Household Eligibility Application (with income
being within the federally established gmdelmes for free meals) when-the

The Superintendent or designee will give additional consideration where one or
more of the following factors are present:

lliness in the family;

Unusual expenses such as fire, flood, storm damage, etc.;

Unemployment;

Emergency situations;
When one or more of the parents/guardians are involved in a work

stoppage.

e © & o o

4:140 Page 1 of 5
©2019 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this material3¥th your school board attorney before use.



Fees Eligible to be Waived

In the event a student is approved for an income-based fee waiver (either via
direct certification or household income eligibility), only fees for the current
school year will be eligible to be waived. The following fees are eligible for
waiver:

* Registration

e Textbook Rental and Course Fees

¢ Gym Uniform

e |IDCard

e Cap & Gown

o Athletics

» Extracurricular

e Clubs

e Testing

e Curricular and extracurricular mandatory or customary field trips
 Kankakee Career Center Transportation Fee
o Drivers Education \

Fees Not Eligible to be Waived

 Lost/Damaged Book

o Lost/Damage Equipment

* Yearbook

* Pictures

¢ Parking Permits

* Event Tickets

o Kankakee Career Center Course Fees

Fee Waiver Timeline

The annual update to the Direct Certification Sytem from the State of lllinois
begins every July 15t (for the upcoming school year). Families can become
eligible for free or reduced priced lunch through direct certification, or be
approved iocaily through the free/reduced lunch application (househoid
income eligibility) at any time from July 15t to June 30" (based on when their
family endures hardship).

4:140 Page 2 of 5
©2019 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this materigl 3with your school board attorney before use.



If a family is approved for free lunch (either via direct certification or
household income application) between July 15t and the end of the first quarter
| grading period (middle of October) of the school year, all applicable fees will
be waived.

If a family is approved for free lunch (either via direct certification or
household income application) after the start of the second quarter / grade
period (middle of October) and the end of the third quarter (middle of March)
of the school year, all applicable fees will be reduced by 50%.

If a family is approved for free lunch (either via direct certification or
household income application) after the third quarter (middle of March) of the
school year, no fees will be waived for that school year.

Verification

Non-Payment of Fees

Students not qualifying for a fee waiver whose fees are not paid in full, or who
are not current on a district established payment plan, may be restricted from
participating in the following activities, unless participation is required by law;

s Athletics: To participate in a sport, a student-athlete must have ALL
fees paid by the deadline which is established each season and
communicated to all families, including any prior year’s fees. Athletes
who are not in good financia! standing after the date will be allowed to
practice, but not allowed to compete or dress for contests until the
outstanding debt is resolved.

» Extracurricular Activities: To participate in an extracurricular activity,
such as Speech Team, Scholastic Bowl, etc., a student must have ALL
fees paid by the deadline which is established each season and

4:140 Page 3 of 5
©2019 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
Illinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this materialadth your school board attorney before use.



communicated to alt families, including any prior year’s fees. Students
who are not in good financial standing after the date will be allowed to
practice, but not allowed to compete or dress for contests until the
outstanding debt is resolved.

e Clubs: To participate in school clubs, a student must have ALL fees
paid by the deadline which is established each season and
communicated to all families, including any prior year’s fees. Students
who are not in good financial standing after the date will not be alloewed
to participate in the club until the outstanding debt is resolved.

» Prom/Homecoming/WinterBall/8t" Grade Dance: Eligible students
wishing to attend any district sponsored dance must have ALL fees paid
at least two days prior to the event, including any prior year's fees. In
addition, any former district student who wishes to attend Prom as a
guest must have any outstanding fees paid before a guest pass will be
issued.

» Parking Permit: Any student wishing to purchase a parking permit must
have ALL fees, including any prior year’s fees, paid prior to applying for
a permit.

» Official Transcripts: Only unofficial transcripts will be issued until ALL
outstanding fees are paid.

Determination and Appeal

The School Board participates in a federally funded, school-based child
nutrition program and uses a student’s application and eligibility in the
program as the basis for waiving fees assessed by the District.

Determination of a fee waiver request not associated with Direct Certification
or meeting federal income guidelines on a Household Eligibility Application,
and denied by the Superintendent or designee, shall be mailed to the
parent/guardian of the child.

2 FH 4 SEc < cHE

The denial notice shall include: (1) the reason for the denial, (2) the process and
timelines for making an appeal, and (3) a statement that the parent/guardian may
reapply for a waiver any time during the school year if circumstances change. If the
denial is appealed, the District shall follow the procedures for the resolution of
appeals as provided in the ISBE rule on waiver of fees.

4:140 Page 4 of 5

©2019 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lllinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this materigl pvjth your school board attorney before use.



Notification

The Superintendent shall ensure that applications for fee waivers are widely
available and distributed according to State law and Ill. State Board of Education
(ISBE) rule and that provisions for assisting parents/guardians in completing the

application are available.

LEGAL REF.: 105ILCS 5/10-20.13, 5/10-22.25, 5/27-24.2, and 5/28-19.2.
23 [I.Admin.Code §1.245 [may contain unenforceable provisions].

CROSS REF.: 4:130 (Free and Reduced-Price Food Services), 6:220 (Bring Your
Own Technology (BYOT) Program; Responsible Use and Conduct)

4:140 Page 5 of 5

©2019 Policy Reference Education Subscription Service
lliinois Association of School Boards. All Rights Reserved.
Please review this materigl yith your school board attorney before use.



